
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
June 6, 2013, Regular Meeting 


Monte Rio Community Center – 20488 Hwy. 116 
Monte Rio, California 


5:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 2, 2013 Regular Board Meeting and the June 


4, 2013 Special Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
D. Approval of Resolution 13-12, For the Election of Directors to the Special District 


Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Board of Directors 
 
E. Approval of Resolution 13-13, Amending Resolution 13-10, Adopting Water 


Rates for Fiscal Year 2013-14 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 A. Discussion re Sonoma County Water Agency Presentation on Russian River 


Summer Flow (Est. Time 1.5 hours) 
 
 B. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 13-14 Authorizing Water Revenue 


Refunding Bonds in an Amount Not to Exceed $10,000,000 and the Execution 
and Delivery of an Indenture of Trust, a Bond Purchase Agreement and an 
Official Statement and Authorizing Certain Related Matters (Est. time 20 min) 


 
 C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-15, Awarding a Contract to Groundwater 


Pump, Inc. for Purchase of Pumping Equipment for the 2014 CIP and Authorizing 
the General Manager to execute the Contract (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
 D. Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-16, Awarding Contract for the FY 2014 


Capital Improvement Project (CIP 2014) and Authorizing the General Manager 
(limited) Change Order Approval (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
 E. Discussion re Tour of District facilities (Est. time 10 min) 
 
 F. Discussion/Action re Proposed AT&T Cell Tower at Highland Treatment Facility 


 Location: 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville (Est. time 5 min) 
 
G. Discussion/Action re Proposed Changes to Purchasing and Conflict of Interest 


Policies (Est. time 10 min)   
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 


 2







 3


 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
May 2, 2013 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Richard Holmer 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Lloyd Guccione 
      Richard Skaff 
      Millard and Dorothy Ferris 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Vice-President Victoria Wikle at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 


p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Lipinski 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, except that Director Schaap abstained as to Item III-A (Minutes) as 
he was absent for a portion of that meeting.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 4, 2013 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any (None) 
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Richard Skaff. 
Public comment was made by Millard Ferris. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:39 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:39 p.m.) Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-10, Adopting Water 


Rates for FY 2013-14 and Analysis of protests received.  The GM made a PowerPoint 
presentation.  Board questions ensued.  Vice-President Wikle opened the Public Hearing 
at 6:55 p.m.  Public comment was made by Dorothy Ferris.  Public comment was made 
by Richard Skaff.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Vice-President Wikle 
closed the Public Hearing at 7:10 p.m.  Board discussion ensued.  The General Manager 
announced that 184 protests had been received.   


  
 Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt Resolution 13-10, Adopting Water Rates for FY 


2013-14.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   
 
B. (7:20 p.m.) Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-11, Adopting the FY 


2013-014 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  The GM made a PowerPoint 
presentation.  Board questions ensued.  Vice-President Wikle opened the Public Hearing 
at 7:33 p.m.  Public comment was made by Richard Skaff.  Public comment was made by 
Lloyd Guccione.  Further public comment was made by Richard Skaff.  Vice-President 
Wikle closed the Public Hearing at 7:40 p.m.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-
Wilder moved to approve Resolution 13-11, Adopting the FY 2013-14 Operating and 
Capital Improvement Budget.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


 
C. (7:45 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2012-13 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  Public comment was 
made by Lloyd Guccione.  No action was taken.  


 
D. (7:52 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Bond Re-Funding.  The GM provided an overview of 


this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  
Further discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
E. (8:03 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Tour of District Facilities.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  A tour of the Monte Rio facilities was 
scheduled for Tuesday, June 4 at 9 a.m. beginning at the District offices. 


 
F. (8:07 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Proposed AT&T Cell Tower at Highland Treatment 


Facility 
 Location: 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  No action was 


taken. 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:10 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. 2014 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 


 2







 3


8. 2010 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) 
9. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:23 p.m.) 


 
Director Lipinski commented briefly on the Minutes 
Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would be out of town from May 20-May 27 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
(None.)  
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:24 p.m.) 
 
1. Award of contract for CIP 2014 
2. ADA issues (Richard Skaff)  
3. Tour of District 
4. Bond refunding/refinancing  
5. AT&T tower 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:39 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:10 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:23 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:24 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. IV-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 6, 2013 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 13-12, ELECTIONS FOR THE SPECIAL 
DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


Approve Resolution 13-12 which is a ballot for the Special District Risk 
Management (SDRMA) Board of Directors and selects 4 candidates for election.   
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  none.    
 
DISCUSSION: 


The attached Resolution 13-12 is the ballot for election for the SDRMA  Board of 
Directors.  The District is requested to vote for not more than 4 candidates.  District staff 
have marked the boxes of 4 candidates based on qualifications and incumbency.     
 













		Item IV-D - SDRMA Board Elections

		Item IV-D.1 Res 13-12 - SDRMA Election






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. IV-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 6, 2013 
  
SUBJECT: AMENDING RESOLUTION 13-10, FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 WATER 
RATES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


Approve Resolution 13-13 which amends Resolution 13-10 correcting the error in 
Exhibit A which had incorrect Water Usage Charges.   
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  The error in Water Usage Charges would have a financial impact in 
Fiscal Year 2013-2014 of approximately $19,000, if left unchanged.    
 
DISCUSSION: 


At the May 2, 21013 meeting the Board of Directors approved Resolution 13-10 which 
approved a 3% increase in the District’s Base Rate, Water Usage and Capital Debt 
Reduction Charges.  Exhibit A of the Resolution had the incorrect Water Usage Charges 
shown.  The correct Water Usage Charges were in the Proposition 218 Notice that went 
out to all property owners in the District, the presentation at the public hearing showed 
the correct Water Usage Charges and the discussion of the 3% water rate increase 
made it clear that all charges were to be increased by 3%.   


Resolution 13-13 has the correct values for the Water Usage Charges in Exhibit A and 
needs to be approved so that the correct water rates can be used in billings after July 1, 
2013.  I apologize for the confusion this error has caused.   
 







Resolution No. 13-13 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING WATER RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 


2013-2014 
  


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31007, the District Board of Directors is 
authorized to establish rates and charges sufficient to pay for operating expenses, 
provide for repairs and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and interest on 
debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31025, the District shall fix and through the 
General Manager collect water rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the 2007 Rate Study conducted by Brelje and Race (“2007 Rate 
Study”) and other information provided to the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors 
has evaluated the anticipated revenues and expenditures necessary to operate the 
District and cover the costs of providing water services to customers of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the funding assistance for the District Capital  Improvement Program (CIP) 
from the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee and the Sonoma County 
Community Redevelopment Agency has allowed the District to delay increases in the 
Capital Debt Reduction Charge; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District cannot rely on these funding sources to fund the District’s CIP in 
the future; and 
 
WHEREAS, in March of 2013 District staff sent formal notices of the public hearing on 
the proposed rate structure for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 (FY14) in accordance with the 
requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(b) of the California Constitution, and has 
included other rate information on the District’s website; and   
 
WHEREAS, the formal notices advised ratepayers and property owners of the new 
proposed rate structure and the process for submitting protests to said rate structure to 
the District, in accordance with the requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(b) of the 
California Constitution; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors conducted a public hearing on May 2, 2013  
to hear public testimony on the proposed water rate structure for FY14, and heard all 
testimony regarding the proposed water rates and accepted all related comments and 
protests for FY14; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing the District Clerk tabulated the 
number of protests and reported that there was not a majority protest of the proposed 
water rate structure for FY14; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony provided at the time of the public 
hearing on this matter, the Board of Directors finds as follows: 
 


1.  The proposed rate increases set forth in Exhibit “A” follow the 
recommendations of the 2007 Rate Study that was commissioned by the District 
Board of Directors as a basis for restructuring water rates commencing in May 
2009. 
 







Resolution 13-13, FY 2013-2014 Water Rates 2 
June 6, 2013 
 


2.  Pursuant to the analysis and recommendations contained in the 2007 Rate 
Study, the proposed water rates are directly related to the District’s actual cost of 
providing water service and are not levied for general revenue purposes. 
 
3.  Based on the 2007 Rate Study, the proposed water rates needed to cover 
those costs of operation, repair, and maintenance costs of the District's water 
system are neither excessive nor discriminatory. 
 
4.  Proper notice of the proposed rate structure and notice of a public hearing on 
the matter has been given to all ratepayers and owners of identified parcels 
within the District, in accordance with applicable law. 
 
5.  The proposed water rates, as described in Exhibit "A", attached, were not 
protested by a majority of the persons eligible to protest said rate structure; and  
 


WHEREAS, at the May 2, 2013 Board Meeting the Board passed Resolution 13-10 
which had the above findings and Exhibit A which contained Base Rate, Water Usage, 
and Capital Debt Reduction Charges but after the meeting an error was found in the 
Water Usage Charges; and 
 
WHEREAS, Exhibit A included in this Resolution has the correct Water Usage Charges.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District adopts the following: 
 
Section 1. Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges.  
Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2013, the bi-monthly Base Rate, Water 
Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges shall be as shown in Table 1 of 
Exhibit “A”, attached. 


Section 2. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause of phrase or 
this Resolution is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
the Resolution.  The District Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have 
passed this Resolution and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase 
thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 


 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on June 6, 
2013, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           







Resolution 13-13, FY 2013-2014 Water Rates 3 
June 6, 2013 
 
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 13-13, FY 2013-2014 Water Rates 4 
June 6, 2013 
 
Exhibit A 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and 


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
 


Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2013 
 
The rates indicated below shall be effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 
2013, and these fees, rates and charges shall supercede and replace those in 
Resolution 13-10.   
 
Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Rates for 2013-14 


Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges 
    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   


  
Water Usage Charge  $    1.25   $    2.50  $    3.75  $    5.45    
  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  
Base Rate 
Charge 


Tier 1  
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge (CDRC) 
Any meter 


size  $       54.65  8 20 80 >80 $10.00 
B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; no 
meter multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 
Any meter 


size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 
2 units  $       84.71  12.4 31 124 >124  $             15.50 
3 units  $     114.77  16.8 42 168 >168  $             21.00 
4 units  $     144.82  21.2 53 212 >212  $             26.50 


C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit 
multiplier. 
Meter Size 


(in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 
0.625  $       54.65  8 20 80 >80 $10.00 


1  $     136.60  20 50 200 >200  $             25.00 
1.5  $     273.20  40 100 400 >400  $             49.95 
2  $     437.10  64 160 640 >640  $             79.95 


 







Resolution 13-13, FY 2013-2014 Water Rates 5 
June 6, 2013 
 
USER CLASSIFICATIONS. For the purposes of assessing water 
charges provided for in this exhibit, user classifications shall be as 
follows: 
1. Residential Single Family: Applicable to all accounts serving one 
detached dwelling unit. 
2. Residential Multiple Family: Applicable to all accounts serving two or more 
living units, as defined by District Policy 3010.70. 
3. Commercial and Public: Applicable, without regard to meter size, to all 
accounts serving mercantile buildings, motels and other short term lodging 
establishments, office buildings, institutional buildings, parks, schools, churches, 
and other commercial and public agency establishments. 
 
 
 





		Item IV-E - Amending Res 13-10, FY2013-2014 Water Rates

		Item IV-E.1 - Resolution 13-13 - Water Rates for FY14

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and Capital Debt Reduction Charge








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  PRESENTATION BY SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY ON 
RUSSIAN RIVER SUMMER FLOWS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation by the Sonoma County 
Water Agency (SCWA) on Russian River summer flows and provide for questions 
from meeting participants for the SCWA staff.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The dry first part of 2013 has resulted in low storage in Lake Mendocino and 
relatively low winter and spring runoff from tributaries to the Russian River.  
SCWA has received permission from the State Water Resources Control Board to 
reduce flows this summer.  SCWA staff will give a presentation on the State 
Board Order and their expectations for flow this summer in the Russian River 
and will be available for questions.   





		MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION  
13-14 AUTHORIZING WATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,000,000 AND THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF AN INDENTURE OF TRUST, A BOND PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT AND AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 13-14 which authorizes 
refinancing of District United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Bonds 
(Prior Bonds) and other related activities.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Refinancing/refunding District bonds may save District up 
to $53,059 annually.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND  


 
In the 1990 election, constituents within the District approved the 
authorization of general obligation bonds for capital improvements to the 
District’s water system.  While the 1990 general obligation bond election did 
pass, and that authorization was used for the Prior Bonds, there never was 
an ad valorem tax used to make the annual payments.  Instead, a “Flat 
Charge” was used.  Therefore, the Prior Bonds are not a true General 
Obligation Bond repaid from ad valorem property taxes, but rather a Revenue 
Bond repaid from the Flat Charge. 
  
The Prior Bonds consist of two series of loans with the USDA. The initial loan 
was for $8,000,000 at a fixed rate of 5.0% with a final maturity of 2031. 
There is $5,651,307 outstanding on this loan. The second loan was for 
$4,000,000 at a fixed rate of 4.5% with a final maturity of 2042. There is 
$3,605,000 currently outstanding on this loan.  Both USDA loans are callable 
at any time with no prepayment penalty.   
 
Given the low interest rate environment, the Prior Bonds are a refunding 
candidate.  At the Board Meeting of March 7, 2013, the Board received 







REFINANCING DISTRICT USDA BONDS 2  
June 6, 2013 
 


 


information on three proposals to refund the Prior Bonds.  At the Budget 
Committee Meeting on March 14th, the Committee reviewed the proposals 
and recommended using Brandis Tallman as underwriter, and Meyers Nave 
as Bond and Disclosure Counsel.  At the Special Board Meeting of March 21st, 
Brandis Tallman (in person) and Meyers Nave (via phone) answered 
questions and discussed the refunding process.  At the Board Meeting of April 
4th, staff was given direction to proceed with refunding the Prior Bonds (the 
“Refunding”), and contracts with Brandis Tallman and Meyers Nave were 
approved. 
 
THE REFUNDING PROCESS 
 
Throughout April and May, the financing team drafted the legal documents, 
which structure the transaction, and drafted the Preliminary Official 
Statement, which describes the credit to potential investors.  Additionally, the 
financing team and District staff worked with Standard & Poor’s Rating 
Agency to obtain a rating on the Refunding Bonds, and two bond insurers to 
obtain bond insurance for the Refunding Bonds.  Bond insurance will allow for 
the purchase of a surety bond to meet the reserve requirement rather than 
funding the reserve requirement from bond proceeds, which would be more 
expensive.  
 
Standard & Poor’s has rated the Refunding Bonds “AA-“, which is an excellent 
rating, especially for a first time issuer.  The best economic result is obtained 
if bond insurance and the surety bond are purchased from Build America 
Mutual, a AA rated bond insurer. 
 
INTEREST RATE MARKET 
 
Since the financing team presented to the Board at its special meeting of 
March 21st, interest rates have increased (see Figure 1 below). The 10-year 
National AAA GO Municipal Market Data (“MMD”) yield was 1.95% on March 
21st. On May 29th, the 10-year MMD yield was 2.07%. However, the 10-year 
MMD had dropped to 1.66% on May 1st. The largest jump in rates occurred 
since May 22nd when the 10-year MMD yield was at 1.86%. On May 22nd, 
Federal Reserve Chairman Ben Bernanke spoke to Congress and mentioned 
that the Fed may be considering tapering their asset purchase program of 
$85 billion a month, sending Treasury interest rates on a steep incline since, 
a run-up of over 20 basis points over 5 trading days. Municipal bonds have 
taken their lead from Treasury securities. 


 
 
 
 
 







REFINANCING DISTRICT USDA BONDS 3  
June 6, 2013 
 


 


REFUNDING RESULTS 
 


Based on the current Bond Market conditions, Brandis Tallman estimates the 
par amount of the 2013 Refunding Bonds to be $8,840,000. The all-in true 
interest cost is estimated to be 3.70%.  The average fiscal year savings are 
estimated to be $53,059 and total savings are $1,575,442.  Net present 
value savings are $986,113 or 10.65%.  This far exceeds the minimum 
industry standard of 3.0%.  Because the structure of the refunding is a 
Revenue Bond rather than a General Obligation bond, the savings from the 
refinancing can stay with the District. 
 
It is now appropriate to approve the refinancing agreements so that this 
transaction can go forward.  Resolution 13-14 makes this happen by authorizing 
approval of several documents: 
 


• The Official Statement is the prospectus for the bond offering. It 
discloses information to the investing public about the District, what the 
bonds are being issued for and the source of repayment for the bonds.   


• The Continuing Disclosure Agreement states that the District agrees 
to annually provide its audited financial statement to US Bank, the 
dissemination agent. US Bank will then disseminate it to the market 
place on a nationally recognized bond market website. In addition to 
the audit, there will be a check list of yes or no questions that the 
District will answer every year. A copy of this agreement is in the 
Official Statement as an appendix. 


• The Bond Purchase Contract is the agreement between the issuer 
(the District) and the underwriter. It outlines the terms of the bond sale 
such as interest rates, bond prices, and underwriter's discount (the 
underwriter’s fee). Brandis Tallman is buying the bonds from the 
District and selling them to the public.  


• The Indenture of Trust is the document that outlines the legal 
structure/framework of the bond issue.  


  
With the approval of Resolution 13-14, Brandis Tallman will move forward 
with the refinancing.  They will work with Disclosure Counsel, Henry Har, to 
finish the Preliminary Official Statement to send to the printer. That usually 
takes 1-3 days to finish, so by Tuesday, June 10, 2013, it will be printed and 
posted electronically for Brandis Tallman to email and mail hard copies to 
investors. Brandis Tallman will market the bonds for 1-2 weeks and then 
price. Brandis Tallman will have a pre-pricing call with the District General 
Manager the day before pricing to discuss the result of their pre-sale 
marketing, market conditions, and how similar bonds have been priced. 
Brandis Tallman will show the District Manager a spread sheet of sales 
comparables of water and sewer bonds that have been priced and go over 
their preliminary interest rate pricing and why they came up with the interest 







REFINANCING DISTRICT USDA BONDS 4  
June 6, 2013 
 


 


rates they are suggesting. Their pricing will be based on investor feedback 
and market conditions for pricing an insured AA water revenue bond with an 
underlying rating of AA-. 
 
The following morning, pricing day, Brandis Tallman will have their bond sale 
which will consist of a 3 hour order period for investors to call them to put in 
their bond orders.  After the order period, Brandis Tallman will have another 
call with the District Manager late morning to discuss the results of the order 
period. They will let the District know how orders came in and how the 
pricing went, and if they have to make some modifications: re-price more 
aggressively on certain maturities since they were over-subscribed (more 
orders than bonds) or have to make the rates a little higher because the 
market was moving away from the original pricing . If the market is stable 
and the order period goes moderately well (Brandis Tallman has sold 50% of 
the issue), they will then commit to buying the bonds by signing the Bond 
Purchase Contract. Once both parties sign the Contract that day, then 
Brandis Tallman owns the bonds, no matter what happens in the market.  
 
About 2 weeks after the bond sale, Brandis Tallman will close the transaction 
by working with Bond Counsel and the Trustee to set up wires so the 
proceeds of the bond sale go to the Trustee and then pay off the USDA on 
the same day.  We expect that to happen in early July.   
 
 
Figure 1: 


 







 


RESOLUTION NO. 13-14  
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 


WATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$10,000,000 AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDENTURE OF TRUST, 


A BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS 


 
 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) is duly 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California and is authorized 
pursuant to Articles 9, 10 and 11 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
Government Code of the State of California (commencing with Section 53550) to issue 
refunding bonds for the purpose of refinancing the outstanding principal amount of its 
Improvement District No. 1 General Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 1992 and 
Improvement District No. 1 General Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 2003 (collectively, 
the “Prior Obligations”); and 


WHEREAS, in order to provide funds to refinance the Prior Obligations, the 
District proposes to issue its Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Revenue 
Refunding Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $10,000,000 (the 
“Bonds”); and 


WHEREAS, the Bonds will be issued and secured pursuant to the terms of an 
Indenture of Trust (the “Indenture”), between the District and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”); and 


WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) finds that the 
refinancing of the Prior Obligations will result in substantial savings to the District; and 


WHEREAS, this Board has determined to sell the Bonds to Brandis Tallman LLC 
(the “Underwriter”) pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase 
Agreement”) for offer and sale by the Underwriter to members of the general public, and 
in connection with the offering of the Bonds, the District caused to be prepared an 
Official Statement (the “Official Statement”) describing, among other things, the District, 
the Indenture and the Bonds, a preliminary form of which is on file with the Secretary of 
the Board; and 


WHEREAS, the District has duly considered such transactions, including, without 
limitation, the Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Official Statement, and 
wishes at this time to approve said transactions in the public interests of the District. 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District, as follows: 


 
 







Section 1. Issuance of Bonds.  The Board hereby approves the issuance of 
the Bonds by the District in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 
$10,000,000 for the purposes hereinbefore described. 


Section 2. Indenture.  The President, Vice President and General Manager 
and/or their designees (the “Authorized Officers”) are each hereby authorized and 
directed to execute, for and on behalf of the District, the Indenture, in substantially the 
form filed with the Secretary of the Board, with such changes therein as any of the 
Authorized Officers shall approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the 
execution and delivery thereof. 


Section 3. Bond Purchase Agreement.  The Board hereby approves the Bond 
Purchase Agreement between the District and the Underwriter, in substantially the form 
filed with the Secretary of the Board.  The Authorized Officers are each hereby 
authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the District, to accept the offer of the 
Underwriter to purchase the Bonds as provided in the Bond Purchase Agreement and to 
execute and deliver the Bond Purchase Agreement in substantially said form, with such 
changes therein as any of the Authorized Officers shall approve, such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; provided, however, that 
such changes shall not specify a principal amount of the Bonds exceeding $10,000,000, 
a true interest cost in excess of 4.25% or result in less than 3% present value debt 
service savings. 


Section 4. Official Statement and Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The 
Board hereby approves the preliminary Official Statement describing the Bonds, the 
Indenture and the District in substantially the form filed with the Secretary of the Board.  
The Authorized Officers are each hereby authorized and directed to execute a 
certificate (“Rule 15c2-12 Certificate”), for and on behalf of the District, deeming the 
preliminary Official Statement to be final as of its date, except for certain final pricing 
and related information pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“Rule 15c2-12”).  Prior to the printing and distribution of the preliminary 
Official Statement and execution and delivery of the Rule 15c2-12 Certificate, the 
Authorized Officers may authorize such changes therein as become necessary in 
furtherance of the completeness and accuracy of the information contained therein.  
Distribution of such preliminary Official Statement to prospective purchasers of the 
Bonds is hereby approved.   


The Authorized Officers are each hereby authorized to execute, for and on behalf 
of the District, the final form of the Official Statement in substantially the form of the 
preliminary Official Statement as printed and distributed and as finalized to include the 
final pricing and related information as it may be modified by such changes therein as 
such Authorized Officer shall deem necessary, desirable or appropriate, and the 
execution of the final Official Statement by such Authorized Officer shall be conclusive 
evidence of the approval of any such changes.  Distribution of such final Official 
Statement to purchasers of the Bonds is hereby approved.   


2 
 







In addition, the Board hereby authorizes and directs each of the Authorized 
Officers to execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as required by the 
provisions of the Indenture, the form of which is included as an appendix to the Official 
Statement, to enable the Underwriter to satisfy the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 with 
respect to the Bonds. 


Section 5. Bank Qualification.  This Board, confirming that it has no present 
intention of providing for issuance of any further tax-exempt obligations of the District 
during calendar year 2013, believes that the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-
exempt obligations which will be issued by the District in calendar year 2013 will not 
exceed $10,000,000, and the Bonds are hereby designated as qualified tax-exempt 
obligations pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. 


Section 6. Further Actions. The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized to 
take all actions and execute any and all documents described in this Resolution and 
otherwise necessary or desirable to effect the execution and delivery of the Indenture 
and to make any changes to the forms of the legal documents approved in this 
Resolution as necessary or desirable to comply with the terms of municipal bond 
insurance; to change the dates and the percentages in the rate covenant and additional 
debt test contained in any documents approved at this meeting from the dates and 
percentages on the forms submitted to this meeting; and to do any and all things and to 
execute and deliver any and all documents which they may deem necessary or 
advisable in order to consummate the issuance of the Bonds and otherwise to carry out, 
give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this Resolution, the Indenture, the 
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement, 
and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.  Such actions heretofore taken by such 
officers are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.  The Authorized Officers are 
further authorized to take all actions and execute any and all documents necessary or 
desirable to refund, defease, redeem and otherwise provide for the payment of any of 
the District’s outstanding Prior Obligations which are to be refinanced in connection with 
the issuance of the Bonds. 


Section 7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect from and after the 
date of its passage and adoption. 


  


3 
 







I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on June 6, 
2013, by the following vote. 


 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 


2073383.2  


4 
 







 


MEYERS NAVE DRAFT – 5/30/13 
 


PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED _____________, 2013 
 
NEW ISSUE - BOOK-ENTRY ONLY  RATINGS:  S&P:  “___” (Insured Bonds Only) 
 “AA-” (Underlying) 


(See “RATINGS” herein.) 


In the opinion of Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson, A Professional Law Corporation, Bond 
Counsel to the District, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court 
decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance 
with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is exempt from 
State of California personal income taxes. In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds 
is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual and corporate alternative 
minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current 
earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Bond Counsel expresses no 
opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual 
or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. The District has designated the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt 
obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  See 
“TAX MATTERS” herein. 


 
$________ 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
(COUNTY OF SONOMA, CALIFORNIA) 


WATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
SERIES 2013 


(BANK QUALIFIED) 
 
 


Dated:  Date of Delivery Due: September 1, as shown on inside cover 


The Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (the 
“Bonds”) are being issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2013 (the “Indenture”) 
between the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) and U.S. Bank National Association (the 
“Trustee”), and will be secured as described herein.  The Bonds are being issued (i) to provide funds to 
refinance certain obligations of the District; (ii) to purchase a reserve fund policy for the Bonds; and (iii) to 
pay certain costs of issuing the Bonds.  Definitions of certain capitalized terms herein are contained in 
APPENDIX A hereto, and are incorporated herein by reference.   


The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form, initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., New 
York, New York, as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York.  Interest 
on the Bonds will be payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 
2013, and principal of the Bonds will be paid on the dates set forth in the maturity schedule on inside 
cover hereof.  Beneficial owners of the Bonds will not receive physical certificates representing the Bonds 
purchased but will receive a credit on the books of the nominees of such purchasers. So long as Cede & 
Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, payments of principal and interest will be paid by the Trustee to 
DTC for subsequent disbursement to its participants who will remit such payments to the beneficial 
owners of the Bonds. 


Payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds (the “Debt Service Payments”) are payable 
from Net Revenues of the District’s Water System.  The Debt Service Payments are a special limited 
obligation of the District, payable from and secured by a pledge of and first lien on all Net Revenues, 
subject to the parity lien, if any, of any Parity Obligations as provided for in the Indenture (as described 
herein).   







 


The Bonds are subject to optional redemption, mandatory sinking fund redemption and 
extraordinary casualty redemption prior to maturity as set forth herein.  See “THE BONDS -- 
Redemption of the Bonds” herein. 


THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE DISTRICT PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND 
SECURED SOLELY BY THE NET REVENUES PLEDGED THEREFOR IN THE INDENTURE AND ARE 
NOT SECURED BY A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF, OR CHARGE OR LIEN UPON ANY 
PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT, OR ANY OF THE DISTRICT’S INCOME OR RECEIPTS, EXCEPT THE 
NET REVENUES.  THE BONDS ARE NOT A DEBT OF THE DISTRICT, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
OR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS AND NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE 
DISTRICT, THE STATE NOR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS ARE PLEDGED TO THE 
PAYMENT OF THE BONDS, AND THE DISTRICT IS NOT OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY 
FORM OF TAXATION THEREFOR.  NEITHER THE BONDS NOR THE OBLIGATION TO MAKE DEBT 
SERVICE PAYMENTS CONSTITUTES AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE DISTRICT, THE STATE OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR 
STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION. 


[The scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds maturing on September 1, 
20__ through September 1, 20__, inclusive (the “Insured Bonds”) when due will be guaranteed under an 
insurance policy (the “Insurance Policy”) to be issued concurrently with the delivery of Bonds by 
[INSURER].  The Bonds maturing on September 1, 20__ through September 1, 20__, inclusive, are 
not covered by the Insurance Policy.] 


[INSURER LOGO] 


This cover page contains information for general reference only.  It is not a summary of 
the security or terms of this issue.  Investors must read the entire Official Statement, including the 
section entitled “RISK FACTORS,” for a discussion of special factors which should be 
considered, in addition to the other matters set forth herein, in considering the investment quality 
of the Bonds.   


The Bonds are offered when, as and if sold and issued, subject to the approval as to their legality 
by Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson, A Professional Law Corporation, San Francisco, California, 
Bond Counsel.  Certain legal matters will be passed on by Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson, A 
Professional Law Corporation, as general counsel and as Disclosure Counsel to the District.  It is 
anticipated that the Bonds in book-entry form, will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC in 
New York, New York, on or about _________, 2013. 


BRANDIS TALLMAN LLC 


Date: _________, 2013 







 


 
 


MATURITY SCHEDULE 
 
 


Maturity Date 
(September 1) 


Principal 
 Amount  


Interest 
  Rate   


 
 Yield  


 
CUSIP®


 


                                                                         


2013     
2014     
2015     
2016     
2017     
2018     
2019     
2020     
2021     
2022     
2023     
2024     
2025     
2026     
2027     
2028     
2029     
2030     
2031     
2032     
2033     


 
 


$_______ ___% Term Bonds due September 1, 20__, Price ____%, Yield ____% 
CUSIP® : _________ 


 
$_______ ___% Term Bonds due September 1, 20__, Price ____%, Yield ____% 


CUSIP® : _________


 
 
[*  Insured Bonds.] 
® CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association.  CUSIP data herein are 
provided by Standard & Poor's CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., 
and are provided for convenience of reference only.  Neither the District nor the Underwriter assumes any 
responsibility for the accuracy of these CUSIP data. 







 


[INSERT VICINITY MAP OF GUERNEVILLE]







 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS 


Richard Holmer, President 
Victoria Wikle, Vice President 


Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator 
Sukey Robb-Wilder, Director 


Gaylord Schaap, Director 
 


DISTRICT STAFF 


Steve Mack, General Manager 
Julie A. Kenny, Secretary 


 


SPECIAL SERVICES 
 


Bond and Disclosure Counsel 
Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson,  


A Professional Law Corporation 
San Francisco, California 


 
 


Trustee 
U.S. Bank National Association 


San Francisco, California 
 
 


District General Counsel 
Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson,  


A Professional Law Corporation 
Santa Rosa, California 


 







 


No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the 
District or the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than 
those contained herein and, if given or made, such other information or representations must 
not be relied upon as having been authorized by the District or the Underwriter.  This Official 
Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall 
there be any sale of the Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such 
person to make such an offer, solicitation or sale.  This Official Statement is not to be 
construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds.  Statements contained in this 
Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion, whether or not 
expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as 
representations of fact. 


The information set forth herein has been obtained from the District and other 
sources which are believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or 
completeness, and is not to be construed as a representation by the Underwriter.  The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as 
part of, its responsibilities under federal securities laws, as applied to the facts and 
circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or 
completeness of such information.  The information and expressions of opinions herein are 
subject to change without notice and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale 
made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there have not 
been any changes in the affairs of the District since the date hereof.  All summaries of the 
documents are made subject to the provisions of such documents, respectively, and do not 
purport to be complete statements of any or all of such provisions.  This Official Statement is 
submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds referred to herein and may not be 
reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose. 


[[INSURER] (“___”) makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the 
advisability of investing in the Bonds.  In addition, ___ has not independently verified, makes no 
representation regarding, and does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or 
completeness of this Official Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or 
omitted herefrom, other than with respect to the accuracy of the information regarding ___ 
supplied by ___ and presented under the heading “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE” and in 
APPENDIX G – “SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY.”] 


IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE BONDS, THE 
UNDERWRITER MAY EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE 
MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE 
PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET.  SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE 
DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.  THE UNDERWRITER MAY OFFER AND SELL THE BONDS 
TO CERTAIN DEALERS AND DEALER BANKS AND BANKS ACTING AS AGENT AT PRICES 
LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICE STATED ON THE COVER PAGE HEREOF.  
THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICE MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE 
UNDERWRITER. 







 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................................... 1 


General ...................................................................................................................................... 1 
The District................................................................................................................................. 1 
Purpose ..................................................................................................................................... 1 
Security for the Bonds ............................................................................................................... 2 
Risk Factors............................................................................................................................... 2 
Limited Obligations .................................................................................................................... 3 
Forward-Looking Statements.....................................................................................................3 
Summaries Not Definitive .......................................................................................................... 3 


THE REFUNDING PLAN .............................................................................................................. 4 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE....................................................................................................... 4 
THE BONDS ................................................................................................................................. 4 


Description of the Bonds............................................................................................................ 4 
Redemption of the Bonds .......................................................................................................... 5 
Issuance of Parity Obligations ................................................................................................... 7 
Book-Entry Only System............................................................................................................ 8 


ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS ........................................................................ 9 
DEBT SERVICE.......................................................................................................................... 10 
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ................................................................................................... 11 


General .................................................................................................................................... 11 
Pledge of Net Revenues.......................................................................................................... 11 
Debt Service Payments ........................................................................................................... 12 
Rate Covenant......................................................................................................................... 13 
Reserve Fund .......................................................................................................................... 13 
Bond Insurance........................................................................................................................ 14 
Application of Gross Revenues ............................................................................................... 14 


MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE............................................................................................... 15 
Insurance Policy ...................................................................................................................... 15 
Insurer...................................................................................................................................... 16 


THE DISTRICT AND THE WATER SYSTEM............................................................................. 16 
General Information ................................................................................................................. 16 
Water Storage and Distribution System................................................................................... 16 
Sources of Water Supply ......................................................................................................... 16 
Historical Water Deliveries....................................................................................................... 17 
Water Demand and Demand Management ............................................................................. 17 
District Reserve Policy............................................................................................................. 18 
Environmental and Regulatory Issues Relating to the Water System ..................................... 18 
Projected Maintenance and Capital Improvements ................................................................. 18 
Customer Base........................................................................................................................ 19 
Water Rates and Charges ....................................................................................................... 21 
Billing, Collection and Delinquencies....................................................................................... 23 


WATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL INFORMATION ......................................................................... 24 
Financial Statements ............................................................................................................... 24 
Historical Revenues and Expenses ......................................................................................... 25 
Historical Revenues, Expenses and Debt Service Coverage.................................................. 26 
Projected Revenues, Expenses and Debt Service Coverage ................................................. 27 


i 
 







 


ii 
 


RISK FACTORS ......................................................................................................................... 28 
General .................................................................................................................................... 28 
Limited Obligations .................................................................................................................. 28 
Water System Demand and Growth ........................................................................................ 28 
Water System Expenses ......................................................................................................... 28 
Environmental Laws and Regulations ..................................................................................... 28 
Parity Obligations..................................................................................................................... 29 
Geologic, Topographic and Climatic Considerations............................................................... 29 
Proposition 218........................................................................................................................ 29 
Constitutional Limit on Appropriations, Fees and Charges...................................................... 30 
Limited Recourse on Default ................................................................................................... 31 
Limitations on Remedies Available; Bankruptcy...................................................................... 31 
No Obligation to Tax................................................................................................................ 31 
Change in Law......................................................................................................................... 31 
Impact of State Budget ............................................................................................................ 31 
Secondary Market for Bonds ................................................................................................... 32 
Loss of Tax Exemption ............................................................................................................ 32 
IRS Audit of Tax-Exempt Issues.............................................................................................. 32 
Insurer Default ......................................................................................................................... 33 


TAX MATTERS........................................................................................................................... 34 
BANK QUALIFIED ...................................................................................................................... 36 
NO LITIGATION.......................................................................................................................... 36 
RATINGS .................................................................................................................................... 36 
PROFESSIONAL FEES..............................................................................................................37 
CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS...................................................................................................... 37 
UNDERWRITING........................................................................................................................ 37 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION .................................................................................................... 38 
 
APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE .................................................................. A-1 
APPENDIX B – GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE COUNTY OF SONOMA ....... B-1 
APPENDIX C – AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT FOR 


FISCAL YEAR 2011-12 .................................................................................. C-1 
APPENDIX D – FORM OF FINAL OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL......................................... D-1 
APPENDIX E – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT ............................... E-1 
APPENDIX F – BOOK ENTRY PROVISIONS...........................................................................F-1 
[APPENDIX G – SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY ...............................G-1] 







OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
 


$________ 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


(COUNTY OF SONOMA, CALIFORNIA) 
WATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 


SERIES 2013 
(BANK QUALIFIED) 


INTRODUCTION 


General 


The purpose of this Official Statement of Sweetwater Springs Water District (the 
“District”) is to furnish information regarding the issuance and sale of $________ principal 
amount of Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 
(the “Bonds”) pursuant to the provisions of an Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2013 (the 
“Indenture”) between the District and U.S. Bank National Association (the “Trustee”).  The 
Bonds will be issued pursuant to the provisions of Articles 9, 10 and 11, Chapter 3, Part 1, 
Division 2, Title 5 (commencing with Section 53550) of the California Government Code, as 
amended (the “Bond Law”), and a resolution of the District adopted June [6], 2013 (the 
“Resolution”).   


The District  


The District was formed in 1988 for purposes of purchasing the water supply and 
distribution system from Citizen Utilities Company.  The District is located in the 
unincorporated towns of Guerneville, Rio Nido, Monte Rio and Villa Grande and serves 
approximately 2,000 acres in the lower Russian River Basin of Sonoma County (the “County”).  


The District is the sole provider of water service for residential, commercial, industrial 
and agricultural customers within its service area.  Approximately 95% of District connections 
are residential users.   


For other information concerning the District and the Water System, see “THE 
DISTRICT AND THE WATER SYSTEM” herein.  A copy of the audited financial statements of 
the District for the year ended June 30, 2012 is attached hereto as APPENDIX C. 


For other selected demographic and economic information, see “APPENDIX B - 
GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE COUNTY OF SONOMA” hereto.   


Purpose 


The Bonds are being issued by the District to (i) refund the District’s Improvement 
District No. 1 General Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 1992, issued in the original principal 
amount of $8,000,000, of which $5,680,000 is currently outstanding, and Improvement District 
No. 1 General Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 2003, issued in the original principal amount of 
$4,000,000, of which $3,605,000 is currently outstanding (collectively, the “Prior Obligations”), 
(ii) purchase a reserve fund policy for the Bonds, and (iii) pay certain costs of issuance of the 
Bonds (including expenses incurred in connection with the refunding of the Prior Obligations).  







 


See “THE REFUNDING PLAN” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” herein.  
The Prior Obligations were issued to finance the acquisition and improvements to the water 
system (the “Water System”).  See “THE DISTRICT AND THE WATER SYSTEM” herein for a 
description of the Water System.   


Security for the Bonds 


The Bonds are payable from, and secured by a lien on, the Net Revenues (as described 
in “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - General” herein), and from certain interest and other income 
derived from certain funds and accounts held under the Indenture.  Under the Indenture, the 
District has irrevocably pledged all Net Revenues to the payment of the Debt Service Payments, 
subject to the terms and conditions of the Indenture.  Net Revenues are held in the Debt Service 
Fund of the District under the Indenture.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” herein.   


The District is authorized to issue additional Parity Obligations secured by the Net 
Revenues with a lien on a parity basis with the lien of the Bonds, provided it complies with 
certain provisions in the Indenture.  Payment of the Debt Service Payments is on a parity with 
the obligation of the District to make payments on bonds issued in connection with loans made 
to the District by the State Department of Water Resources in the original principal amount of 
$2,870,000, of which $1,318,112 is currently outstanding (the “DWR Loans”) and installment 
sale agreement held by Citizens Business Bank in the original principal amount of $3,000,000, 
of which $2,546,821 is currently outstanding (the “Citizens Installment Sale”). 


See also “THE BONDS – Issuance of Parity Obligations” herein for a description of the 
conditions upon which the District may issue additional obligations with a lien on parity with the 
lien on Net Revenues. 


Pursuant to the Indenture, the District has covenanted to fix, prescribe and collect 
certain rates and charges for service provided by the Water System.  See “SECURITY FOR 
THE BONDS - Rate Covenant” herein. 


[Payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds maturing on September 1, 20__ 
through September 1, 20__, inclusive (the “Insured Bonds”) when due will be guaranteed 
under a municipal bond insurance policy (the “Insurance Policy”) to be issued by [INSURER] 
(the “Insurer”) simultaneously with the issuance of the Insured Bonds.  The Bonds maturing 
on September 1, 20__ through September 1, 20__, inclusive, are not covered by the 
Insurance Policy.  See “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE” and “RISK FACTORS – Insurer 
Default” herein.] 


Risk Factors 


There can be no assurance that the local demand for the services provided by the 
Water System will be maintained at levels described in this Official Statement, or that the 
District’s expenses for operating and maintaining the Water System will be consistent with the 
levels described in this Official Statement.  Changes in technology, new regulatory 
requirements, increases in the cost of energy or other expenses would reduce Net Revenues, 
and could require substantial increases in rates or charges in order to comply with the rate 
covenant.  Such rate increases could increase the likelihood of nonpayment. 


See “RISK FACTORS” herein for a discussion of special factors which should be 
considered, in addition to the other matters set forth herein, in considering the investment 


2 
 







 


quality of the Bonds, including a discussion of the impact of Proposition 218, Constitutional 
limits on fees and charges, seismic considerations, limitation on remedies and changes in law.   


Limited Obligations 


THE OBLIGATION OF THE DISTRICT TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 
THE BONDS IS A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE DISTRICT AND IS NOT SECURED BY A 
LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF, OR CHARGE OR LIEN UPON, ANY PROPERTY OF 
THE DISTRICT OR ANY OF ITS INCOME OR RECEIPTS, EXCEPT THE NET REVENUES 
PLEDGED UNDER THE INDENTURE.  THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT IS 
NOT PLEDGED FOR THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS 
AND NO TAX OR OTHER SOURCE OF FUNDS, OTHER THAN THE NET REVENUES AND 
CERTAIN OTHER AMOUNTS ON DEPOSIT UNDER THE INDENTURE, ARE PLEDGED TO 
PAY THE INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF THE BONDS.  THE PAYMENT OF THE 
PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE 
A DEBT, LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE DISTRICT, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR 
ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF FOR WHICH ANY SUCH ENTITY IS OBLIGATED 
TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION OR FOR WHICH ANY SUCH ENTITY HAS 
LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY FORM OF TAXATION. 


Forward-Looking Statements 


This Official Statement contains forward-looking statements, including (i) statements 
containing projections of Net Revenues and other financial items, (ii) statements of future 
economic performance of the Water System, and (iii) statements of the assumptions underlying 
or relating to statements described in (i) and (ii) above, (collectively, the “Forward-Looking 
Statements”).  All statements other than statements of historical facts included in this Official 
Statement, including without limitation statements under “THE DISTRICT AND THE WATER 
SYSTEM,” and “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” regarding the financial position, capital 
resources and status of the District and the Water System are Forward-Looking Statements.  
Although the District believes that the expectations reflected in such Forward-Looking 
Statements are reasonable, no assurance can be given that such expectations will prove to be 
correct.  Important factors which could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations 
of the District (collectively, the “Cautionary Statements”) are disclosed in this Official Statement.  
All Forward-Looking Statements attributable to the District are expressly qualified in their 
entirety by the Cautionary Statements. 


Summaries Not Definitive 


Definitions of certain capitalized terms herein are contained in APPENDIX A hereto, and 
are incorporated herein by reference.  Definitions of certain terms used in this Official 
Statement, and the summaries of and references contained herein to the Indenture, the Bonds, 
the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, statutes and other documents do not purport to be 
comprehensive or definitive and are qualified by reference to each such document, instrument 
or statute.   


Copies of the documents described herein will be available at the office of the District, 
17081 Highway 116, Suite B, P.O. Box 48, Guerneville, CA 95446. 


3 
 







 


THE REFUNDING PLAN 


The District is issuing the Bonds, in part, to provide moneys necessary to redeem in full 
the Prior Obligations.  Such portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be transferred to the 
United States Department of Agriculture, which is the holder of the Prior Obligations, and upon 
such transfer, the Prior Obligations will be redeemed in full.   


CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 


The District has covenanted, pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as 
of July 1, 2013 (the “Disclosure Agreement”), for the benefit of holders and beneficial owners of 
the Bonds to provide, or cause to be provided, certain financial information and operating data 
relating to the District by not later than March 1 in each year following the end of the District’s 
Fiscal Year (which currently would be June 30), commencing with the report for the Fiscal Year 
ended June 30, 2013 (the “Annual Report”), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain 
enumerated events, if material.  The Annual Report and notices of material events will be filed 
by the District with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  The specific nature of the 
information to be contained in the Annual Report or the notices of material events is 
summarized below in “APPENDIX E.”  These covenants have been made in order to assist the 
Underwriter in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) (the “Rule”).  Within the past five years, the 
District has not been subject to any continuing disclosure obligations, and therefore has not 
failed to file in a timely manner its audits and the annual reports, as required by the Rule.  The 
District has retained U.S. Bank National Association, as dissemination agent, to assist with its 
continuing disclosure obligations under the Disclosure Agreement. 


THE BONDS 


Description of the Bonds 


The Bonds shall be delivered in the form of fully registered Bonds, without coupons, in 
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and shall be dated the date of initial 
delivery thereof.  The Bonds will mature on the dates and in the amounts set forth on the front 
cover of this Official Statement.  The Bonds, when issued, will be registered in the name of 
Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, 
New York (“DTC”).  So long as DTC, or Cede & Co. as its nominee, is the registered owner of 
all Bonds, all payments on the Bonds will be made directly to DTC, and disbursement of such 
payments to the DTC Participants (defined below) will be the responsibility of DTC, and 
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners (defined below) will be the 
responsibility of the DTC Participants, as more fully described hereinafter.  See “Book-Entry 
Only System” below. 


Interest on the Bonds shall be payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year, 
commencing September 1, 2013, and continuing to and including the date of maturity or prior 
redemption, whichever is earlier.  Principal of the Bonds shall become payable on September 1 
in each of the years and in the amounts set forth on the inside cover page of this Official 
Statement.  Principal and premium, if any, of the Bonds shall be payable upon presentation and 
surrender thereof at the corporate trust office of the Trustee in San Francisco, California.  
Interest on the Bonds shall be based on a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months and 
shall be payable by check from the Trustee mailed on each Interest Payment Date by first class 
mail to the registered Owners as of the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month 
(whether or not such day is a Business Day) preceding an Interest Payment Date (the “Record 


4 
 







 


Date”) at their addresses shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee.  Upon the 
written request from any Owner of Bonds aggregating at least $1,000,000 in principal amount, 
received on or prior to the fifteenth day of the month preceding an applicable Interest Payment 
Date, by wire in Federal Reserve funds to an account within the United States on the Interest 
Payment Date, with regard to which such payment is made.  See “Book-Entry Only System” 
below for a description of how interest and principal will be paid while the Book-Entry System is 
in effect. 


Redemption of the Bonds  


Optional Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on September 1, 20__, are subject to 
redemption prior to their stated maturity, at the option of the District, in whole, or in part by lot 
(in such amounts and of such maturities as may be specified by the District, or if the District 
fails to designate such maturities, in inverse order of maturity, and by lot within a maturity) on 
any date on or after September 1, 20__, from any source of available moneys, at a redemption 
price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus interest accrued thereon to 
the date fixed for redemption. 


Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.  The Term Bond maturing on September 1, 
20__ is subject to mandatory redemption in part by lot on September 1 in each year 
commencing September 1, 20__ at the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus 
accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption in accordance with the following 
schedule: 
 


Term Bond Maturing September 1, 20__ 
 


Date 
(September 1)


 
Amount  


  
  
  
  


_______________ 
† Maturity 


The Term Bond maturing on September 1, 20__ is subject to mandatory redemption in 
part by lot on September 1 in each year commencing September 1, 20__ at the principal 
amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption in accordance with the following schedule: 
 


Term Bond Maturing September 1, 20__ 
 


Date 
(September 1)


 
Amount  


  
  
  
  


_______________ 
† Maturity 


5 
 







 


If some but not all of such Term Bonds have been redeemed pursuant to optional 
redemption described above the total amount of all future sinking fund payments shall be 
reduced by the aggregate principal amount of such Term Bonds so redeemed, to be allocated 
among such sinking fund payments on a pro rata basis as determined by the District. 


Extraordinary Casualty Redemption.  The Bonds are subject to redemption, in whole 
or in part on any date, from the Net Proceeds of insurance or condemnation with respect to the 
Water System, which Net Proceeds are deposited in the Payment Fund and credited towards 
the prepayment of the Debt Service Payments, at a redemption price equal to the principal 
amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for 
redemption, without premium. 


Purchase in Lieu of Redemption.  In lieu, or partially in lieu, of such call and 
redemption, moneys of the District may be used to purchase Outstanding Bonds prior to the 
selection of Bonds for redemption by the Trustee, at public or private sale as and when and at 
such prices as the District may in its discretion determine but only at prices (including brokerage 
or other expenses) of not more than par plus applicable accrued interest and redemption 
premiums, and any accrued interest payable upon the purchase of Bonds may be paid from the 
amount in the Payment Fund for payment of interest on the following Interest Payment Date. 


Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  In the event that part, but not all, of the Bonds 
are to be redeemed (other than pursuant to sinking fund redemption), the Bonds to be 
redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee among maturities as designated in writing by the 
District and by lot within a maturity; provided, however, that, as shall be set forth in a Certificate 
of the District, the Bonds may be redeemed by any maturity or maturities selected by the 
District, and by lot within a maturity.  Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, in any such partial 
redemption the Trustee shall call the Bonds in integral multiples of $5,000.  In the event of a 
redemption for which the Trustee does not have monies available to redeem the entire amount 
scheduled for redemption, the Trustee shall redeem Bonds of the applicable maturity or 
maturities by lot up to a principal amount equal to the available monies. 


Notice of Redemption.  The Trustee shall give notice (the “Redemption Notice”), at the 
expense of the District, of the redemption of the Bonds not less than 20 or more than 60 days 
prior to the redemption date to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed to the 
address shown on the Bond Register. 


Such Redemption Notice shall specify:  (a) the Bonds or designated portions thereof (in 
the case of redemption of the Bonds in part but not in whole) which are to be redeemed, (b) the 
date of redemption, (c) the place or places where the redemption will be made, including the 
name and address of any paying agent, (d) the redemption price, (e) the CUSIP numbers (if 
any) assigned to the Bonds to be redeemed, (f) if less than all the Bonds of a maturity are to be 
redeemed, the certificate numbers of the Bonds to be redeemed and, in the case of any Bond to 
be redeemed in part only, the amount of such Bond to be redeemed, and (g) the original issue 
date, interest rate and stated maturity date of each Bond to be redeemed in whole or in part.  
Such Redemption Notice shall further state that on the specified date there shall become due 
and payable upon each Bond or portion thereof being redeemed the redemption price, together 
with interest accrued to the redemption date, and that from and after such date interest with 
respect thereto shall cease to accrue and be payable.  Neither failure to receive any 
Redemption Notice nor any defect in such Redemption Notice so given shall affect the 
sufficiency of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bonds.   


6 
 







 


Prior to the date that the redemption notice for optional redemption under the Indenture 
is first mailed as aforesaid, (a) funds shall be placed with the Trustee to pay the principal of 
such Bonds, the accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date and the premium, 
if any, thereon, or (b) such notice of redemption shall state that any redemption is conditional on 
such funds being deposited with the Trustee on the redemption date and that failure to make 
such a deposit shall not constitute an event of default under the Indenture.  If such conditions 
are not satisfied or such funds are not so deposited by such date, such Bonds shall not be 
subject to redemption and the holders thereof shall have the same rights as if no such notice 
had been given.  In such event, the Bond Trustee shall promptly give notice thereof to the 
owners of such Bonds by first class mail, postage prepaid.   


Effect of Redemption.  If, on said redemption date, moneys sufficient for the 
redemption of all the Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest to said redemption date shall 
be held by the Trustee so as to be available therefor on such redemption date, and, if notice of 
redemption thereof shall have been given as aforesaid, then, from and after said redemption 
date, interest with respect to the portion of Bonds to be redeemed shall cease to accrue and 
become payable.  If said moneys shall not be so available on said redemption date, interest with 
respect to such portion of Bonds shall continue to be payable until paid at the same rates as 
they would have been payable had they not been called for redemption. 


Issuance of Parity Obligations 


The District has covenanted in the Indenture that, except for bonds issued to fully or 
partially refund the Bonds or Parity Obligations, the District will not issue or incur any Parity 
Obligations unless: 


(i)  The District is not in default under the terms of the Indenture; and 


(ii)  Net Revenues, calculated on sound accounting principles, as shown by the 
books of the District for the latest Fiscal Year or any more recent twelve (12) month period 
selected by the District ending not more than sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the 
resolution pursuant to which instrument such Parity Obligation is issued or incurred, as shown 
by the books of the District, plus, at the option of the District, the additional allowance described 
below, shall have amounted to at least 1.25 times the sum of the Debt Service Payments 
coming due and payable in any future Fiscal Year and the annual debt service for such Fiscal 
Year on all Parity Obligations outstanding immediately subsequent to the incurring of such 
additional obligations in the Fiscal Year in which such sum is the greatest.  


Either or both of the following items may be added to such Net Revenues for the 
purpose of applying the restriction contained in subsection (ii) above:  


(A) an allowance for Net Revenues from any additions to or improvements or 
extensions of the Water System to be constructed or acquired with the proceeds of such 
additional obligations, and also for Net Revenues from any such additions, improvements or 
extensions which have been constructed or acquired from moneys from any source but which, 
during all or any part of such Fiscal Year or 12-month period, were not in service, all in an 
amount equal to the estimated additional annual Net Revenues to be derived from such 
additions, improvements and extensions during the first full Fiscal Year following the completion 
thereof, all as shown by a certificate of the District, may be added to such Net Revenues for the 
purpose of applying the restriction contained in subsection (ii) above;  


7 
 







 


(B) an allowance for earnings arising from any increase in the charges made 
for service from the Water System which has become effective prior to the incurring of such 
additional obligations but which, during all or any part of such Fiscal Year or 12-month period, 
was not in effect, in an amount equal to 100% of the amount by which the Net Revenues would 
have been increased if such increase in charges had been in effect during the whole of such 
Fiscal Year or 12-month period, as shown by a certificate of the District. 


The provisions of subsection (ii) above will not apply to any Parity Obligations if all of the 
proceeds of which (other than proceeds applied to pay costs of issuing such Parity Obligations 
and to make the reserve fund deposit required pursuant to subsection (iii) above) will be 
deposited in an irrevocable escrow held in cash or invested in Federal Securities for the 
purpose of paying the principal of and interest and premium (if any) on any Outstanding Bonds 
or on any outstanding Parity Obligations, if (i) at the time of the incurring of such Parity 
Obligations, the District certifies in writing that maximum annual debt service on such Parity 
Obligations will not exceed Maximum Annual Debt Service on the Outstanding Bonds or Parity 
Obligations to be refunded, and (ii) the final maturity of such Parity Obligations is not later than 
the final maturity of the refunded Bonds or Parity Obligations. 


In order to maintain the parity relationship of the Debt Service Payments to all Parity 
Obligations permitted under the Indenture, the District has covenanted in the Indenture that all 
payments in the nature of principal and interest with respect to any Parity Obligations, except 
with respect to Governmental Loans, will be structured to occur semi-annually on the Due Dates 
and in each year as such payments are due with respect to the Debt Service Payments, and to 
otherwise structure the terms of such Parity Obligations to ensure that they are in all respects 
payable on a parity with the Debt Service Payments and not prior thereto; provided that the 
District will not make a payment on such Governmental Loan to the extent it would have the 
effect of causing the District to fail to pay Debt Service Payments on a timely basis.  In such 
event, the District will make Debt Service Payments and payments on such Governmental Loan 
on a pro rata basis. 


If interest on any Parity Obligation is reasonably anticipated to be reimbursed to or on 
behalf of the District by the United States of America, then interest payments with respect to 
such Parity Obligations will be excluded by the amount of such interest reasonably anticipated 
to be paid or reimbursed by the United States of America, and such reimbursements will not be 
included as Gross Revenues for purposes of the coverage calculations required in subsection 
(ii) above. 


Subordinate Obligations.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in the Indenture will 
be construed as prohibiting the issuance by the District of subordinated debt secured by Net 
Revenues. 


Book-Entry Only System 


DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-
registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee).  One fully-
registered Bond will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal 
amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.  See “APPENDIX F - BOOK ENTRY 
PROVISIONS” herein. 


Neither the District nor the Trustee can and do not give any assurances that DTC, DTC 
Participants or others will distribute payments of principal, interest or premium with respect to 


8 
 







 


the Bonds paid to DTC or its nominee as the registered owner, or will distribute any redemption 
notices or other notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that they will do so on a timely basis or will 
serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement.  Neither the District nor the 
Trustee are responsible or liable for the failure of DTC or any DTC Participant to make any 
payment or give any notice to a Beneficial Owner with respect to the Bonds or an error or delay 
relating thereto. 


ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 


The proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds are to be applied as follows: 


Sources of Funds: 


 Principal Amount of Bonds  
 Net Original Issue Premium  
 TOTAL SOURCES  
Uses of Funds:  


 Refund Prior Obligations(1)  
 Costs of Issuance(2)  
 TOTAL USES  
_______________ 
(1)   See “THE REFUNDING PLAN” above. 
(2)  Includes fees of Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and Trustee, Underwriter’s discount, 


premium for the Insurance Policy and Reserve Fund Insurance Policy, and other costs of 
issuing the Bonds. 


9 
 







 


DEBT SERVICE 


The following illustrates the annual debt service for the Bonds as of September 1 of each 
year.   


Period Ending 
(September 1) 


Principal
 


 Interest
 


Total Debt 
Service


 


 


2013    
2014    
2015    
2016    
2017    
2018    
2019    
2020    
2021    
2022    
2023    
2024    
2025    
2026    
2027    
2028    
2029    
2030    
2031    
2032    
2033    
2034    
2035    
2036    
2037    
2038    
2039    
2040    
2041    
2042    


TOTALS    


10 
 







 


SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 
General 


THE OBLIGATION OF THE DISTRICT TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 
THE BONDS IS A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE DISTRICT AND IS NOT SECURED BY A 
LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF, OR CHARGE OR LIEN UPON, ANY PROPERTY OF 
THE DISTRICT OR ANY OF ITS INCOME OR RECEIPTS, EXCEPT THE NET REVENUES 
PLEDGED UNDER THE INDENTURE.  THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE DISTRICT IS 
NOT PLEDGED FOR THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS 
AND NO TAX OR OTHER SOURCE OF FUNDS, OTHER THAN THE NET REVENUES AND 
CERTAIN OTHER AMOUNTS ON DEPOSIT UNDER THE INDENTURE, ARE PLEDGED TO 
PAY THE INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF THE BONDS.  THE PAYMENT OF THE 
PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE 
A DEBT, LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE DISTRICT, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR 
ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF FOR WHICH ANY SUCH ENTITY IS OBLIGATED 
TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION OR FOR WHICH ANY SUCH ENTITY HAS 
LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY FORM OF TAXATION. 


 
Pledge of Net Revenues 


The Bonds are secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues received by the District from 
the operation of the Water System, as those terms are defined below and upon all money and 
securities on deposit in certain accounts under the Indenture, including the Reserve Fund.  The 
obligation of the District to make Debt Service Payments from Net Revenues is absolute and 
unconditional, and until such time as all Debt Service Payments shall have been fully paid and 
the Bonds are no longer Outstanding (or provision for the payment thereof shall have been 
made), the District will not, under any circumstances, discontinue, abate or suspend any 
payment due under the Indenture when due, whether or not the Water System is operating or 
operable or has been completed, or whether or not the Water System is condemned, damaged, 
destroyed or seized or its use is suspended, interfered with, reduced or curtailed or terminated 
in whole or in part, and such payments shall not be subject to reduction whether by offset, 
counterclaim, defense, recoupment, abatement, suspension, deferment or otherwise and shall 
not be conditional upon the performance or nonperformance by any party of any agreement or 
covenant contained in the Indenture for any cause whatsoever. 


All Net Revenues are irrevocably pledged by the District to the payment of Debt 
Service Payments and debt service on Parity Obligations (including payments securing the 
DWR Loans and Citizens Installment Sale) as provided in the Indenture, and the Net 
Revenues shall not be used for any other purpose while any of the Bonds remain Outstanding; 
provided, however, that out of the Net Revenues, there may be apportioned such sums for 
such purposes as are expressly permitted by the Indenture, including payment of debt service 
on any Parity Obligations.  This pledge shall constitute a first lien on the Net Revenues for the 
payment of the Debt Service Payments and debt service on any Parity Obligations in 
accordance with the Indenture.  The Bonds are not secured by a direct lien on the Water 
System or any other property of the District. 


In the Indenture, the District covenants that, so long as any Bonds are outstanding, the 
District will not issue or incur any obligations payable from Gross Revenues or Net Revenues 
superior to the payment of the Debt Service Payments or Parity Obligations.  The District is 
authorized to issue additional Parity Obligations secured by Net Revenues with a lien on a 
parity basis with the lien of the Bonds, provided it complies with certain provisions in the 


11 
 







 


Indenture.  See “THE BONDS – Issuance of Parity Obligations” herein.  The District is also 
authorized to issue subordinate debt secured by Net Revenues. 


“Net Revenues” are, for any period, an amount equal to all of the Gross Revenues 
received during such period minus the amount required to pay all Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses becoming payable during such period.    


“Operation and Maintenance Expenses” means the reasonable and necessary costs 
and expenses paid by the District to maintain and operate the Water System, including but not 
limited to (a) costs of electricity and other forms of energy supplied to the Water System, (b) 
the reasonable expenses of management and repair and other costs and expenses necessary 
to maintain and preserve the Water System in good repair and working order, and (c) the 
reasonable administrative costs of the District attributable to the operation and maintenance of 
the Water System. Operation and Maintenance Expenses do not include (i) debt service 
payable on obligations incurred by the District with respect to the Water System, including but 
not limited to the Debt Service Payments and any Parity Obligations, (ii) depreciation, 
replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, and (iii) amortization of 
intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature. 


“Gross Revenues” means all gross charges (including surcharges, if any) received for, 
and all other gross income and receipts derived by the District from, the ownership and 
operation of the Water System or otherwise arising from the Water System, including but not 
limited to (a) connection charges, (b) investment earnings on amounts held in the Revenue 
Fund or in any other fund established with respect to the Water System, (c) the proceeds of 
any ad valorem property taxes levied for the purposes of paying bonded indebtedness of the 
District, and (d) rental income related to the Water System.  Gross Revenues does not include 
(i) refundable deposits made to establish credit, and (ii) the proceeds of any special 
assessments or special taxes levied upon real property within any improvement district served 
by the District for the purpose of paying special assessment bonds or special tax obligations of 
the District relating to the Water System.  Gross Revenues will also include interest with 
respect to any Parity Obligations reimbursed to or on behalf of the District by the United States 
of America.   


Debt Service Payments 


The Indenture requires the District to pay all Debt Service Payments directly to the 
Trustee on the applicable Due Date.  The District is required to pay Debt Service Payments 
without offset or deduction of any kind.  “Due Date” means the fifth (5th) business day of the 
month prior to each Interest Payment Date.  See APPENDIX A hereto.  See also “Pledge of Net 
Revenues” above. 


The District’s obligation to make Debt Service Payments is a special obligation of the 
District payable solely from the Net Revenues and other funds provided for in the Indenture.  
Neither the Bonds nor the obligation of the District to make Debt Service Payments constitutes a 
debt of the District or of the State of California or of any political subdivision thereof within the 
meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limit or restriction or an obligation for which the 
District or the State of California is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which 
the District or the State of California has levied or pledged any form of taxation. 


12 
 







 


Rate Covenant 


The District has covenanted in the Indenture that it shall fix, prescribe, revise and 
collect such rates, fees and charges for the services and facilities furnished by the Water 
System during each Fiscal Year, which are at least sufficient, after making allowances for 
contingencies and error in the estimates, to yield Gross Revenues sufficient to pay the 
following amounts in the following order of priority: 


(i) All Operation and Maintenance Expenses estimated by the District to become 
due and payable in such Fiscal Year; 


(ii) All Debt Service Payments and all payments of principal of and interest on any 
Parity Obligations as they become due and payable during such Fiscal Year, without 
preference or priority;  


(iii) Amounts necessary to bring the amount of funds in the Reserve Fund up to the 
Reserve Requirement within one year of a draw thereon; and 


(iv) All payments required to meet any other obligations of the District which are 
charges, liens, encumbrances upon, or which are otherwise payable from, the Gross 
Revenues or the Net Revenues during such Fiscal Year. 


In addition, the District shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and charges 
for the services and facilities furnished by the Water System during each Fiscal Year which are 
sufficient to yield Net Revenues which are at least equal to 125% of the amount described in 
the clause (ii) above for such Fiscal Year. 


For purposes of calculating the interest on any Outstanding Parity Obligations, if 
interest on any Parity Obligations is reasonably anticipated to be reimbursed to or on behalf of 
the District by the United States of America, then interest on such Parity Obligations shall be 
excluded to the extent such interest is reasonably anticipated to be paid or reimbursed by the 
United States of America, and such reimbursements will not be included as Gross Revenues 
for purposes of the coverage calculations set forth above. 


Reserve Fund 


The District has agreed to establish and maintain so long as any Bonds are outstanding 
a separate fund, to be held by the Trustee for and on behalf of the District, to be known as the 
Reserve Fund.  [The Reserve Fund will initially be funded by a reserve fund policy from the 
Insurer (the “Reserve Fund Policy”) in the initial maximum principal amount of $_________, 
subject to reduction and reinstatement in accordance with the terms thereof.  The District has 
pledged and granted a first and exclusive lien on and a security interest in the Reserve Fund to 
the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners in order to secure the District’s obligations to pay the 
Debt Service Payment scheduled to be paid under the Indenture.  The premium on the Reserve 
Fund Insurance Policy, if any, will be fully paid at or prior to the issuance of the Bonds.  The 
Reserve Fund Policy will provide that, upon the later of (i) the Business Day next following the 
Business day of receipt by the Insurer of a Notice of Nonpayment presented by the Trustee to 
the Insurer; or (ii) the payment date of the Bonds as specified in the Notice of Nonpayment, the 
Insurer will make a deposit of funds with the Trustee, or its successor, in an amount sufficient to 
pay principal and interest on the Bonds, to the extent of amounts available under the Reserve 
Fund Policy up to the Policy Limit.] 


13 
 







 


If amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund are, at any time, less than the applicable 
Reserve Requirement, such deficiency will be made up by the District from the first available 
Net Revenues after required payment of Debt Service Payments over a twelve (12) month 
period, in twelve (12) substantially equal payments, and the Reserve Fund will be valued 
monthly until amounts on deposit therein equal the Reserve Requirement. 


“Reserve Requirement” means, as of any date of calculation by the District, the lesser of 
(i) 10% of the initial principal amount of the Bonds, (ii) an amount equal to Maximum Annual 
Debt Service, or (iii) 125% of average annual Debt Service Payments payable under the 
Indenture.  See “APPENDIX A - SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE - Reserve Fund” herein. 


In any case where the Reserve Fund is funded with a combination of cash and the 
Reserve Fund Insurance Policy, the Trustee will deplete all cash balances before drawing on 
the Reserve Fund Insurance Policy.  With regard to replenishment, any available moneys 
provided by the District shall be used first to reinstate the Reserve Fund Policy and second, to 
replenish the cash in the Reserve Fund.  In the event the Reserve Fund Policy is drawn upon, 
the District shall make payment of interest on amounts advanced under the Reserve Fund 
Policy after making any Debt Service Payments under the Indenture. 


Bond Insurance 


[Payment of the principal and interest on the Insured Bonds when due will be insured 
by the Insurance Policy) to be issued by the Insurer) simultaneously with the issuance of the 
Insured Bonds.  The Bonds maturing on September 1, 20__ through September 1, 20__, 
inclusive, are not covered by the Insurance Policy.  See “MUNICIPAL BOND 
INSURANCE” and “RISK FACTORS – Insurer Default” herein.] 


Application of Gross Revenues 


Payments from Revenue Fund.  The District has covenanted that all Gross 
Revenues, when and as received, will be received and held by the District in trust for the 
benefit of Bondholders and payments with respect to Parity Obligations, and will be deposited 
by the District immediately upon receipt in the Revenue Fund, which the District has 
covenanted in the Indenture to establish and maintain throughout the term of the Bonds.  All 
Gross Revenues shall be disbursed, allocated and applied solely to the uses and purposes set 
forth in the Indenture, and shall be accounted for separately and apart from all other money, 
funds, accounts or other resources of the District. 


All Gross Revenues in the Revenue Fund shall be set aside by the District and applied 
in the following order of priority: 


(1) Operation and Maintenance Expenses.  The District agrees and 
covenants to pay all Operation and Maintenance Expenses (including amounts reasonably 
required to be set aside in contingency reserves for Operation and Maintenance Expenses, 
the payment of which is not then immediately required) from the Revenue Fund as they 
become due and payable.  


(2) Debt Service Payments.  Debt Service Payments payable pursuant to 
the Indenture and all other payments relating to principal and interest on or with respect to 
Parity Obligations, shall be paid in accordance with the terms hereof and of such Parity 


14 
 







 


Obligations, without preference or priority, and in the event of any insufficiency of such 
moneys, ratably without any discrimination or preference. 


(3) Reserve Funds.  Payments required pursuant to the Indenture, or with 
respect to Parity Obligations, to replenish debt service reserve funds established for Parity 
Obligations shall be made in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and such Parity 
Obligations, without preference or priority, and in the event of any insufficiency of such 
moneys, ratably without any discrimination or preference.  


(4) General Expenditures.  All Gross Revenues not required to be 
withdrawn pursuant to the provisions of (1) through (3) above will be used for expenditure for 
any lawful purpose of the District, including payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses 
or payment of any rebate requirement or of any obligation subordinate to the payment of all 
amounts due under the Indenture or under Parity Obligations. 


Payment of Debt Service Payments.  On or before each Due Date, the District will 
withdraw from the Debt Service Fund an amount, together with the balance then on deposit in 
the Payment Fund, if any (other than amounts held for the defeasance of Bonds pursuant to 
the Indenture and any amounts required for payment of principal of or interest on any Bonds 
which have matured or been called for redemption but which have not yet been presented for 
payment), equal to the aggregate amount of the Debt Service Payments coming due on the 
next succeeding Interest Payment Date, and transfer the same to the Trustee for deposit into 
the Payment Fund on the following dates and in the following amounts: 


(1) Interest Component.  On or before each Due Date, an amount which is 
equal to the amount to become due on such Bonds on the next succeeding Interest Payment 
Date; provided, however, that the District may be entitled to certain credits on such payments 
as set forth above. 


(2) Principal Component.  On or before each Due Date, an amount which, 
together with any moneys already on deposit with the Trustee and available to make such 
payment, is not less than the entire amount of the next succeeding maturing principal coming 
due on the Bonds after such date; provided, however, that the District may be entitled to 
certain credits on such payments as set forth above.   


MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE 


[There follows under this caption certain information concerning the terms of the 
Insurance Policy and the Insurer that has been supplied by the Insurer for inclusion in this 
Official Statement.  No representation is made by the District as to the accuracy, 
completeness or adequacy of such information, nor as to the absence of material adverse 
changes in such information subsequent to the date of this Official Statement.  The District has 
not made any independent investigation of the Insurer or the Insurance Policy, and reference 
is made to the information set forth below and in APPENDIX G hereto for a description thereof.  


The following information and the specimen of the Insurance Policy attached as 
APPENDIX G hereto have been furnished by the Insurer for use in this Official Statement.] 


Insurance Policy 


[TO COME] 


15 
 







 


Insurer 


[TO COME] 


THE DISTRICT AND THE WATER SYSTEM 


General Information 


The District was formed in 1988 for purposes of purchasing the water supply and 
distribution system from Citizen Utilities Company.  The District is located in the 
unincorporated towns of Guerneville, Rio Nido, Monte Rio and Villa Grande and serves 
approximately 2,000 acres in the lower Russian River Basin of the County.  


The District is the sole provider of water service for residential, commercial, industrial 
and agricultural customers within its service area.  Approximately 95% of District connections 
are residential users. 


The District is governed by a five person board of directors elected at large.  The 
current Board of Directors (the “Board”) is as follows: 


Name Term Expires 


Richard Holmer, President 2014 
Victoria Wikle, Vice President 2016 


Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator 2016 
Sukey Robb-Wilder, Director 2014 


Gaylord Schaap, Director 2014 


The Water System is under the direction of Mr. Steve Mack, the General Manager of 
the District, and is operated by a staff of 10 full-time employees. 


Water Storage and Distribution System 


The District currently has approximately 3,047 single-family residential connections, 
346 multi-family connections, 146 commercial connections and 22 public facility connections. 
These customers are served through two separate water supply and distribution systems. The 
Guerneville system serves the northern area of its service area and consists of three wells, 
eighteen storage tanks with a total storage capacity of 1,245,000 gallons and five pressure 
zones.  The Monte Rio system serves the southern area of its service area and consists of two 
wells, a filtration plant, eight storage tanks with a total storage capacity of 580,000 gallons and 
five pressure zones. 


Sources of Water Supply 


The District’s source of water supply is entirely from groundwater which is underflow 
from the Russian River.  The District operates three wells in the Guerneville system and two 
wells in the Monte Rio system.  No other users in these areas affect these wells.  However, 
summer water flows in the Russian River are provided thorough discharges from Lake 
Mendocino from Coyote Dam and Lake Sonoma from Warm Springs Dam. The District obtains 
approximately 614 acre-feet per year (AFY) from three wells in the Guerneville system and 
approximately 213 AFY from two wells in the Monte Rio system. The District is currently 


16 
 







 


limited to 1,137 AFY by its water rights permit, which the District believes is sufficient to meet 
future needs. 


Historical Water Deliveries 


The table below sets forth a five-year history of water deliveries from the District 
measured in acre-feet. 
 


Table 1 
WATER DELIVERIES  


(in acre-feet*) 
Fiscal Years 2007-08 through 2011-12 


 
 


2007-08 
 


2008-09 
 


2009-10 
 


2010-11 
 


2011-12 
666 661 595 588 578 


     
Source: District. 


Water Demand and Demand Management 


In a typical year, the District provides its customers with approximately 600 AFY.  
Demand is below the District’s licensed water right of 1,137 AFY.  However, the District 
experiences approximately 25 percent in system loses, resulting in annual production of 
approximately 800 AFY. 


The District’s water demand management practices are detailed in its Urban Water 
Management Plan, which is updated every five years and was most recently adopted on 
October 6, 2011.  Among other components, the Urban Water Management Plan provides an 
urban water shortage contingency analysis and a three-stage rationing plan, which involves 
both voluntary and mandatory rationing that could lead to a reduction in water use of up to 
50%.  The rationing stages may be triggered by a supply shortage or contamination in the 
water supply source in the Guerneville and Monte Rio systems.  A water crisis within the 
District’s service area could also cause the shortage conditions and implementation of any 
rationing stage as appropriate. 


Measures to overcome revenue impacts of water rationing include maintaining 
reserves and possible rate increases.  The District maintains a budget reserve equal to ten 
percent of its annual operating budget expenses (approximately $1.6 million Operating Budget 
expenses) for disaster-related expenses.  See “ – District Reserve Policy.”  This reserve 
amount is approximately $160,000 for Fiscal Year 2012-13.  The District anticipates that 
operating costs would increase by approximately ten percent (or $160,000) during these major 
water shortage events.  The District believes it would have sufficient reserves to a major water 
shortage emergency for up to one year without rate increases, but the financial impact of such 
an event would be substantial.  During this time the District would assess the need for rate 
increases consistent with the level of water shortage in order to encourage reduced water use 
while developing sufficient revenues for sustained operations.   


                                                                          
 
* An acre-foot is a volume of water that will cover an acre to a depth of one foot, and equals 43,560 cubic 
feet, or approximately 325,851 gallons.  


17 
 







 


District Reserve Policy 


A formal District Reserve Policy was approved by the Board in September 2009.  The 
District Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and adequately plan for 
the future and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District Reserve Policy has the 
following components: 


• Budget Reserve – a reserve based on ten percent of the Operating Budget 
expenses for emergencies, such as a natural disaster.  See “ – Water Demand and Demand 
Management.”   


• Economic Reserve – a reserve based on 15 percent of the Operating Budget 
expenses for economic downturn or other economic crisis. 


• Debt Repayment Reserve – a reserve based on 25 percent of all payments for 
principal and interest on all District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing 
District debt. 


• Capital Reserve – a reserve based on 25 percent of the nominal Capital Budget 
of $1 million for similar issues with the capital program. 


The District Reserve Policy was established by the Board and can be eliminated at any 
time by the Board.  Although the District has no present intention to eliminate the District 
Reserve Policy, the District Reserve Policy is not a covenant under the Indenture, and thus 
Bondholders cannot reasonable expect that moneys from the District Reserve Policy will be 
available to pay debt service on the Bonds, and there is no assurance that the District will 
maintain the District Reserve Policy while the Bonds are outstanding. 


Environmental and Regulatory Issues Relating to the Water System 


In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink the California Department of Public 
Health (“CDPH”) prescribe regulations that limit the amount of certain contaminants in water 
provided by public water systems.   


The Water System is in compliance with all current regulatory requirements.  Water 
quality testing conducted in 2012 by the District met or exceeded water quality standards set 
by CDPH. 


The District is not aware of any environmental or regulatory issues that would 
materially adversely impact the Water System or interfere with the District’s ability to generate 
Net Revenues sufficient to pay the Installment Payments. 


Projected Maintenance and Capital Improvements 


Since the District began operations in 1992 by purchasing the Water System from 
Citizen Utilities Company, it has spent over $13 million in a Capital Improvement Program 
(“CIP”) to bring its Water System up to currently acceptable standards, as measured by water 
quality, system leaks, system losses, and fire protection.  


18 
 







 


Major Anticipated Capital Improvements.  The District has an approved $4.4 million 
CIP for Fiscal Years 2014 through 2019, which the District intends to spend on capital projects 
to improve the Water System’s transmission and distribution system. 


Specific projects in the capital improvement program for the Water System include:  


•  Hidden Valley Road - Replacement of 3,900 linear feet (lf) of existing 
main and appurtenances with 67 services, 1 fire hydrant. 


• Canyon 1 (Rio Nido) Replace approximately 3,900 feet of existing 
mainline and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. 


•  Old Monte Rio Road – Replace 5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding westerly. 


•  Park Ave. replace approximately 2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. and 
McLane Ave., 37 services. Loop two deadend lines. 


•  Woodland Drive - Replace approximately 1,900 feet of existing mainline 
and 27 associated services along Woodland Drive in the main pressure zone. 


The District increased its Base Rate and Water Usage Charges by three percent 
beginning with bills issued after July 1, 2013.  This Fiscal Year 2014 rate increase follows two 
similar three percent rate increases that took effect in the past two fiscal years and is the third 
three percent rate increase which is part of a 9-year plan to develop sustainable funding for its 
ongoing CIP.  See “ – Historical and Projected Rate Increases.”   


Customer Base 


Active Water Service Connections.  The table below sets forth a five-year summary 
of active water service connections for the Water System. 


 
Table 2 


Active Water Service Connections 
 


Year Number of Accounts  


2007-08 3595 
2008-09 3564 
2009-10 3564 
2010-11 3572 
2011-12 3571 


    
Source: District. 


19 
 







 


Customer Base Summary.  The following table summarizes the number of accounts, 
consumption, and revenues for the Water System by type of customer for active water 
accounts during Fiscal Year 2011-12. 
 


Table 3 
Summary of Water Accounts, Usage and Revenues by Customer Type 


Fiscal Year 2011-12 
 
 
Customer Type 


Number of 
Accounts 


Consumption  
(HCF†) 


% of 
Total 


 
Revenues (1) 


% of 
Total 


Residential       
  Single-family 3047         162,405  65.3%  $353,592  63.1%
  Multi-family 346           47,829  19.2%  $96,070  17.1%
Non-Residential      
  Commercial 146           34,432  13.8%  $99,798  17.8%
  Institutional 22            4,148  1.7%  $11,093  2.0%


 Total 3561         248,814  100.0%  $560,553  100.0%
      
(1) Represents all water sales revenues based only on water consumption, and excludes revenues from service 


charges.  
Source: District. 


Largest Users.  The following table shows the top ten water users in the District based 
on water consumption in Fiscal Year 2011-12. 


 
Table 4 


Top Ten Customers by  
Water Consumption (in HCF) 


Fiscal Year 2011-12 
 


 
Customer Name 


 
 


Customer 
Type 


Consumption 
(HCF) 


% of 
Total All 
Users 


Safeway Comm 2,964  1.2% 
Dawn Ranch Lodge Comm 2,239  0.9% 
Cal Water Multi Fam 2,051  0.8% 
Applewood Inn Comm 1,958  0.8% 
West Sonoma Inn Comm 1,777  0.7% 
Rien's Beach Multi Fam 1,321  0.5% 
St. Joseph's DeLaSalle Institute Comm 1,310  0.5% 
Cipora Properties Multi Fam 1,147  0.5% 
Midway Car Wash Comm 1,090  0.4% 
Robert Weiss Multi Fam 1,072  0.4% 
    
Total Top Ten  16,929  6.8% 


Total All Users  248,814   
     
Source: District. 


                                                                          
 
† Hundred cubic feet (HCF) is a unit of measure of water volume, equivalent to 748 gallons 


20 
 







 


Water Rates and Charges 


Rate-Setting Process.  The District establishes water rates through a 45-day notice 
and public hearing process in compliance with Proposition 218.  See “RISK FACTORS – 
Proposition 218.”   


Water Rate Structure. The District’s bimonthly water rates include a base rate charge, 
water usage charge and capital debt reduction charge.  The base rate charge and capital debt 
reduction charge are adjusted by a multiple unit charge for all units beyond the first unit for 
residential multi-family accounts.  A meter multiplier is based on larger meter flow capacity 
when compared to the base 5/8 inch meter and is applied to commercial and public accounts 
for the base rate and capital debt reduction charges.  All accounts are billed for a water usage 
charge which charges for water usage.  The water usage charge includes four tiers with higher 
charges for higher water usage (see Table 6 below).  In addition, the District receives income, 
consisting of a flat charge of $198 per meter, which is collected by the County as part of 
property tax payments and transferred to the District.   


The District engaged Brelje & Race to conduct a water rate study in 2007 (the “Rate 
Study”).  The Rate Study recommended that the District adopt a 0.55 multiple unit multiplier for 
residential multi-family accounts and a certain multiplier based on meter size (specifically, 2.5 
for 1 inch, 5 for 1-1/2 inch and 8 for 2 inch) for commercial and public accounts with respect to 
the base rate charge, water usage charge, capital debt reduction charge and flat charge.  The 
District followed the Rate Study recommendations regarding both residential multi-family 
accounts and commercial and public accounts with respect to the base rate charge, water 
usage charge and capital debt reduction charge.  However, the District did not follow the Rate 
Study recommendations regarding the residential multi-family accounts or the commercial and 
public accounts with respect to the flat charge (specifically, the District did not adopt a 0.55 
multiple unit multiplier for residential multi-family accounts or a multiplier based on meter size 
for commercial and public accounts).  See “RISK FACTORS – Proposition 218.”   


Historical and Projected Rate Increases.  The table below shows a 4-year history of 
base rate water service charges for the Water System, which reflects three years of three 
percent rate increases which are part of a 9-year plan to increase funding for sustainable 
capital improvements to the District’s Water System.  


 
Table 5 


Historical and Current Base Rate Structure 
 


 
 


Effective 
July 1, 2009 


Effective 
July 1, 2011 


Effective 
July 1, 2012 


Effective 
July 1, 2013 


Bimonthly Water Service Charge 
 by Meter Size (1)  


    


5/8 inch $50.00  $51.50  $53.05 $54.65 
1 inch  $125.00  $128.75  $132.60 $136.60 
1-1/2 inch  $250.00  $257.50  $265.25 $273.20 
2 inch $400.00  $412.00  $424.35 $437.10 


      
(1) The base rate and capital reduction charges are increased by the multiple unit multiplier of 0.55 for 


multi-family accounts and meter size multiplier of 2.5 for 1 inch, 5 for 1-1/2 inch and 8 for 2 inch for 
commercial and public accounts.  


Source: District. 


21 
 







 


The table below shows the District’s current base rate, water usage and capital debt 
reduction charges. 


 
Table 6 


Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges for 2013-14 
 


    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   


  
Water Usage Charge  $    1.25   $    2.50   $    3.75   $    5.45    
  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  Base Rate 


Tier 1  Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge (CDRC) 


Any meter 
size  $       54.65  8 20 80 >80 $       10.00 


 
B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; no meter 
multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 


Any meter 
size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


2 units  $       84.71  12.4 31 124 >124  $       15.50 
3 units  $     114.77  16.8 42 168 >168  $       21.00 
4 units  $     144.82  21.2 53 212 >212  $       26.50 


 
C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit multiplier. 


Meter Size 
(in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


0.625  $       54.65  8 20 80 >80 $      10.00 
1  $     136.60  20 50 200 >200  $      25.00 


1.5  $     273.20  40 100 400 >400  $      49.95 
2  $     437.10  64 160 640 >640  $      79.95 


 


22 
 







 


The table below shows a six-year projection of rate increases based on the District’s 
plan to increase rates by three percent each year for six more years as part of its nine-year 
plan to increase funding for sustainable capital improvements to the District’s Water System.  
See “RISK FACTORS – Proposition 218.”   


 
Table 7 


Planned Base Rate Changes 
2014 through 2019* 


Bimonthly Water 
  Service Charge  
  by Meter Size (1)  


Effective 
July 1, 
2014 


Effective 
July 1, 
2015 


Effective 
July 1, 
2016 


Effective 
July 1, 
2017 


Effective 
July 1, 
2018 


Effective 
July 1, 
2019 


 5/8 inch 
 


56.28 
 


57.96 
 


59.70 
 


61.49 
 


63.34 
 


65.24 
 1 inch  140.69 144.91 149.26 153.73 158.35 163.10 
 1-1/2 inch  281.38 289.82 298.51 307.47 316.69 326.19 
 2 inch 450.20 463.71 477.62 491.95 506.71 521.91 
      


*   Assumes 3% annual increases which are subject to Board approval and public hearing process in 
compliance with Proposition 218.  See “RISK FACTORS – Proposition 218.”   


(1) The base rate and capital reduction charges are increased by the multiple unit multiplier of 0.55 for multi-
family accounts and meter size multiplier of 2.5 for 1 inch, 5 for 1-1/2 inch and 8 for 2 inch for commercial 
and public accounts.  


Source:  District. 


Billing, Collection and Delinquencies  


Billing and Collection Procedure. The District bills for water service bimonthly.  Bills 
for service are due and payable 25 days after the date of billing.  Any unpaid portion of bills is 
considered delinquent if not fully paid by the due date.  Shortly after the due date, a Notice of 
Delinquency is mailed to the customer and the account is assessed a late fee of $5 or five 
percent of the bill, whichever is greater. 


A Turn Off Notice is posted at the account street address (i.e., not the mailing address) 
approximately 40 days after the bill is mailed, and the account is assessed a $25 posting fee.  
Water service will be turned off for non-payment approximately two days after the Turn Off 
Notice is posted and 42 days after the bill is mailed.  A $50 reconnect fee is added to the bill to 
reconnect.  


Approximately 15 days after the service is disconnected for non-payment, a Final 
Notice is mailed to the customer, and the account scheduled for referral by the District to a 
collections agency for payment. 


23 
 







 


Delinquencies.  The table below shows the delinquency rate for water bills for the 
prior four fiscal years is shown below, based on the delinquent amounts sent to the collection 
agency in relation to total water sales each year, along with the delinquency rate for annual 
assessments of the flat charge collected on the property tax bill for the past four fiscal years.  


 
Table 8 


Historic Water Charge and Annual Assessment Delinquency Rates 
 


 
Fiscal Year


Water Charge 
Delinquency Rate


Annual Assessment 
Delinquency Rate   


2008-09 0.3% 1.7% 
2009-10 1.1% 1.4% 
2010-11 0.2% 1.1% 
2011-12 0.7% 1.8%  


Source:   District. 
 
 


WATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL INFORMATION 


Financial Statements 


A copy of the most recent audited financial statement of the Water System, for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 (the “Financial Statements”), is attached as APPENDIX C.  
The Financial Statements were prepared by Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP, Certified Public 
Accountants, Culver City, California (the “Auditor”). The Financial Statements should be read 
in their entirety. 


The District has not requested nor did the District obtain permission from the Auditor to 
include the audited financial statements as an appendix to this Official Statement.  
Accordingly, the Auditor has not performed any post-audit review of the financial condition or 
operations of the District.  In addition, the Auditor has not reviewed this Official Statement. 


24 
 







 


Historical Revenues and Expenses 


The following table presents a four-year history of the revenues, expenses and 
changes in net assets for the Water System.   


 
Table 9 


Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
Fiscal Years 2008-09 through 2011-12 


 


 
Audited 
2008-09


Audited 
2009-10


Audited 
2010-11


Audited 
2011-12    


Revenues     
   Water Sales (1) 1,957,737 $2,005,265 $2,018,065 $2,053,643 
   Property Tax Assessment (flat charge) 751,758 762,521 810,292 738,661 
   Non-Operating Revenues 237,111 183,384 172,875 143,856 
Total Revenues 2,946,606 2,951,170 3,001,232 2,936,160 
     
Operating Expenses     
   Salaries and Benefits 997,640 1,069,029 1,085,675 1,113,431 
   Services and Supplies 577,573 531,647 465,511 493,821 
   Repair and Maintenance 0 0 0 967 
Total Operating Expenses 1,575,213 1,600,676 1,551,186 1,608,219 


     
Non-Operating Expenses     
   Interest  543,955 668,179 649,695 630,649 
Total Non-Operating Expenses 543,955 668,179 649,695 630,649 


Total Expenses 2,119,168 2,268,855 2,200,881 2,238,868 
     
Income (loss) before Other Items and 
  Depreciation Expense 827,438 682,315 800,351 697,292 
     
Other Income 646,912 575,304 1,584,133 623,968 
Depreciation Expense (524,458) (534,225) (576,797) (609,377)


     
Change in Net Assets (Net Income) 949,892 723,394 1,807,687 711,883 
     
     
(1) Represents all water sales revenues, including water consumption and service charges.   
Source:  District. 


25 
 







 


Historical Revenues, Expenses and Debt Service Coverage 


The table below presents a historical record of coverage on the District's outstanding 
water revenue obligations provided by Net Revenues. 


 
Table 10 


Historical Revenues, Expenses and Debt Service Coverage 
2007-08 through 2011-12 


 
Fiscal Year 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 


Revenues      
   Water Sales $1,926,813 $1,957,737 $2,005,265 $2,018,065 $2,053,643 
   Property Tax Assessment  
     (flat charge) 785,315 751,758 762,521 810,292 738,661 
   Non-Operating Revenues 325,153 237,111 183,384 172,875 143,856 
Total Revenues 3,037,281 2,946,606 2,951,170 3,001,232 2,936,160 
      
Operation Expenses      
   Salaries and Benefits 908,542 997,640 1,069,029 1,085,675 1,113,431 
   Services and Supplies 502,276 577,573 531,647 465,511 494,788 
Total Operation Expenses 1,410,818 1,575,213 1,600,676 1,551,186 1,608,219 
      
Net Revenues 1,626,463 1,371,393 1,350,494 1,450,046 1,327,941 
      
Debt Service (1) 853,136 972,648 1,092,971 1,089,801 1,091,166 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.91x 1.41x 1.24x 1.33x 1.22x 
  
(1) Represents Debt Service on the Prior Obligations (which are being refunded with a portion of the proceeds 


of the Bonds) and the Parity Obligations.  See “FINANCING PLAN” and “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS.” 
Source: District. 


26 
 







 


Projected Revenues, Expenses and Debt Service Coverage 


Projections.  The table below presents projected Water System revenues, expenses 
and debt service coverage ratios.  Assumptions regarding these projections are set forth 
below.  
 


Table 11 
Projected Revenues, Expenses and Debt Service Coverage 


2012-13 through 2017-18* 
 


Fiscal Year 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 
Revenues       
   Water Sales (1) $2,187,360 $2,253,000 $2,320,590 $2,390,208 $2,461,914 $2,535,771 
   Property Tax Assessment  
     (flat charge) (2) 759,600 759,600 759,600 759,600 759,600 759,600 
   Non-Operating  
      Revenues (3) 143,900 153,900 163,900 163,900 163,900 163,900 
Total Revenues 3,090,860 3,166,500 3,244,090 3,313,708 3,385,414 3,459,271 
  
Operation Expenses  
   Salaries and Benefits (1) 1,094,960 1,111,005 1,144,335 1,178,665 1,214,025 1,250,446 
   Services and Supplies (1) 524,670 520,930 536,558 552,655 569,234 586,311 
Total Operation Expenses 1,619,630 1,631,935 1,680,893 1,731,320 1,783,259 1,836,757 
  
Net Revenues 1,471,230 1,534,565 1,563,197 1,582,388 1,602,155 1,622,514 
  
Debt Service* (4) 1,088,043 1,032,561 1,032,761 1,034,211 1,035,361 1,031,286 
Debt Service Coverage    
   Ratio* 1.35x 1.49x 1.51x 1.53x 1.55x 1.57x 
  
* Preliminary, subject to change for Fiscal Years 2013-14 through 2017-18. 
(1) Projected for Fiscal Year 2012-13 and budgeted for Fiscal Year 2013-14.  Thereafter, estimated increase of 


3% a year. 
(2) Estimated at the average of Fiscal Years 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2012 (2011 was an outlier year with a larger 


amount). 
(3) Estimated flat for Fiscal Year 2013, with a $10,000 increase in Fiscal Year 2014 and 2015 for a cell tower 


lease and flat thereafter. 
(4) Represents Debt Service on the Prior Obligations and the Parity Obligations for Fiscal Year 2012-13 and 


Debt Service on the Bonds and the Parity Obligations thereafter.  See “SECURITY FOR BONDS.” 
Source:  District. 
 


 
 
 


27 
 







 


 
RISK FACTORS 


The following factors, along with other information in this Official Statement, should be 
considered by potential investors in evaluating the risks in the purchase of the Bonds. 


General 


Payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds depends upon the revenues derived 
from operation of the Water System. Some of the events which could affect the revenues 
received by the Water System are set forth below.  The following discussion of risks is not 
meant to be an exhaustive list of the risks associated with the purchase of the Bonds and the 
order in which the risks are discussed does not necessarily reflect the relative importance of 
the various risks.  


Limited Obligations 


The Bonds are limited obligations of the District and are not secured by a legal or 
equitable pledge or charge or lien upon any property of the District or any of its income or 
receipts, except the Net Revenues.  The District is obligated under the Indenture to make debt 
service payments solely from Net Revenues.  There is no assurance that the District can 
succeed in operating the Water System such that the Net Revenues in the future will be 
sufficient for that purpose.  


Water System Demand and Growth 


There can be no assurance that the local demand for the services provided by the 
Water System will be maintained at levels described in this Official Statement under the 
heading “THE DISTRICT AND THE WATER SYSTEM.”  Reduction in the level of demand 
could require an increase in rates or charges in order to produce Net Revenues sufficient to 
comply with the District’s rate covenant in the Indenture.  Such rate increases could increase 
the likelihood of nonpayment, and could also further decrease demand.  There can be no 
assurance that any other entity with regulatory authority over the Water System will not adopt 
further restrictions on operation of the Water System. 


Water System Expenses 


There can be no assurance that the District’s expenses for the Water System will be 
consistent with the levels described in this Official Statement.  Increases in the cost of 
purchased water, changes in the cost of purchased water, technology, new regulatory 
requirements, increases in the cost of energy or other expenses would reduce Net Revenues, 
and could require substantial increases in rates or charges in order to comply with the rate 
covenant in the Indenture.  Such rate increases could increase the likelihood of nonpayment, 
and could also decrease demand. 


Environmental Laws and Regulations 


The Water System is subject to a wide variety of local, State, and federal health and 
environmental laws.  Among the types of regulatory requirements faced by such facilities are 
air and water quality requirements.  Such regulations, as they may be from time to time 


28 
 







 


amended or subsequently enacted could affect the Net Revenues available to make the debt 
service payments on the Bonds.  


The kind and degree of water treatment which is effected through the Water System is 
regulated, to a large extent, by the federal government and the State of California.  Treatment 
standards are set forth in federal and state law control the operations of the Water System and 
mandate its use of technology.  In the event that the federal government, acting through the 
Environmental Protection Agency, or the State of California, acting through the Department of 
Health Services, or additional federal or state legislation, should impose stricter water quality 
standers upon the Water System, the District’s expenses could increase accordingly and rates 
and charges would have to be increased to offset those expenses.  It is not possible to predict 
the direction federal or state regulation will take with respect to drinking water quality 
standards, although it is likely that both will impose more stringent standards with attendant 
higher costs.  


Parity Obligations 


Although the District has covenanted not to issue additional obligations payable from 
Net Revenues senior to the Debt Service Payments, the Indenture permits the issuance by the 
District of certain indebtedness which may have a lien upon the Net Revenues which is on a 
parity basis to the lien which secures the Debt Service Payments, if certain coverage tests are 
met (see “THE BONDS – Issuance of Parity Obligations” herein).  These coverage tests 
involve, to some extent, projections of Net Revenues.  If such indebtedness is issued or 
incurred, the debt service coverage for the Debt Service Payments securing the Bonds will be 
diluted below what it otherwise would be subject to under the coverage tests.  Moreover, there 
is no assurance that the assumptions which form the basis of such projections, if any, will be 
actually realized subsequent to the date of such projections.  If such assumptions are not 
realized, the amount of future Net Revenues may be less than projected, and the actual 
amount of Net Revenues may be insufficient to provide for the payment of the Debt Service 
Payments and such additional indebtedness. 


Geologic, Topographic and Climatic Considerations 


The District is located in an area of California that is subject to geologic conditions 
(such as earthquakes), topographic conditions (such as landslides and floods) and climatic 
conditions (such as droughts).  If there were to be an occurrence of severe geologic, 
topographic or climatic activity in the area of the District, there could be an interruption in the 
service provided by the Water System, resulting in a temporary reduction in the amount of Net 
Revenues available to pay Debt Service Payments when due. 


Proposition 218 


On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, the “Right to 
Vote on Taxes Act.”  Proposition 218 added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the State Constitution, 
which contain a number of provisions affecting the ability of the District to levy and collect both 
existing and future taxes, assessments, fees and charges.  Proposition 218 also extends the 
initiative power to reducing or repealing any local taxes, assessments, fees and charges.  This 
extension of the initiative power is not limited to taxes, assessments, fees and charges 
imposed on or after November 6, 1996, the effective date of Proposition 218, and could result 
in retroactive repeal or reduction in any existing taxes, assessments, fees or charges, except 
those which are pledged to the repayment of debt.  If such a repeal or reduction in District fees 


29 
 







 


or charges were to occur, and it was held that any such taxes, assessments, fees or charges 
were not pledged to any debt repayment, the District’s ability to make Debt Service Payments 
could be adversely affected.   


In addition, while the matter is not free from doubt, Proposition 218 imposed 
restrictions on the levy of charges for “property-related services.”  In July 2006 the California 
Supreme Court confirmed that a public agency’s charges for ongoing water delivery are “fees 
and charges” within the meaning of Proposition 218.  As a result, voters within the boundaries 
of the District could adopt an initiative measure that reduced or repealed water rates and 
charges levied by the District, although it is not clear (and has not been determined by State 
courts) whether such action would be enforceable where such fees and charges are pledged 
to the repayment of indebtedness.  


The District believes that its fees for Water service will not be adversely affected by the 
application of the procedural requirements of Proposition 218, and that Proposition 218 would 
not have any immediate adverse effect on its ability to operate its Water System.  However, 
there can be no assurance of the availability of remedies to protect fully the interest of the 
holders of the Bonds.   


Constitutional Limit on Appropriations, Fees and Charges 


If a portion of the Water System rates or connection charges were determined by a 
court to exceed the reasonable costs of providing service, any fee which the District charges 
may be considered to be a “special tax,” which under Articles XIIIA or XIIID of the California 
Constitution must be authorized by a two-thirds vote of the affected electorate.  This 
requirement is applicable to the District’s rates for service provided by the Water System.  The 
reasonable cost of service provided by the Water System has been determined by the State 
Controller to include depreciation and allowance for the cost of capital improvements.  In 
addition, the State courts have determined that fees such as connection fees (capacity 
charges) will not be special taxes if they approximate the reasonable cost of constructing 
Water System improvements contemplated by the local agency imposing the fee.  Such court 
determinations have been codified in the Government Code of the State of California (Section 
66000 et seq.). 


Under Article XIIIB of the California Constitution, state and local government entities 
have an annual “appropriations limit” which limits their ability to spend certain moneys called 
“appropriations subject to limitation,” which consists of tax revenues, certain state subventions 
and certain other moneys, including user charges to the extent they exceed the costs 
reasonably borne by the entity in providing the service for which it is levying the charge.  In 
general terms, the “appropriations limit” is to be based on certain Fiscal Year 1978/79 
expenditures, and is to be adjusted annually to reflect changes in the consumer price index, 
population and services provided by these entities.  Among other provisions of Article XIIIB, if 
an entity’s revenues in any year exceed the amount permitted to be spent, the excess would 
have to be returned by revising tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two years. 


The District is of the opinion that the rates and use charges imposed by the District in 
connection with the Water System do not exceed the costs it reasonably bears in providing 
such services. 


30 
 







 


Limited Recourse on Default 


If the District defaults on its obligation to make Debt Service Payments, the Trustee 
has the right to accelerate the total unpaid principal amounts of the Debt Service Payments.  
However, in the event of a default and such acceleration there can be no assurance that the 
District will have sufficient Net Revenues to pay the accelerated Debt Service Payments. 


Limitations on Remedies Available; Bankruptcy 


The enforceability of the rights and remedies of the Owners and the obligations of the 
District may become subject to the following:  the federal bankruptcy code and applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or similar laws relating to or affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, now or hereafter in effect; equitable principles which 
may limit the specific enforcement under State law of certain remedies; the exercise by the 
United States of America of the powers delegated to it by the Federal Constitution; and the 
reasonable and necessary exercise, in certain exceptional situations, of the police power 
inherent in the sovereignty of the State and its governmental bodies in the interest of servicing 
a significant and legitimate public purpose.  Bankruptcy proceedings, or the exercising of 
powers by the federal or State government, if initiated, could subject the Owners to judicial 
discretion and interpretation of their rights in bankruptcy or otherwise and consequently may 
entail risks of delay, limitation, or modification of their rights. 


No Obligation to Tax 


The obligation of the District to pay the Debt Service Payments does not constitute an 
obligation of the District for which the District is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation 
or for which the District has levied or pledged any form of taxation.  The obligation of the 
District to pay Debt Service Payments does not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the State 
or any of its political subdivisions, within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt 
limitation or restriction. 


Change in Law 


In addition to the other limitations described herein, the State electorate or Legislature 
could adopt a constitutional or legislative property tax decrease or an initiative with the effect 
of reducing revenues payable to or collected by the District.  There is no assurance that the 
State electorate or Legislature will not at some future time approve additional limitations that 
could have the effect of reducing the Net Revenues and adversely affecting the security of the 
Bonds. 


Impact of State Budget 


The State is experiencing serious budgetary shortfalls for the current and immediately 
succeeding Fiscal Years.  The District cannot predict what actions will be taken in the future by 
the State Legislature and the Governor to deal with changing State revenues and 
expenditures.  Given the magnitude of the State’s budgetary deficit, it is possible that future 
legislation will impact revenues of local agencies.  These developments at the State level will 
most likely adversely affect local governments.   


In response to the shift of local agency revenues to school funding in Fiscal Years 
2004/05 and 2005/06, Proposition 1A, entitled “Protection of Local Government Revenues,” 


31 
 







 


was approved on the November 2, 2004 ballot (“Proposition 1A”).  Proposition 1A amended 
the California Constitution to, among other things, prohibit the shift of property tax revenues 
from cities, counties and special districts, except to address a “severe state financial hardship” 
(and only then if (x) such amounts were agreed to be repaid with interest within three years, 
(y) the State had repaid any other borrowed amounts, and (z) such borrowing could not occur 
more often than twice in ten years).  In 2009 the State Legislature exercised its authority and 
suspended the protection of Proposition 1A for Fiscal Year 2009/10, and authorized 
approximately $1.9 billion to be borrowed from local governments through the suspension of 
Proposition 1A.  Each county auditor reduced by 8% the ad valorem property tax revenue that 
was distributed to each city, county, and special district for Fiscal Year 2008/09, and 
transferred such revenues to educational funds.  The State could again suspend the protection 
of Proposition 1A. 


The District currently does not anticipate that the State budget problems will materially 
adversely impact the operation of its water operations or its ability to pay Debt Service 
Payments or any of its other obligations as when due. 


Secondary Market for Bonds 


There can be no guarantee that there will be a secondary market for the Bonds or, if a 
secondary market exists, that any Bonds can be sold for any particular price.  Occasionally, 
because of general market conditions or because of adverse history or economic prospects 
connected with a particular issue, secondary marketing practices in connection with a 
particular issue are suspended or terminated.  Additionally, prices of issues for which a market 
is being made will depend upon then-prevailing circumstances. Such prices could be 
substantially different from the original purchase price. 


Loss of Tax Exemption 


As discussed in this Official Statement under the caption “TAX MATTERS,” interest on 
the Bonds could become includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation 
retroactive to the date the Bonds were issued, as a result of future acts or omissions of the 
District or authority in violation of their respective covenants in the Indenture.  Should such an 
event of taxability occur, the Bonds are not subject to a special redemption and will remain 
outstanding until maturity or until prepaid under one of the other redemption provisions 
contained in the Indenture. 


Legislation affecting the tax exemption of interest on the Bonds may be considered by 
the United States Congress and the State legislature.  Federal and state court proceedings 
and the outcome of such proceedings could also affect the tax exemption of interest on the 
Bonds.  No assurance can be given that legislation enacted or proposed, or actions by a court, 
after the date of issuance of the Bonds will not have an adverse effect on the tax exemption of 
interest on the Bonds or the market value of the Bonds. 


IRS Audit of Tax-Exempt Issues 


The IRS has initiated an expanded program for the auditing of tax-exempt issues, 
including both random and targeted audits.  It is possible that the Bonds will be selected for 
audit by the IRS.  It is also possible that the market value of the Bonds might be affected as a 
result of such an audit of the Bonds (or by an audit of similar obligations).  


32 
 







 


Insurer Default 


[The Insurer.  In the event that the District fails to provide funds to make payment of 
the principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds when the same shall become due, any 
owner of such Insured Bonds shall have a claim on the Insurance Policy for such payments.  
However, in the event of any acceleration of the due date of such principal by reason of 
mandatory redemption resulting from default or otherwise, the payments guaranteed under the 
Insurance Policy shall be made in such amounts and at such times as such payments of 
principal would have been due had there not been any such acceleration.  The Insurance 
Policy does not insure the payment of any premium payable upon the redemption of the 
Insured Bonds. 


Purchasers of the Insured Bonds should also note that, while the Insurance Policy will 
insure payment of the principal amount (but not any premium) paid to any owner of the Insured 
Bonds in connection with the mandatory or optional redemption of any Insured Bond which is 
recovered from such owner as a voidable preference under applicable bankruptcy law, such 
amounts will be repaid by the Insurer to the Owner only at the times and in the amounts as 
would have been due absent such redemption unless the Insurer chooses to pay such amount 
at an earlier date or dates. 


So long as the Insurer performs its obligations under the Insurance Policy, the Insurer 
shall be deemed to be the sole holder of the Insured Bonds insured by it for the purpose of 
exercising any voting right or privilege or giving any consent of direction or taking any other 
action that the Owners of such Insured Bonds are entitled to take pursuant to the Indenture 
pertaining to defaults and remedies, and the duties and obligations of the Trustee. 


In the event that the Insurer is unable to make payments of principal of and interest on 
the Insured Bonds as such payments become due, the Insured Bonds are payable solely from 
moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. 


In the event that the Insurer is required to pay principal of or interest on the Insured 
Bonds, no representation or assurance is given or can be made that such event will not 
adversely affect the market price for or marketability of the Insured Bonds. 


The long-term ratings on the Insured Bonds are dependent, in part, on the claims 
paying ability or financial strength ratings, as applicable, of the Insurer.  The Insurer’s current 
claims paying ability or financial strength ratings are predicated upon a number of factors 
which could change over time and could result in downgrading of the ratings on the Insured 
Bonds insured by the Insurer.  Such a downgrade could adversely affect the market price for, 
and marketability of, the Insured Bonds.  The Insurer is not contractually bound to maintain its 
present claims paying ability or financial strength ratings in the future.  See “RATINGS” herein. 


Creditworthiness of the Insurer. The Insurer’s obligation under the Insurance Policy 
is a general obligation of the Insurer.  Default by the Insurer may result in insufficient funds 
being available to pay the principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds.  In such event, the 
remedies available to the applicable Trustee may be limited by, among other things, certain 
risks related to bankruptcy proceedings, and may also have been altered prior to a default by 
the Insurer, which has the right, acting with the Trustee, without Owner consent, to amend the 
applicable provisions of the Indenture governing defaults and remedies and to direct the 
Trustee to direct remedies with respect to such obligation.  The Insurance Policy does not 
insure the payment of redemption premiums. 


33 
 







 


Developments over the past few years which have been the subject of substantial 
discussion in the financial press and which affect the bond insurance business, including that 
of the Insurer, have had a serious adverse effect on the financial condition of a number of 
bond insurers, weakening their credit status as reflected in their credit ratings.  Therefore, 
when making an investment decision on the Insured Bonds a prospective Owner should look 
to the ability of the District to pay the Debt Service Payments which secure the Insured Bonds 
and not solely to the Insurer’s ability to pay claims under the Insurance Policy. 


No review of the business or affairs of the Insurer has been conducted by the District or 
the Underwriter in connection with the offering of the Bonds.  No assurance can be given by 
the District or the Underwriter as to the Insurer’s ability to pay claims under the Insurance 
Policy.  See “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE” herein and “APPENDIX G” hereto for further 
information concerning the Insurer and the Insurance Policy, including instructions for 
obtaining certain financial information concerning the Insurer.] 


TAX MATTERS 


The following discussion of federal income tax matters written to support the promotion 
and marketing of the Bonds was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by a 
taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding federal tax penalties that may be imposed. Each taxpayer 
should seek advice based on the taxpayer’s particular circumstances from an independent tax 
advisor. 


In the opinion of Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson, A Professional Law 
Corporation, Bond Counsel to the District (“Bond Counsel”), based upon an analysis of 
existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, 
the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the 
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and is exempt from State of 
California personal income taxes.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the 
Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual and corporate 
alternative minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in 
adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income.  
Bond Counsel expects to deliver at the time of issuance of the Bonds the opinion substantially 
in the form set forth in APPENDIX D hereto. 


To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be 
paid at maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least 
annually over the term of such Bonds), the difference constitutes “original issue discount,” the 
accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each Beneficial Owner thereof, is treated 
as interest on the Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
and State of California personal income taxes.  For this purpose, the issue price of a particular 
maturity of the Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the 
Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or 
organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers).  The 
original issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to 
maturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually 
(with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates).  The accruing original issue 
discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon 
disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds.  Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax 


34 
 







 


consequences of ownership of Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of 
Beneficial Owners who do not purchase such Bonds in the original offering to the public at the 
first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to the public. 


Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than 
their principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) 
(“Premium Bonds”) will be treated as having amortizable bond premium.  No deduction is 
allowable for the amortizable bond premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the 
interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  However, 
the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a Beneficial Owner’s basis in a Premium 
Bond, will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such 
Beneficial Owner.  Beneficial Owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors 
with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their particular 
circumstances. 


The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions, and requirements relating to the 
exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as 
the Bonds. The District has made certain representations and covenanted to comply with 
certain restrictions, conditions, and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the 
Bonds will not be included in federal gross income.  Inaccuracy of these representations or 
failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the Bonds being included in 
gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of 
the Bonds.  The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes the accuracy of these representations and 
compliance with these covenants.  Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to 
inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events occurring (or not 
occurring), or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel’s attention after the date of issuance 
of the Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.   


Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal 
income taxes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the 
Bonds may otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner’s federal, state, or local tax liability.  The 
nature and extent of these other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax status of 
the Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial Owner’s other items of income or deduction.  Bond 
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences. 


Future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code, or court 
decisions may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal 
income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation or otherwise 
prevent Beneficial Owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such 
interest.  The introduction or enactment of any such future legislative proposals, clarification of 
the Code, or court decisions may also affect the market price for, or marketability of, the 
Bonds.  Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding 
any pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which 
Bond Counsel expresses no opinion. 


The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters 
not directly addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the 
proper treatment of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  It is not binding on the Internal 
Revenue Service (“IRS”) or the courts.  Furthermore, Bond Counsel cannot give and has not 
given any opinion or assurance about the future activities of the District or about the effect of 


35 
 







 


future changes in the Code, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the 
enforcement thereof by the IRS.  The District has covenanted, however, to comply with the 
requirements of the Code.   


Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the 
Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the District 
or the Beneficial Owners regarding the tax-exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit 
examination by the IRS.  Under current procedures, parties (such as the Beneficial Owners) 
other than the District and its appointed counsel would have little, if any, right to participate in 
the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with 
an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS 
positions with which the District legitimately disagrees may not be practicable.  Any action of 
the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of 
such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues may affect the market price for, 
or the marketability of, the Bonds, and may cause the District or the Beneficial Owners to incur 
significant expense. 


BANK QUALIFIED 


The District has designated the Bonds “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the 
meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, and, in the case of certain financial institutions 
(within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code), a deduction is allowed for 80% of that 
portion of such financial institutions’ interest expense allocable to interest on the Bonds. 


NO LITIGATION 


There is no action, suit or proceeding known to be pending or, to the knowledge of the 
District, threatened, questioning the existence or powers of the District, restraining or enjoining 
the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or the Indenture, or in any way contesting or affecting 
the validity of the foregoing or any proceedings of the District taken with respect to any of the 
foregoing, or any claims or actions which if determined against the District, either individually 
or in the aggregate, would have a material adverse effect on the financial conditions of the 
District or the ability of the District to pay principal or interest on the Bonds. 


RATINGS 


Standard & Poor’s Credit Market Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, 
Inc. (“Standard & Poor’s”) is expected to assign its municipal bond rating of [“___ (stable 
outlook)” to the Insured Bonds, with the understanding that, upon issuance of the Insured 
Bonds, a policy insuring the payment when due of principal of and interest on the Insured 
Bonds will be issued by the Insurer.  See “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE” herein for a 
discussion of recent actions taken by the rating agencies with respect to the Insurer.  
Furthermore, Standard & Poor’s has assigned an underlying rating of] “AA-” to the Bonds.   


The ratings reflect only the views of such organization, and an explanation of the 
significance of such ratings may be obtained from Standard & Poor’s.  There is no assurance 
that the ratings will continue for any given period of time or that they will not be revised 
downward or withdrawn entirely by Standard & Poor’s, if, in the judgment of Standard & Poor’s 
rating agency, circumstances so warrant.  The District undertakes no responsibility to oppose 
any downward revision or withdrawal of any rating obtained.  Any such downward revision or 
withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 


36 
 







 


PROFESSIONAL FEES 


In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, fees payable to Meyers, Nave, Riback, 
Silver & Wilson, A Professional Law Corporation as Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel, and 
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, are contingent upon the issuance of the Bonds.  
Although it is serving as Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel to the District in connection with 
the issuance of the Bonds, Bond Counsel represents the Underwriter in connection with other 
financings and matters unrelated to the Bonds. 


CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS 


Upon the delivery of the Bonds, Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson, A Professional 
Law Corporation, San Francisco, California, Bond Counsel, will issue its opinion approving the 
validity of the Bonds, the form of which opinion is set forth in APPENDIX D hereto.  Certain legal 
matters will be passed on by Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson, A Professional Law 
Corporation, as general counsel and as Disclosure Counsel to the District.   


UNDERWRITING 


The District has agreed to sell the Bonds to Brandis Tallman LLC (the “Underwriter”).  
The Underwriter has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Bonds at a 
purchase price of $________ (being the principal amount of the Bonds, less an Underwriter’s 
discount in the amount of $_______, plus net original issue premium of $________, and less 
the premiums for the Insurance Policy and Reserve Policy, to be wired to the Insurer, in the 
aggregate amount of $________).  The obligations of the Underwriter are subject to certain 
conditions precedent, and it will be obligated to purchase all such Bonds if any such Bonds are 
purchased.  The Underwriter intends to offer the Bonds to the public initially at the prices 
and/or yield set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement, which prices or yields may 
subsequently change without any requirement of prior notice. 


The Underwriter reserves the right to join with dealers and other underwriters in 
offering the Bonds to the public.  The Underwriter may offer and sell Bonds to certain dealers 
(including dealers depositing Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than the public 
offering prices, and such dealers may reallow any such discounts on sales to other dealers.  In 
reoffering Bonds to the public, the Underwriter may overallocate or effect transactions which 
stabilize or maintain the market prices for Bonds at levels above those which might otherwise 
prevail.  Such stabilization, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. 


37 
 







 


38 
 


ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 


Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not 
expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact.  This Official 
Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the District and the 
purchasers or Owners of any of the Bonds. 


The execution and delivery of this Official Statement have been authorized by the 
members of the District. 
 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By:                            


General Manager 
 







 


APPENDIX A 
 


SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE 
 


A-1 







 


 
B-1 


 


APPENDIX B 
 


GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE 
COUNTY OF SONOMA 


The following information concerning the unincorporated towns of Guerneville, Rio Nido, 
Monte Rio and Villa Grande (the “Towns”) and County of Sonoma (the “County”) is included only 
for the purpose of supplying general information regarding the area of the Towns and County. The 
Bonds are not a debt of any of the Towns, County, the State or any of its political subdivisions, and 
none of the Towns, County, the State or any of its political subdivisions is liable therefor.   


General Description and Background 


The District is the public water supply for the unincorporated Towns.  The Towns are 
located in the Lower Russian River Valley of the County.  The County is the twenty-ninth largest 
county in California, covering 1,768.23 square miles, of which 10.88 percent is water. The County 
is a coastal community, with 76 miles of coastline and has numerous climates that can change 
quickly. Bordered on the south by Marin County, to the north by Mendocino County and on the 
northeast by Lake County, to the east is Napa County, and to the southeast Solano and Contra 
Costa Counties.  The County measures 30 miles north to south and is only marginally smaller 
from east to west. 


Population 


The following table lists population figures for the County and the State for the last five 
calendar years. 


SONOMA COUNTY AND STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Population Estimates 


Calendar Years 2008 through 2012 
(As of January 1) 


Calendar 
Year 


Sonoma 
County 


State of 
California 


2008 476,650 36,856,222 
2009 480,598 37,077,204 
2010 484,084 37,309,382 
2011 486,778 37,570,307 
2012 489,283 37,826,160 


_______________ 
Source: State Department of Finance. 


 







 


 
B-2 


 


 
Employment and Industry 
 


The following table shows the average annual estimated numbers of wage and salary 
workers by industry for the County for the years 2008 through 2012. Figures do not include 
proprietors, the self-employed, unpaid volunteers or family workers, domestic workers in 
households, and persons in labor management disputes. 


 
Sonoma County 


Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment 
Calendar Years 2008 through 2012 


Annual Averages 
 


 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 


Civilian Labor Force (1) 260,100 256,600 256,300 256,400 256,900 
Employment 245,200 231,900 229,500 231,200 234,900 
Unemployment 14,900 24,700 26,800 25,200 22,000 
Unemployment Rate 5.7% 9.6% 10.5% 9.8% 8.6%
Wage and Salary Employment: (2)      
Management Occupations 10,960 10,410 9,930 9,380 9,410 
Business and Financial Operations  9,390 8,080 9,280 10,440 10,640 
Computer and Mathematical  4,000 3,230 2,900 3,130 3,020 
Architecture and Engineering 3,810 3,870 3,260 2,710 2,870 
Life, Physical and Social Science 1,720 1,710 1,870 1,310 1,420 
Community and Social Services 3,850 3,010 2,250 2,020 1,930 
Legal 830 770 570 580 640 
Education, Training and Library 14,290 12,830 12,050 11,480 12,140 
Arts, Design, Entertainment, Sports    
   and Media 2,500 2,250 1,960 2,070 


 
2,060 


Healthcare Practitioners and 
Technical 9,760 9,180 9,440 10,130 


 
10,560 


Healthcare Support 4,680 4,790 4,740 4,670 5,230 
Protective Service 3,030 2,960 3,630 3,420 3,300 
Food Preparation and Serving- 
   Related 17,530 18,090 17,120 16,690 


 
16,590 


Building and Grounds Cleaning and 
Maintenance 6,640 6,610 6,480 6,410 


 
6,320 


Personal Care and Service 4,550 5,040 4,810 4,770 4,770 
Sales and Related 20,580 20,310 19,230 19,380 19,190 
Office and Administrative Support 34,540 30,560 28,190 26,380 27,580 
Farming, Fishing and Forestry 2,450 2,280 2,200 2,390 2,360 
Construction and Extraction 12,520 11,160 8,960 7,190 6,500 
Installation, Maintenance and Repair 5,660 5,440 5,610 5,460 5,850 
Production 11,640 11,580 11,280 10,880 10,550 
Transportation and Material Moving 11,600 11,640 10,860 10,070 9,590 
________________      
(1) Labor force data is by place of residence; includes self-employed individuals, unpaid family workers, 


household domestic workers, and workers on strike. 
(2) Industry employment is by place of work; excludes self-employed individuals, unpaid family workers, 


household domestic workers, and workers on strike. 
Source: State of California Employment Development Department. 







 


 
B-3 


 


Major Employers 
 
The table below lists the largest manufacturing and non-manufacturing employers within 


the County as of 2013: 
 


SONOMA COUNTY 
Major Employers 


2013 (Listed Alphabetically) 
 


Employer Name Location Industry 
ABM Janitorial Service Santa Rosa Janitor Service 
Agilent Technologies Inc. Santa Rosa Instruments-Measuring  
Amica Mutual Insurance Company Petaluma Insurance 
Amy’s Kitchen Inc. Santa Rosa Frozen Food Processors  
Army National Guard Recruiter Santa Rosa State Government-National Security 
Arterial Vascular Engineering Santa Rosa Engineering 
Fairmont Sonoma Mission Inn & Spa Sonoma Hotels & Motels 
Fairmont-Sonoma Mission Inn Sonoma Hotels & Motels 
Friedman Brothers Hardware Santa Rosa Hardware-Retail 
JDS Uniphase Corp Santa Rosa Optical Instruments & Lenses  
Korbel Champagne Cellars Guerneville Wineries 
North Bay Construction Inc. Petaluma General Contractors 
Petaluma Valley Hospital Petaluma Hospitals 
Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital Santa Rosa Hospitals 
Santa Rosa Police Department Santa Rosa Police Departments 
Sonoma County Fire & Emergency Santa Rosa Government Offices-County 
Sonoma County Radio Mntnc Shop Santa Rosa Government Offices-County 
Sonoma County Sheriff Santa Rosa Sheriff 
Sonoma Developmental Center Eldridge Cognitive Disability-Development Disability 


Services 
Sutter Medical Center – Santa Rosa Santa Rosa Hospitals 
Walmart Windsor Department Stores 
Walmart Rohnert Park Department Stores 
________________ 
Source: State of California Employment Development Department, extracted from The America's Labor 
Market Information System (ALMIS) Employer Database. 
 


Commercial Activity 


In 2009, the State Board of Equalization converted the business codes of sales and use 
tax permit holders to North American Industry Classification System codes.  As a result of the 
coding change retail stores data for 2009 is not comparable to that of prior years.   


During calendar year 2011, total taxable sales transactions in the County were reported to 
be $6,962,114,000, a 7.3% increase over the total taxable transactions of $6,485,950,000 that 
were reported in the County during calendar year 2010. Summaries of historic taxable sales 
within the County during the past five years for which data is available are shown in the following 
table. Annual figures are not yet available for 2012. 







 


 
B-4 


 


SONOMA COUNTY 
Taxable Retail Sales 


Number of Permits and Valuation of Taxable Sales Transactions 
(Dollars in Thousands) 


 
      Retail and Food Stores(1) Total All Outlets 


 Number 
of Permits 


Taxable 
Transactions 


Number 
of Permits 


Taxable 
Transactions


2007 6,352 $5,404,597 17,638 $7,877,195 
2008 6,581 5,009,164 17,764 7,369,109 
2009(1) 10,645 4,413,001 16,810 6,263,829 
2010(1) 10,997 4,583,801 17,303 6,485,950 
2011(1) 10,799 4,895,477 16,972 6,962,114 


  ______________________ 
Source: California State Board of Equalization, Taxable Sales in California (Sales & Use Tax). 
(1)  Only years 2009-2011 include Food Stores. 


 
Construction Activity 


 
The following tables show a five-year summary from calendar year 2008 to 2012 of the 


number of new housing units and valuation of building permits issued in the County. 
 


SONOMA COUNTY 
New Housing Units Building Permits 


 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 


Single Family  
  Units 


544 371 287 449 312 


Multifamily Units 68 71 190 183 248 
Total Units 612 442 477 632 560 


_________________________________ 
Source:   U.S. Bureau of the Census. 


 
SONOMA COUNTY 


Building Permit Valuation 


 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 


New Single Family $143,081,750 $95,407,386 $67,650,877 $115,244,272 $91,879,218 
New Multifamily 9,154,487 13,484,885 19,869,443 16,125,001 33,068,580 
Total  152,236,237 108,892,271 87,520,320 131,369,273 124,947,798 
__________________________________ 
Source:   U.S. Bureau of the Census. 


 
 







 


APPENDIX C 
 


AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011-12 
 


C-1 







 


APPENDIX D 


FORM OF FINAL OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 


[Closing Date] 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Guerneville, California 


Re: $________ Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2013  


Ladies and Gentlemen: 


We have acted as Bond Counsel to the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) 
in connection with the issuance and sale of $________ aggregate principal amount of the 
District’s Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are being 
issued pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California, including the provisions 
of Articles 9, 10 and 11, Chapter 3, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 (commencing with Section 53570) 
of the California Government Code, as amended, a resolution adopted by Board of Directors of 
the District on June [6], 2013 (the “Resolution”), an Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2013 
(the “Indenture”), between the District and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.  The 
proceeds of the Bonds are being used to refinance certain outstanding obligations of the 
District.  The District is obligated under the Indenture to pay principal of and interest on the 
Bonds solely from Net Revenues (as defined in the Indenture).  Capitalized terms not otherwise 
defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Indenture. 


In such connection, we have reviewed the Resolution, the Indenture, the Tax Certificate, 
certificates of the District, the Trustee and others, opinions of counsel to the District and the 
Trustee, and such other documents, opinions and matters to the extent we deemed necessary 
to render the opinions set forth herein. 


The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing statutes, 
regulations, rulings and court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by 
such authorities.  Such opinions may be affected by actions taken or omitted to be taken or 
events occurring after the date hereof.  We have not undertaken to determine or to inform any 
person, whether any such actions or events are taken or do occur, and we disclaim any 
obligation to update this opinion.  We have assumed the genuineness of all documents and 
signatures presented to us (whether as originals or as copies) and the due and legal execution 
and delivery thereof by, and validity against, any parties other than the District.  We have not 
undertaken to verify independently and have assumed the accuracy of the factual matters 
represented, warranted or certified in the documents and of the legal conclusions contained in 
the opinions referred to in the second paragraph hereof.  Furthermore, we have assumed 
compliance with all covenants and agreements contained in the Indenture and the Tax 
Certificate, including, without limitation, covenants and agreements compliance with which is 
necessary to assure that future actions, omissions or events will not cause interest on the 
Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. 


We call attention to the fact that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the 
enforceability of the Bonds or the Indenture may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, 


D-1 







 


reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or 
affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable principles, to the exercise of judicial 
discretion in appropriate cases and to the limitations on legal remedies against governmental 
entities in the State of California.  We express no opinion with respect to any indemnification, 
contribution, choice of law, choice of forum or waiver provisions contained in the foregoing 
documents.  Finally, we undertake no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness 
of the Official Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds and express herein no 
opinion relating thereto.   


Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, we are of the following 
opinions: 


1. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the District 
and are valid and binding special obligations of the District, payable solely from the sources 
provided therefor in the Indenture. 


2. The Indenture has been duly adopted by the District and constitutes the valid and 
binding obligation of the District enforceable against the District in accordance with its terms.  
The Indenture creates a valid lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues and other funds pledged 
thereby for the security of the Bonds, in accordance with the terms of the Indenture, on a parity 
with all additional parity obligations issued pursuant to the Indenture.   


3. The obligation of the District to make payments on the Bonds does not constitute 
a debt of the District, or of the State of California or of any political subdivision thereof, within 
the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limit or restriction, and does not constitute an 
obligation for which the District is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which 
the District has levied or pledged any form of taxation. 


4. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) 
and is exempt from personal income taxes of the State of California.  Interest on the Bonds is 
not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative 
minimum taxes, although we observe that it is included in adjusted current earning when 
calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income.  We express no opinion regarding 
other tax consequences relating to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of 
interest on the Bonds. 


In rendering the opinion in this paragraph 4, we have relied upon and assumed (i) the 
material accuracy of the representations, statements of intention and reasonable expectations, 
and certifications of fact, contained in the Tax Certificate delivered on the date hereof with 
respect to the use of proceeds of the Bonds and the investment of certain funds, and other 
matters affecting the exclusion of interest on the Bonds in gross income for Federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103 of the Code, and (ii) compliance by the District with procedures 
and covenants set forth in the Tax Certificate and with the tax covenants set forth in the 
Indenture as to such matters.  Under the Code, failure to comply with such procedures and 
covenants may cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal 
income tax purposes, retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds, irrespective of the date 
on which such noncompliance occurs or is ascertained. 


Other provisions of the Code may give rise to adverse federal income tax consequences 
to particular holders of the Bonds.  The scope of this opinion is limited to matters addressed 


D-2 







 


D-3 


above and no opinion is expressed hereby regarding other federal tax consequences that may 
arise due to ownership of the Bonds. 


This opinion is issued as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update, 
revise or supplement this opinion to reflect any action hereafter taken or not taken, or any facts 
or circumstances, or any changes in law or in interpretations thereof, that may hereafter arise or 
occur, or for any other reason. 


Respectfully submitted, 


MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER & WILSON 
 


     







APPENDIX E 


FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
WATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 


SERIES 2013 
 


CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 


This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”), dated as of July 1, 
2013, is executed by the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) and U.S. Bank 
National Association (the “Dissemination Agent”), as dissemination agent in connection with the 
issuance of the $________ aggregate principal amount of the District’s Water Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to an 
Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2013 (the “Indenture”), between the District and U.S. Bank 
National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”).  The District covenants and agrees as follows: 


Section 1.  Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is being 
executed and delivered by the District for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds and in order to 
assist the Participating Underwriters (as defined herein) in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-
12(b)(5). 


Section 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture, which 
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined in this 
Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 


“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Reports provided by the District pursuant to, and 
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 


“Disclosure Representative” shall mean the President or General Manager of the District, 
or his or her designee, or such other officer or employee as the District shall designate in writing 
to the Dissemination Agent from time to time. 


“Dissemination Agent” shall mean U.S. Bank National Association, or any successor 
Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the District and which has filed with the District a 
written acceptance of such designation. 


“Fiscal Year” shall mean the twelve month period beginning on July 1 of each year and 
ending on June 30 of the following year. 


“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 
Agreement. 


“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and any successor 
entity designated under the Rule as the repository for filings made pursuant to the Rule. 


“Participating Underwriters” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds. 


 E-1 







 


“Repository” shall mean the MSRB. 


“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from 
time to time. 


Section 3.  Provision of Annual Reports. 


(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, annually not later 
than March 1 in each year following the end of the District’s Fiscal Year, commencing with the 
report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2013, provide to each Repository an Annual Report 
which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.  Not later 
than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to said date, the District shall provide the Annual Report to 
the Dissemination Agent.  In each case, the Annual Report may be submitted as a single 
document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other 
information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.  The information contained or 
incorporated in each Annual Report shall be for the Fiscal Year which ended on the preceding 
June 30.  The District shall provide a written certification with each Annual Report furnished to 
the Dissemination Agent to the effect that such Annual Report constitutes the Annual Report 
required to be furnished by it hereunder.  The Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely upon 
such certifications of the District and shall have no liability, duty or obligation whatsoever to 
review any such Annual Report.  Further, the Dissemination Agent shall have no liability for the 
contents of any such annual report.   


(b) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that an Annual Report has been 
provided to the Repository by the date specified in subsection (a), the Dissemination Agent shall 
send a notice to the MSRB, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 


(c) The Dissemination Agent shall: 


(i) determine each year prior to the Annual Report date the then-applicable 
rules and electronic format prescribed by the MSRB for the filing of annual continuing disclosure 
reports; and 


(ii) provide notice to the District that the Annual Report has been provided 
pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was provided to the MSRB. 


Section 4.  Content of Annual Reports.  The District’s Annual Report shall contain or 
incorporate by reference the most recent audited financial statements of the District prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles promulgated to apply to 
governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  In 
addition, for years following the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2013, the Annual Report shall 
contain an annual updating of the following tables and information contained in the Official 
Statement: 


 
(i) A history of active water service connections substantially in the 


form of Table 2 contained in the Official Statement.  


 
(ii) A breakdown of water customers substantially in the form of Table 


3 contained in the Official Statement.  


 E-2 







 


 
(iii) A description of the 10 largest customers of Water System (based 


on consumption) substantially in the form of Table 4 contained in 
the Official Statement.  


 
(iv)  A summary of the current and planned water rate structure 


substantially in the form of Tables 5, 6 and 7 contained in the 
Official Statement.  


 
(v) A statement of net assets for the Water Fund substantially in the 


form of Table 9 contained in the Official Statement.  


 
(vi) Historic revenues, expenditures and debt service coverage for the 


Water System substantially in the form of Table 10 contained in 
the Official Statement.  


In addition to any of the information expressly required to be provided under this Section, 
the District shall provide such further information, if any, as may be necessary to make the 
specifically required statements, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, 
not misleading.  


Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, 
which have been submitted to the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the 
document incorporated by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the 
MSRB.  The District shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by 
reference. 


Section 5.  Reporting of Significant Events. 


(a) The District shall give or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the 
following events with respect to the Bonds not later than 10 business days after the occurrence 
of the event: 


(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies. 


(2) Non-payment related defaults, if material. 


(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties. 


(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties. 


(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to 
perform. 


(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue 
Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of 
Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 
determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or 
other material events affecting the tax status of the security. 


 E-3 







 


(7) Modifications to rights of security holders, if material. 


(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers. 


(9) Defeasances. 


(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of 
the securities, if material. 


(11) Rating changes. 


(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the 
obligated person.  


(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition 
involving an obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all 
of the assets of the obligated person, other than in the ordinary 
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to 
undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its 
terms, if material. 


(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name 
of a trustee, if material.  


 
For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (12), the event is considered to 


occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar 
officer for an obligated person in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other 
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such 
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governmental body and officials or 
officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental 
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation 
by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of 
the assets or business of the obligated person. 


(b) If the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in 
Section 5(a), and, if the Listed Event is described in subsections (a)(2), (a)(6), (a)(7), (a)(8) (if 
the event is a bond call), (a)(10), (a)(13) or (a)(14) above, the District determines that 
knowledge of the occurrence of that Listed Event would be material under applicable Federal 
securities law, the District shall within ten business days of occurrence file a notice of such 
occurrence with the MSRB in electronic format, accompanied by such identifying information as 
is prescribed by the MSRB.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of the Listed Event described 
in subsections (a)(8) or (a)(9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the 
notice (if any) of the underlying event is given to Holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the 
Indenture. 


Section 6.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The District’s obligations under this 
Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full 
of all of the Bonds.  


Section 7.  Dissemination Agent.  The District may, from time to time, appoint or engage 
a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure 
Agreement, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a 
successor Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination Agent may resign by providing thirty (30) 


 E-4 







 


days written notice to the District.  If at any time there is no designated Dissemination Agent 
appointed by the District, or if the Dissemination Agent so appointed is unwilling or unable to 
perform the duties of the Dissemination Agent hereunder, the District shall be the Dissemination 
Agent and undertake or assume its obligations hereunder. 


Section 8.  Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Agreement, the District may amend this Disclosure Agreement (and the Dissemination Agent 
shall agree to any amendment requested by the District, provided the Dissemination Agent shall 
not be obligated to enter into any amendment increasing or affecting its duties or obligations), 
and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is 
supported by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities law, acceptable to the District 
and the Dissemination Agent, to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not, in and of 
itself, cause the undertakings herein to violate the Rule if such amendment or waiver had been 
effective on the date hereof but taking into account any subsequent change in or official 
interpretation of the Rule. 


Section 9.  Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be 
deemed to prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or 
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, 
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement.  If the District chooses to 
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in 
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, the District shall 
have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in 
any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 


Section 10.  Default.  In the event of a failure of the District or the Dissemination Agent to 
comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Dissemination Agent may, and, at 
the request of any Participating Underwriter or the Owners of at least 25% of the aggregate 
principal amount of the outstanding Bonds, shall (but only to the extent funds in any amount 
satisfactory to the Dissemination Agent have been provided to it or it has been otherwise 
indemnified to its satisfaction from any cost, liability, expense or additional charges whatsoever 
related thereto, including without limitation, fees and expenses of its attorneys), or any Bond 
owner may, take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking 
mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with its 
obligations under this Disclosure Agreement.  A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall 
not be deemed an event of default under the Indenture and the sole remedy under this 
Disclosure Agreement in the event of any failure of the District or the Dissemination Agent to 
comply with this Disclosure Agreement shall be an action to compel performance. 


Section 11.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of 
the District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and the Owners from time to 
time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 


 E-5 







 


 E-6 


Section 12. Counterparts.  This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By:       


General Manager 


U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Dissemination Agent 
 


By:       
Authorized Officer 
 







 


EXHIBIT A 
 


NOTICE OF MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD 
OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 


 
 


Name of Issuer:   Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
Name of Issue:  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Revenue Refunding 


Bonds, Series 2013  
 
Date of Issuance:  ____________, 2013 


 
 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the District has not provided an Annual Report with 
respect to the above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The 
District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by _________________________. 


 
 


Dated:      U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Dissemination Agent 


  
 By:  


Authorized Officer 
 
 
cc: District 


 


E-7 







 


APPENDIX F 


BOOK ENTRY PROVISIONS 
 


The information concerning DTC set forth herein has been supplied by DTC, and the 
District assumes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 


Unless a successor securities depository is designated pursuant to the Indenture, DTC 
will act as Securities Depository for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered 
securities, registered in the name of Cede & Co., DTC’s partnership nominee, or such other 
name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered 
Bond will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of 
such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 


DTC and Its Participants.  DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-
purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” 
within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, 
a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a 
“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of 
U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market 
instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit 
with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales 
and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized 
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the 
need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and 
non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and 
certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & 
Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities 
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered 
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the 
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a 
custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect 
Participants"). DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its 
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about 
DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 


Purchase of Ownership Interests.  Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system 
must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on 
DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial 
Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial 
Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners 
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as 
well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through 
which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in 
the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect 
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive 
certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of 
the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 


F-1 







 


To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC 
are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as 
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC 
and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any 
change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 
Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts 
such securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and 
Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of 
their customers. 


Notices and Other Communications.  Conveyance of notices and other 
communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, 
and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in 
effect from time to time.  THE DISTRICT AND THE TRUSTEE WILL NOT HAVE ANY 
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO SUCH DTC PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS 
FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS. 


Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within an issue 
are being prepaid, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each 
Direct Participant in such issue to be prepaid. 


Voting Rights.  Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with respect to the 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s procedures.  Under 
its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to an issuer as soon as possible after the 
record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those 
Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in 
a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 


Redemption Proceeds.  Payments of principal and interest with respect to the Bonds 
will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts on interest 
payment dates in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records unless 
DTC has reason to believe that it will not receive payment on the interest payment date.  
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and 
customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in 
bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and 
not of DTC nor its nominee, the Trustee, or the District, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of redemption proceeds, 
principal and interest to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC is the responsibility of the Trustee, disbursement of such 
payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such 
payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 


THE TRUSTEE AND THE DISTRICT SHALL NOT HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR 
OBLIGATION TO ANY DTC PARTICIPANT, ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER OR ANY OTHER 
PERSON CLAIMING A BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN THE BONDS UNDER OR 
THROUGH DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT, OR ANY OTHER PERSON WHICH IS NOT 
SHOWN ON THE REGISTRATION BOOKS OF THE TRUSTEE AS BEING AN OWNER OF 
BONDS, WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC 
OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT; THE PAYMENT BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OF 


F-2 







 


F-3 


ANY AMOUNT IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR 
INTEREST WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS; ANY NOTICE WHICH IS PERMITTED OR 
REQUIRED TO BE GIVEN TO OWNER OF THE BONDS UNDER THE INDENTURE; THE 
SELECTION BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY PERSON TO 
RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF A PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS; ANY 
CONSENT OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS OWNER OF THE BONDS; OR ANY 
OTHER PROCEDURES OR OBLIGATIONS OF DTC UNDER THE BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM. 


SO LONG AS CEDE & CO. IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, AS 
NOMINEE OF DTC, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE REGISTERED OWNERS OF THE 
BONDS SHALL MEAN CEDE & CO., AS AFORESAID, AND SHALL NOT MEAN THE 
BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS (EXCEPT FOR THE MATTERS UNDER THE 
CAPTION “TAX MATTERS” HEREIN) 


The foregoing description of the procedures and record keeping with respect to 
beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds, payment of principal and interest with respect to 
the Bonds to DTC Participants or Beneficial Owners, confirmation and transfer of beneficial 
owner interest in such Bonds and other related transactions by and between DTC, the DTC 
Participants and the Beneficial Owner is based solely on information provided by DTC.  
Accordingly, no representations can be made concerning these matters, and neither the DTC 
Participants nor the Beneficial Owners should rely on the foregoing information with respect to 
such matters, but should instead confirm the same with DTC or the DTC Participants, as the 
case may be. 


Discontinuance of Book-Entry System.  DTC may discontinue providing its services 
as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to 
the District or the Trustee.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities 
depository is not obtained, Bonds are required to be printed and delivered as described in the 
Indenture. 


The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry only transfers 
through DTC (or a successor securities depository).  In that event, Bonds will be printed and 
delivered as described in the Indenture. 







 


APPENDIX G 
SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY 


 
2071750.5  


G-1 
 







MEYERS NAVE DRAFT – 5/30/13 
 


$ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  
S W E E T W A T E R  S P R I N G S  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  


WATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
SERIES 2013 


P U R C H A S E  C O N T R A C T  


June __, 2013 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
17081 Highway 116, Suite B 
Guerneville, CA 95446 


Ladies and Gentlemen: 


Brandis Tallman LLC (the “Underwriter”) hereby offers to enter into this Purchase 
Contract with you, the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”), for the purchase by the 
Underwriter and the delivery by you of the Bonds specified below. The Bonds are being issued 
by the District for the purpose of (i) refunding the District’s Improvement District No. 1 General 
Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 1992 and Improvement District No. 1 General Obligation 
Bonds of 1990, Series 2003 (collectively, the “Prior Obligations”), (ii) purchasing a reserve fund 
insurance policy for the Bonds, and (iii) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds.  This offer is made 
subject to acceptance by you prior to 5:00 p.m., California time, on the date hereof. Upon such 
acceptance, this Purchase Contract shall be in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and 
shall be binding upon you and the Underwriter. All terms not defined herein shall have the 
meanings set forth in the Indenture (defined below). 


1. Purchase and Sale. Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the 
representations, warranties and agreements hereinafter set forth, the Underwriter agrees to 
purchase from the District, and the District agrees to sell to the Underwriter, all (but not less than all) 
of the $________ aggregate principal amount of the District’s Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 
Series 2013 (the “Bonds”), at the purchase price of $________ (being the principal amount of the 
Bonds, less an Underwriter’s discount in the amount of $________, plus/less [net] original issue 
premium/discount of $________, and less the premiums for the Policy and Reserve Policy (as 
defined herein), to be wired to [INSURER] (the “Insurer”), in the aggregate amount of $_______). 


The Bonds will have the maturities and bear interest at the rates set forth on Exhibit A 
hereto. The Bonds will be subject to redemption as set forth in the Official Statement herein 
described. The Bonds will be dated as described in the Official Statement. The Bonds will be 
issued in book-entry form only. 


The District acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the primary role of the Underwriter is to 
purchase securities for resale to investors in an arms-length commercial transaction between the 







District and the Underwriter and that the Underwriter has financial and other interests that differ 
from those of the District, (ii) the Underwriter is not acting as a municipal advisor, financial 
advisor or fiduciary to the District or any other person or entity and has not assumed any advisory or 
fiduciary responsibility to the District with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby and the 
discussions, undertakings and proceedings leading thereto (irrespective of whether the 
Underwriter has provided other services or is currently providing other services to the District on 
other matters), (iii) the only obligations the Underwriter has to the District with respect to the 
transaction contemplated hereby expressly are set forth in this Purchase Contract, except as 
otherwise provided by applicable rules and regulations of the SEC or the rules of the MSRB and (iv) 
the District has consulted its own legal, accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as 
applicable, to the extent it has deemed appropriate in connection with the transaction 
contemplated herein. 


2. Authorizing Instruments and Law. The Bonds shall be issued pursuant to the 
provisions of a resolution (the “Resolution”) adopted by the District on June [6], 2013 
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. The Bonds are issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, 
dated as of July 1, 2013 (the “Indenture”), between the District and U.S. Bank National 
Association (the “Trustee”), and shall be as described in the Indenture. 


The Bonds are limited obligations of the District payable primarily from and secured by 
certain net revenues (the “Net Revenues”) pledged under the Indenture. 


3. Offering the Bonds. The Underwriter agrees to offer all the Bonds to the public 
initially at the prices (or yields) set forth on the cover pages of the Official Statement of the 
District pertaining to the Bonds, dated June __, 2013 (together with all appendices thereto, the 
“Official Statement”). Subsequent to the initial public offering of the Bonds, the Underwriter 
reserves the right to change the public offering prices (or yields) as it deems necessary in 
connection with the marketing of the Bonds. The Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers 
at prices lower than such initial public offering prices. “Public Offering” shall include an offering 
to a representative number of institutional investors or registered investment companies, 
regardless of the number of such investors to which the Bonds are sold. 


4. Delivery of Official Statement on the Date Hereof. The District shall deliver to 
the Underwriter two (2) copies of the Official Statement manually executed on behalf of the 
District by an authorized representative. The District shall also deliver a sufficient number of 
copies of the Official Statement to enable the Underwriter to distribute a single copy of each 
Official Statement to any potential customer of the Underwriter requesting an Official Statement 
during the time period beginning when the Official Statement becomes available and ending on the 
End Date (defined below). The District shall deliver these copies to the Underwriter within seven 
(7) business days after the execution of this Purchase Contract and in sufficient time to 
accompany or precede any sales confirmation that requests payment from any customer of the 
Underwriter. The Underwriter shall inform the District in writing of the End Date, and covenants 
to file the Official Statement with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the 
“MSRB”) on a timely basis. 


2 
 







“End Date” as used herein is that date which is the earlier of: 


(a) ninety (90) days after the end of the underwriting period, as defined in 
SEC Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 28, 
1989 (“Rule 15c2-12”); or 


(b) the time when the Official Statement becomes available from the 
MSRB, but in no event less than twenty-five (25) days after the underwriting period (as 
defined in Rule 15c2-12) ends. 


The District has authorized the use of the Official Statement in connection with the 
public offering of the Bonds. The District also has consented to the use by the Underwriter 
prior to the date hereof of the Preliminary Official Statement dated June [11], 2013 relating to 
the Bonds in connection with the public offering of the Bonds (which, together with all 
appendices thereto, is herein called the “Preliminary Official Statement”). Authorized officers 
of the District have certified to the Underwriter that such Preliminary Official Statement 
was deemed to be final as of its date for purposes of Rule 15c2-12, with the exception of 
certain final pricing and related information referred to in Rule 15c2-12. The Underwriter 
has distributed a copy of each Preliminary Official Statement to potential customers on request. 


5. The Closing. At 9:00 A.M., California time, on July __, 2013, or at such 
other time or on such earlier or later business day as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the 
District and the Underwriter, the District will deliver (i) the Bonds in book-entry form 
through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) in New York, New 
York, and (ii) the closing documents hereinafter mentioned at the offices of Meyers, Nave, 
Riback, Silver & Wilson, A Professional Law Corporation, San Francisco, California, or 
another place to be mutually agreed upon by the District and the Underwriter. The 
Underwriter will accept such delivery from the District. The Underwriter will pay the 
purchase price of the Bonds as set forth in Section 1 hereof by wire transfer of 
immediately available funds. This payment and delivery, together with the delivery of 
the aforementioned documents, is herein called the “Closing.” 


6. District Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The District represents, 
warrants and covenants to the Underwriter that: 


(a) The District is a water district of the State of California (the 
“State”), duly organized and validly existing pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State, 
and has all necessary power and authority to enter into and perform its duties under the 
Indenture, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2013 (the 
“Continuing Disclosure Agreement”), by and between the District and the Trustee, the 
Official Statement and this Purchase Contract (collectively, the “District Documents”). 


(b) The Bonds, when issued in accordance with the Indenture, will be legally 
valid and binding special obligations of the District, entitled to the benefits of the Indenture and 
enforceable in accordance with their terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, 
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws or equitable principles relating 
to or limiting creditors’ rights generally. 


3 
 







(c) To the best knowledge of the District, neither the execution and 
delivery of the District Documents, or the approval and execution of the Official 
Statement or this Purchase Contract, and compliance with the provisions on the District’s 
part contained therein, nor the consummation of any other of the transactions herein and 
therein contemplated, nor the fulfillment of the terms hereof and thereof, materially 
conflicts with or constitutes a material breach of or default under nor materially 
contravenes any law, administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, 
indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to which the District 
is a party or is otherwise subject, nor does any such execution, delivery, adoption or 
compliance result in the security interest or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon 
any of the properties or assets of the District under the terms of any such law, administrative 
regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement 
or other instrument, except as provided by the District Documents. 


(d) The District Documents have been duly authorized, executed 
and delivered by the District, and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by 
the other parties thereto, constitute legal, valid and binding agreements of the District 
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as the enforcement thereof 
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization, fraudulent 
conveyance or other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and 
by the application of equitable principles if sought and by the limitations on legal 
remedies imposed on actions against cities in the State of California. 


(e) Except as may be required under blue sky or other securities laws of 
any state, there is no consent, approval, authorization or other order of, or filing with, or 
certification by, any regulatory agency having jurisdiction over the District required for the 
consummation by the District of the transactions contemplated by the Official 
Statement and this Purchase Contract. 


(f) To the best knowledge of the District, there is, and on the Closing (as 
hereinafter defined) there will be, no action, suit, proceeding or investigation at law or 
in equity before or by any court or governmental agency or body pending or threatened 
against the District to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any of the Bonds, or 
the payment or collection of any amounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of 
and interest on the Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the 
District Documents or the authority of the District to approve this Purchase Contract, or 
enter into the District Documents or contesting the powers of the District to enter into or 
perform  its obligations under any of the foregoing or in any way contesting the powers of 
the District in connection with any action contemplated by this Purchase Contract or to 
restrain or enjoin the execution of, or; except as described in the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement, the issuance or delivery of any of the Bonds, or 
the payment or collection of any amounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal 
of and interest on the Bonds, nor is there any reasonable basis for any such action, suit, 
proceeding or investigation. 


(g) The Preliminary Official Statement provided to the Underwriter has been 
deemed final by the District, as required by Rule 15c2-12. As of the date thereof and at all times 


4 
 







subsequent thereto up to and including the End Date, the information relating to the District, 
the Bonds, the Water System and the District Documents contained in the Official 
Statement was and will be materially complete for its intended purposes. The information 
relating to the District, the Bonds, the Water System and the District Documents contained in 
the Official Statement is true and correct in all material respects and such information does 
not contain any untrue or misleading statement of a material fact or omit to state any 
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading. 


(h) The District agrees to cooperate with the Underwriter in endeavoring 
to qualify the Bonds for offering and sale under the securities or blue sky laws of such 
jurisdictions of the United States as the Underwriter may request; provided, however, that 
the District will not be required to execute a special or general consent to service of 
process in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so subject or to qualify to do 
business as a foreign corporation in any jurisdiction where it is not so qualified. 


(i) By official action of the District prior to or concurrently with 
the execution hereof, the District has duly approved the distribution of the Official 
Statement, and has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery of, and the 
performance by the District of the obligations on its part contained in the District 
Documents and the consummation by it of all other transactions contemplated by the Official 
Statement and this Purchase Contract. 


(j) To the best knowledge of the District, it is not in breach of or 
default under any material applicable law or administrative regulation of the State of 
California or the United States or any material applicable judgment or decree or any loan 
agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to which 
the District is a party or is otherwise subject and in connection with which the District is 
obligated to make payments from its own funds, and no event has occurred and is continuing 
which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a 
default or an event of default under any such instrument the consequence of which 
could be the materially and adversely affect the performance of the District under the 
District Documents. 


(k) If between the date of this Purchase Contract and the End Date an 
event occurs, of which the District has knowledge, which might or would cause the 
information relating to the District, the Water System or the District’s functions, 
duties and responsibilities contained in the Official Statement, as may be then supplemented or 
amended, to contain an untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material 
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make such information therein, in the 
light of the circumstances under which it was presented, not misleading, the District 
will notify the Underwriter, and if, in the opinion of the Underwriter, such event requires 
the preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, 
the District will cooperate with the Underwriter in the preparation of an amendment or 
supplement to the Official Statement in a form and in a manner approved by the 
Underwriter, provided all expenses thereby incurred will be paid for by the District. 


5 
 







(l) If the information relating to the Water System, the District, its 
functions, duties and responsibilities contained in the Official Statement is amended 
or supplemented pursuant to the immediately preceding subparagraph, at the time 
of each supplement or amendment thereto and (unless subsequently again supplemented 
or amended pursuant to such subparagraph) at all times subsequent thereto up to and including 
the date of the Closing, the portions of the Official Statement so supplemented or 
amended (including any financial and statistical data contained therein) will not contain any 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated 
therein or necessary to make such information therein, in the light of the 
circumstances under which it was presented, not misleading. 


(m) The District covenants that it will comply with all tax covenants 
relating to it in the District Documents, the Tax Certificate of the District and this Purchase 
Contract. 


(n) Substantially all the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds (after 
deducting the expenses of issuance and sale of the Bonds paid for from such proceeds) 
will be used to refinance the Prior Obligations, and the District will not take or omit to 
take any action which action or omission will in any way cause the proceeds from the sale 
of the Bonds to be applied in a manner contrary to that provided in the Indenture, as amended 
from time to time. 


(o) The District will deliver all opinions, certificates, letters and other 
instruments and documents reasonably required by the Underwriter and this Purchase Contract. 


(p) Any certificate of the District delivered to the Underwriter shall 
be deemed a representation and warranty by the District to the Underwriter as to the 
statements made therein. 


(q) As of the time of acceptance hereof and as of the Closing the 
District does not and will not have outstanding any indebtedness which is secured by a 
lien on the District’ s general fund except as disclosed in the Official Statement. 


(r) Between the date of this Purchase Contract and the date of Closing, 
the District will not, without the prior written consent of the Underwriter, and except as 
disclosed in the Official Statement, offer or issue any certificates, notes or other 
obligations for borrowed money, or incur any material liabilities, direct or contingent, 
secured by a lien on the. District’s general fund. 


(s) All authorizations, approvals, licenses, permits, consents and orders of or 
filings with any governmental authority, legislative body, board, agency or commission having 
jurisdiction in the matters which are required for the due authorization of, which would 
constitute a condition precedent to or the absence of which would adversely affect the due 
performance by the District of its obligations in connection with, the District Documents 
have been duly obtained or made, except as may be required under the Blue Sky or 
securities laws of any state in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds. 


6 
 







(t) The District has not been notified of any listing or proposed listing by the 
Internal Revenue Service to the effect that either the District is a bond issuer whose 
arbitrage certifications may not be relied upon. 


(u) Except as otherwise described in the Official Statement, the District 
has not failed in any material respect to comply with any undertaking of the District 
under Rule 15c2-12 in the previous five years. 


7. Closing Conditions. The Underwriter has entered into this Purchase Contract in 
reliance upon the representations, warranties and covenants herein and the performance by 
the District of its respective obligations hereunder, both as of the date hereof and as of the date of 
the Closing. The Underwriter’s obligations hereunder are and shall be subject to the 
following additional conditions: 


(a) Bring-Down Representation.  The representations, warranties and 
covenants of the District contained herein shall be true and correct at the date hereof and at 
the time of the Closing, as if made on the date of the Closing. 


(b) Executed Agreements and Performance Thereunder.  At the time of the 
Closing: 


(i) the District Documents shall be in full force and effect, and 
shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented except with the written 
consent of the Underwriter; 


(ii) there shall  be in full  force and effect such resolutions 
(the “Authorizing Resolutions”) as, in the opinion of Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & 
Wilson, A Professional Law Corporation (“Bond Counsel”), shall be necessary in 
connection with the transactions on the part of the District contemplated by this Purchase 
Contract, the Official Statement and the District Documents; 


(iii) the District shall perform or have performed its obligations 
required as specified in the District Documents to be performed at or prior to Closing; and 


(iv) the Official Statement shall not have been supplemented or 
amended, except pursuant to Paragraph 6(k), or as otherwise may have been agreed to in 
writing by the Underwriter. 


(c) No Default.  At the time of the Closing, no default shall have occurred or 
be existing under the District Documents and the District shall not be in default in the 
payment of principal or interest on any of its bonded indebtedness which default shall 
adversely impact the ability of the District to make payments on the Bonds. 


(d) Termination Events.  The Underwriter shall have the right to terminate 
this Purchase Contract, without liability therefor, by written notification to the District if at 
any time at or prior to the Closing: 


7 
 







(i) any event shall occur which causes any statement contained 
in the Official Statement to be materially misleading or results in a failure of the Official 
Statement to state a material fact necessary to make the statements in the Official Statement, in 
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or 


(ii) the marketability of the Bonds or the market price thereof, in 
the opinion of the Underwriter, has been materially adversely affected by an 
amendment to the Constitution of the United States or by any legislation in or by the 
Congress of the United States or by the State, or the amendment of legislation pending as of 
the date of the District Documents in the Congress of the United States, or the 
recommendation to Congress or endorsement for passage (by press release, other form of 
notice or otherwise) of legislation by the President of the United States, the Treasury 
Department of the United States, the Internal Revenue Service or the President or ranking 
minority member of the Committee on Finance of the United States Senate or the 
Committee on Ways and Means of the United States House of Representatives, or the 
proposal for consideration of legislation by either such Committee, or the 
presentment of legislation for consideration as an option by either such Committee, or by 
the staff of the Joint Committee on Taxation of the Congress of the United States, or the 
favorable reporting for passage of legislation to either House of the Congress of the 
United States by a Committee of such House to which such legislation has been referred 
for consideration, or any decision of any Federal or state court or any ruling or 
regulation (final, temporary or proposed) or official statement on behalf of the United 
States Treasury Department, the Internal Revenue Service or other Federal or State 
authority materially adversely affecting the Federal or State tax status of the District, or 
the interest on bonds or notes or obligations of the general character of the Bonds; or 


(iii) any legislation, ordinance, rule or regulation shall be 
introduced in, or be enacted by any governmental body, department or agency of the States 
or a decision by any court of competent jurisdiction within the State or any court of the 
United States shall be rendered which, in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriter, 
materially adversely affects the market price of the Bonds; or 


(iv) legislation shall be enacted by the Congress of the United States, or 
a decision by a court of the United States shall be rendered, or a stop order, ruling, 
regulation or official statement by, or on behalf of, the Securities and Exchange 
Commission or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter 
shall be issued or made to the effect that the issuance, offering or sale of obligations of the 
general character of the Bonds, or the issuance, offering or sale of the Bonds, including all 
underlying obligations, as contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement, is in violation 
or would be in violation of, or that obligations of the general character of the Bonds, or the 
Bonds, are not exempt from registration under, any provision of the federal securities laws, 
including the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and as then in effect, or that the Indenture 
needs to be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended and as then in effect; 
or 


(v) additional material restrictions not in force as of the date hereof 
shall have been imposed upon trading in securities generally by any governmental authority 


8 
 







or by any national securities exchange which restrictions materially adversely affect the 
Underwriter’s ability to market the Bonds; or 


(vi) a general banking moratorium shall have been established by 
federal or State authorities; or 


(vii) the United States has become engaged in hostilities which 
have resulted in a declaration of war or a national emergency or there has occurred any 
other outbreak of hostilities or a national or international calamity or crisis, financial or 
otherwise, the effect of such outbreak, calamity or crisis on the financial markets of the 
United States, being such as, in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriter, would affect 
materially and adversely the ability of the Underwriter to market the Bonds (it being 
acknowledged by the Underwriter that as of the date hereof no such event is occurring); or 


(viii) the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding described in 
Paragraphs 6(f) hereof which, in the judgment of the Underwriter, materially adversely 
affects the market price of the Bonds; or 


(ix) there shall be in force a general suspension of trading on the 
New York Stock Exchange; or 


(x) an event described in paragraph (k) of Section 6 hereof shall 
have occurred which, in the reasonable professional judgment of the Underwriter, 
requires the preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Official 
Statement; or 


(xi) any rating or credit outlook of the Bonds by a national rating 
agency shall have been withdrawn or downgraded. 


(xii) any rating or credit outlook of the Insurers by a national 
rating agency shall have been withdrawn or downgraded. 


(e) Closing Documents.  At or prior to the Closing, the Underwriter shall 
receive with respect to the Bonds (unless the context otherwise indicates) the following 
documents: 


(i) Bond Opinion.  The approving opinion of Bond Counsel 
dated the date of the Closing and substantially in the form included as APPENDIX D to 
the Official Statement, together with a letter from such counsel, dated the date of the 
Closing and addressed to the Underwriter to the effect that the foregoing opinion may be 
relied upon by the Underwriter to the same extent as if such opinion was addressed to them. 


(ii) Supplemental Opinion.  A supplemental opinion or opinions of 
Bond Counsel addressed to the Underwriter, in substantially the form and to the following effect: 


1) The statements and information contained in the Official 
Statement on the cover page and under the captions “INTRODUCTION,” 
“THE BONDS” (except for the information under the captions “Book-


9 
 







Entry Only System”), “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” and “TAX 
MATTERS,” and in APPENDICES A and E, are accurate in all material 
respects; and 


2) The Bonds are exempt from registration under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), and the Indenture 
is exempt from qualification as an indenture pursuant to the Trust 
Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. 


(iii) District Counsel Opinion.  An opinion of District Counsel, 
dated as of the Closing and addressed to Bond Counsel and the Underwriter, in form 
and substance acceptable to Bond Counsel and counsel for the Underwriter, to the following 
effect: 


1) the District is a political subdivision and special 
district duly organized and validly existing under the Constitution and the laws 
of the State of California; 


2) the preparation and distribution of the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement and this Purchase Contract have been 
duly approved by the District; 


3) the resolution of the District approving and authorizing 
the execution and delivery of the Official Statement and the District 
Documents has been duly adopted at a meeting of the governing body of the 
District which was called and held pursuant to law and with all public 
notice required by law and at which a quorum was present and acting 
throughout and such resolution is in full force and effect and has not been 
amended, modified or rescinded; 


4) except as disclosed in the Official Statement, to the best 
knowledge of the attorneys working on this matter, there is no action, 
suit, proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, 
public board or body, pending or, to the current actual knowledge of such 
counsel, threatened against or affecting the District, which would 
adversely impact the District’s ability to complete the transactions described 
in and contemplated by the Official Statement, to restrain or enjoin any of 
the transactions referred to herein or contemplated hereby or in any way 
contesting or affecting the validity of the District Documents, or the 
transactions described in the Official Statement; 


5) except as disclosed in the Official Statement, to the current 
actual knowledge of the attorneys working on this matter, the execution 
and delivery of the District Documents and the approval of the Official 
Statement, and compliance with the provisions thereof and hereof, under 
the circumstances contemplated thereby, do not and will not in any 
material respect conflict with or constitute on the part of the District a breach 


10 
 







of or default under any agreement or other instrument to which the District is 
a party or by which it is bound or any existing law, regulation, court order or 
consent decree to which the District is subject; 


6) the District Documents have been duly authorized, 
executed and delivered by the District, and, assuming due authorization, 
execution and delivery by the other parties thereto, constitute legal, valid 
and binding agreements of the District enforceable in accordance with 
their respective terms, except as the enforcement thereof may be limited by 
bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization, fraudulent conveyance 
or other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by 
the application of equitable principles if sought and by the limitations on 
legal remedies imposed on actions against cities in the State of California; 


7) no authorization, approval, consent, or other order of 
the State of California or any other governmental authority or agency within the 
State of California is required for the valid authorization, execution and 
delivery of the District Documents and the approval of the Official 
Statement; and 


8) nothing has come to his attention which would lead him 
to believe that the information relating to the District and the Water System 
contained in the Official Statement contains an untrue statement or omits to 
state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of 
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 


(iv) Trustee Counsel Opinion.  The opinion of counsel to the 
Trustee, dated the date of the Closing, addressed to Bond Counsel and the Underwriter, in form 
and substance acceptable to counsel for the Underwriter substantially to the following effect: 


1) The Trustee is a national banking association duly 
organized and validly existing under the laws of the United States. 


2) The Trustee has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of the Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 


3) The Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement have been duly entered into and delivered by the Trustee and 
assuming due, valid and binding authorization, execution and delivery by 
the other parties thereto, constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations 
of the Trustee enforceable against the Trustee  in accordance with their 
respective terms, except as the enforceability thereof may be limited by 
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, or by general principles of 
equity. 


4) acceptance by the Trustee of the duties and 
obligations under the Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure 


11 
 







Agreement and compliance with provisions thereof will not conflict with or 
constitute a breach of or default under any law or administrative regulation 
to which the Trustee are subject. 


5) All approvals, consents and orders of any 
governmental authority or agency having jurisdiction in the matter 
which would constitute a condition precedent to the performance by the 
Trustee of their duties and obligations under the Indenture and the 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement have been obtained and are in full force 
and effect. 


(v) Disclosure Counsel Opinion.  An opinion, dated the date of 
the Closing addressed to the District and the Underwriter, of Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver 
& Wilson, A Professional Law Corporation, disclosure counsel, to the effect that based 
upon their participation in the preparation of the Official Statement as Disclosure 
Counsel to the District and without having undertaken to determine independently the accuracy 
or completeness of the contents in the Official Statement, such counsel has no reason to 
believe that the Official Statement, as of its date and as of the Closing Date (except for 
the financial statements and the other financial and statistical data included therein 
and the information included therein relating to The Depository Trust Company and 
the book-entry system (as such terms are defined in the Official Statement), and in the 
Appendices thereto as to all of which no opinion or belief need be expressed) contained or 
contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state any material 
fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they 
were made, not misleading. 


(vi) District Certificate.  A certificate, dated the date of Closing, 
signed by a duly authorized official of the District satisfactory in form and substance to the 
Underwriter, (a) confirming as of such date the representations and warranties of the 
District contained in this Purchase Contract; (b) certifying that the District has complied 
with all agreements, covenants and conditions to be complied with by the District at or 
prior to the Closing under the District Documents; (c) certifying that to the best of such 
official’s knowledge, no event affecting the District has occurred since the date of the 
Official Statement which either makes untrue or incorrect in any material respect as of the 
Closing the statements or information contained in the Official Statement or is not reflected in 
the Official Statement but should be reflected therein in order to make the statements and 
information therein not misleading; and (d) certifying that the District has authorized and 
consented to the inclusion in the Official Statement of the District’s financial report and 
accountant’s opinion for the year ended June 30, 2012, and no further consent of any party is 
required for such inclusion. 


(vii) Trustee’s Certificate.  A Certificate of the Trustee, dated the 
date of Closing, addressed to the District and the Underwriter, in form and substance 
acceptable to counsel for the Underwriter to the following effect: 


1) The Trustee is duly organized and existing as a 
national banking association in good standing under the laws of the United 


12 
 







States, having the full power and authority to accept and perform its duties 
under the Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement; 


2) Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Trustee 
will apply the proceeds from the Bonds to the purposes specified in the 
Indenture; and 


3) The Trustee has duly authorized and executed the 
Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 


(viii) Transcript.  A transcript of all proceedings relating to the 
authorization and issuance of the Bonds. 


(ix) Official Statement.  The Official Statement and each supplement or 
amendment, if any, thereto, executed on behalf of the District by a duly authorized officer of 
the District. 


(x) Documents.  An original executed copy of each of the 
District Documents. 


(xi) District Resolution.  A copy certified by the Secretary or 
Assistant Secretary of the District, of each resolution of the District relating to the District 
Documents, the actions contemplated thereby, provided that such resolution may be contained in the 
transcript provided pursuant to Paragraph 7(e)(viii) above. 


(xii) IRS Form 8038-G.  Evidence that the federal tax information form 
8038-G has been prepared for filing. 


(xiii) Tax Certificate.  A tax certificate in form satisfactory to Bond 
Counsel. 


(xiv) Rating.  Evidence as of the Closing Date satisfactory to the 
Underwriter that the Bonds have received, at a minimum, a rating of “___” from Standard & 
Poor’s Ratings Services (“S&P”), assuming delivery of the Policy (defined below), and 
underlying rating of “AA-” from S&P without regard to the Policy, and that such ratings have 
not been revoked or downgraded. 


(xv) Bond Insurance.  An executed municipal bond insurance policy 
(the “Policy”) of the Insurer, insuring the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the 
insured Bonds (as set forth in Exhibit A hereto), substantially in the form attached as 
APPENDIX G of the Official Statement. 


(xvi) Debt Service Reserve Insurance Policy.  An executed debt service 
reserve insurance policy (the “Reserve Policy”) of the Insurer, substantially in form acceptable to 
Bond Counsel and the Underwriter. 


(xvii) Opinion of Counsel to Insurer.  An opinion of counsel to the 
Insurer, dated as of the date of Closing, addressed to the Underwriter and the District in form and 


13 
 







substance acceptable to Bond Counsel and the Underwriter, substantially to the effect that: (i) 
the Insurer has been duly incorporated and is validly existing and in good standing under the laws 
of the State of its incorporation; (ii) the Policy and the Reserve Policy constitute the legal, valid 
and binding obligations of the Insurer enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, 
subject, as to enforcement, to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, rehabilitation and other 
similar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors’ and/or claimants’ rights 
against insurance companies and to general equity principles; and (iii) the information contained 
in the Official Statement under the caption “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE” does not contain 
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein 
or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading. 


(xviii) Certificate or opinion of an independent certified public accountant 
that the issuance of the Bonds complies with the parity obligation issuance requirements under 
the Citizens Installment Sale. 


(xix) CDIAC Statement.  A copy of the Notice of Sale required to be 
delivered to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission pursuant to Section 
53583 of the Government Code and Section 8855(g) of the Government Code. 


(xx) Additional Documents.  Such additional certificates, 
instruments and other documents as the Underwriter may reasonably deem necessary. 


If the District shall be unable to satisfy the conditions contained in this Purchase 
Contract, or if the obligations of the Underwriter shall be terminated for any reason permitted 
by this Purchase Contract, this Purchase Contract may be terminated by the Underwriter, and 
neither the Underwriter nor the District shall be under any further obligation hereunder. 


8. Expenses. The Underwriter shall be under no obligation to pay, and the 
District shall pay or cause to be paid, the expenses incident to the performance of the 
obligations of the District hereunder including but not limited to: 


(a) the costs of the preparation and printing, or other reproduction 
(for distribution on or prior to the date hereof) of the District Documents and the cost of 
preparing, printing, issuing and delivering the Bonds; 


(b) the fees and disbursements of any counsel, financial advisors, 
accountants or other experts or consultants retained by the District; 


(c) the fees and disbursements of Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel; 


(d) the cost of preparation and printing the Preliminary Official 
Statement and any supplements and amendments thereto and the cost of preparation and 
printing of the Official Statement, including a reasonable number of copies thereof for 
distribution by the Underwriter; 


(e) charges of rating agencies for the rating of the Bonds; 


14 
 







(f) the cost of printing of the District Documents; and 


(g) the expenses incurred by the Underwriter in connection with the 
public offering and distribution of the Bonds, including any advertising expenses. 


The Underwriter shall pay: (i) the cost of preparation and printing of any ‘blue sky” 
filings; (ii) all “blue sky” filing fees in connection with the public offering of the Bonds; 
(iii) fees, if any, payable to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission, the 
MSRB, the fees associated with obtaining CUSIP numbers for the Bonds, and fees of the 
Public Securities Association and the California Public Securities Association in connection 
with the execution and delivery of the Bonds; and (iv) all other expenses incurred by them 
in connection with the public offering of the Bonds not outlined in (a) through (g) above. 


9. Notice. Any notice or other communication to be given to the Underwriter 
may be given by delivering the same to Brandis Tallman LLC, 22 Battery Street, Suite 
500, San Francisco, CA 94111 Attn.: Rick Brandis. Any notice or other communication to 
be given to the District pursuant to this Purchase Contract may be given by delivering the 
same in writing to such entity, at the addresses set forth on the cover page hereof. 


10. Entire Agreement. This Purchase Contract, when accepted by the District, 
shall constitute the entire agreement between the District and the Underwriter and is made 
solely for the benefit of the District and the Underwriter (including the successors or 
assigns of any Underwriter). No other person shall acquire or have any right hereunder by 
virtue hereof, except as provided herein. All the District’s representations, warranties and 
agreements in this Purchase Contract shall remain operative and in full force and effect, 
regardless of any investigation made by or on behalf of the Underwriter, until the earlier of (a) 
delivery of and payment for the Bonds hereunder, and (b) any termination of this Purchase 
Contract. 


11. No Assignment. The rights and obligations created by this Purchase Contract 
shall not be subject to assignment by the Underwriter or the District without the prior 
written consent of the other parties hereto. 


12. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall 
for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof. 


13. State of California Law Governs. The validity, interpretation and performance 
of the District Documents shall be governed by the laws of the State. 


15 
 







16 
 


14. Counterparts. This Purchase Contract may be executed by the parties hereto in 
separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, 
but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 


 


BRANDIS TALLMAN LLC, as Underwriter 


By: _____________________________ 
Title: ____________________________ 


Accepted as of the date first stated above: 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


By: _____________________________ 
                     General Manager 







EXHIBIT A 


Principal 
 Amount  


Interest 
  Rate  


 
 Yield 


Maturity Date 
(September 1)   


2013    
2014    
2015    
2016    
2017    
2018    
2019    
2020    
2021    
2022    
2023    
2024    
2025    
2026    
2027    
2028    
2029    
2030    
2031    
2032    
2033    


 
 


$_______ ___% Term Bonds due September 1, 20__, Price ____%, Yield ____% 
 


$_______ ___% Term Bonds due September 1, 20__, Price ____%, Yield ____% 
 


* Insured maturities 
 
2081151.3  


 
 







Meyers Nave Draft of 5/10/13 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 


INDENTURE OF TRUST 
 


between the 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


and 
 


U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee 
 


RELATING TO THE 
 


$_________ 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


WATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
SERIES 2013 


 
Dated as of July 1, 2013 


 
 
 
 


 
 







 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


ARTICLE I  DEFINITIONS; EQUAL SECURITY .................................................................2 
Section 1.01.  Definitions ....................................................................................................2 
Section 1.02.  Equal Security.............................................................................................11 


ARTICLE II  TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF BONDS......................................................11 
Section 2.01.  Authorization of Bonds...............................................................................11 
Section 2.02.  Denominations, Medium, Method and Place of Payment and 


Dating of Bonds ...................................................................................11 
Section 2.03.  Interest on the Bonds ..................................................................................12 
Section 2.04.  Form of Bonds ............................................................................................12 
Section 2.05.  Execution of Bonds.....................................................................................12 
Section 2.06.  Transfer and Exchange of Bonds................................................................12 
Section 2.07.  Bond Registration Books ............................................................................13 
Section 2.08.  Temporary Bonds........................................................................................13 
Section 2.09.  Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen...............................................14 
Section 2.10.  Evidence of Signatures of Bond Owners and Ownership of 


Bonds ...................................................................................................14 
Section 2.11.  Book Entry System .....................................................................................15 
Section 2.12.  Limitations on Future Obligations Secured by Net Revenues....................17 


ARTICLE III  PROCEEDS OF BONDS; PLEDGE OF NET REVENUES ..........................18 
Section 3.01.  Delivery of Bonds; Payment of Debt Service; Pledge of Net 


Revenues ..............................................................................................18 
Section 3.02.  Depositing of Proceeds of Bonds and Other Amounts ...............................19 
Section 3.03.  Deposit of Debt Service Payments .............................................................20 
Section 3.04.  Payment Fund .............................................................................................20 
Section 3.05.  Use of Money in the Delivery Costs Fund .................................................21 
Section 3.11.  Receipt and Deposit of Gross Revenues; Revenue Fund ...........................21 
Section 3.07.  Held in Trust ...............................................................................................22 
Section 3.08.  Commingling of Moneys in Funds .............................................................22 
Section 3.09.  Liability of District Limited........................................................................22 
Section 3.09.  Arbitrage Covenant.....................................................................................23 
Section 3.11.  The Reserve Fund; Replenishment .............................................................23 


ARTICLE IV  REDEMPTION OF BONDS ...........................................................................24 
Section 4.01.  Terms of Redemption .................................................................................24 
Section 4.02.  Selection of Bonds for Redemption............................................................26 
Section 4.03.  Notice of Redemption; Rescission..............................................................26 
Section 4.04.  Partial Redemption of Bonds ......................................................................27 
Section 4.05.  Effect of Redemption..................................................................................27 


ARTICLE V  COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT AND THE TRUSTEE............................28 
Section 5.01.  Compliance with Indenture.........................................................................28 
Section 5.02.  Observance of Laws and Regulations.........................................................28 


- 
 


i







 


Section 5.03.  Prosecution and Defense of Suits ...............................................................28 
Section 5.04.  Accounting Records and Statements ..........................................................28 
Section 5.05.  Further Assurances .....................................................................................28 
Section 5.06.  Against Encumbrances ...............................................................................29 
Section 5.07.  Against Sale or Other Disposition of Property ...........................................29 
Section 5.08.  Against Competitive Facilities....................................................................29 
Section 5.09.  Tax Covenants ............................................................................................29 
Section 5.10.  Operation of the System .............................................................................30 
Section 5.11.  Payment of Claims......................................................................................30 
Section 5.12.  Compliance with Contracts.........................................................................30 
Section 5.13.  Insurance.....................................................................................................30 
Section 5.14.  Books and Accounts; Financial Statements................................................30 
Section 5.15.  Payment of Taxes and Compliance with Governmental 


Regulations ..........................................................................................31 
Section 5.17.  Collection of Rates and Charges.................................................................31 
Section 5.18.  Eminent Domain Proceeds..........................................................................32 
Section 5.19.  Continuing Disclosure to Owners...............................................................32 
Section 5.20.  Rebate of Excess Investment Earnings to United States ............................33 


ARTICLE VI  DEFAULT AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY........................................34 
Section 6.01.  Events of Default and Events of Mandatory Acceleration; 


Acceleration of Maturities ...................................................................34 
Section 6.02.  Other Remedies of the Trustee ...................................................................35 
Section 6.03.  Non-Waiver.................................................................................................35 
Section 6.04.  Remedies Not Exclusive .............................................................................36 
Section 6.05.  No Liability by the Trustee to the Owners .................................................36 
Section 6.06.  Limitation on Owners’ Right to Bring Suit ................................................36 
Section 6.07.  Application of Funds Upon Default............................................................36 
Section 6.08.  Rights of the Owners of Parity Obligations................................................38 


ARTICLE VII  THE TRUSTEE..............................................................................................38 
Section 7.01.  Trustee; Duties, Removal and Resignation.................................................38 
Section 7.02.  Compensation of the Trustee ......................................................................39 
Section 7.03.  Protection to Trustee...................................................................................39 
Section 7.04.  Payment Limited.........................................................................................42 
Section 7.05.  Merger or Consolidation.............................................................................42 
Section 7.06.  Funds and Accounts....................................................................................42 


ARTICLE VIII  AMENDMENT OF OR SUPPLEMENT TO INDENTURE .......................42 
Section 8.01.  Amendment or Supplement by Consent of Owners ...................................42 
Section 8.02.  Disqualified Bonds .....................................................................................43 


ARTICLE IX  DEFEASANCE ...............................................................................................43 
Section 9.01.  Defeasance ..................................................................................................43 
Section 9.02.  Unclaimed Moneys .....................................................................................44 


ARTICLE X  MISCELLANEOUS .........................................................................................45 


- 
 


ii







 


- 
 


iii


Section 10.01.  Benefits of Prior Indenture Limited to Parties..........................................45 
Section 10.02.  Successor Deemed Included in all References to Predecessor .................45 
Section 10.03.  Execution of Documents by Owners ........................................................45 
Section 10.04.  Waiver of Personal Liability.....................................................................45 
Section 10.05.  Acquisition of Bonds by District or the District .......................................45 
Section 10.06.  Content of Certificates ..............................................................................46 
Section 10.07.  Notice by Mail ..........................................................................................46 
Section 10.08.  Funds 46 
Section 10.09.  Investments ...............................................................................................46 
Section 10.10.  Article and Section Headings, Gender and References ............................47 
Section 10.11.  Partial Invalidity .......................................................................................47 
Section 10.12.  California Law ..........................................................................................48 
Section 10.13.  Notices ......................................................................................................48 
Section 10.14.  Effective Date ...........................................................................................48 
Section 10.15.  Execution in Counterparts ........................................................................48 
Section 10.16.  Payments Due on Days that are not Business Days..................................48 
 


APPENDIX A FORM OF BOND .................................................................................... A-1 







 


INDENTURE OF TRUST 


This INDENTURE OF TRUST (the “Indenture”), dated as of July 1, 2013, between the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, a water district duly organized and validly 
existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the State of California (the 
“District”) and U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association, duly organized 
and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America, as trustee (the 
“Trustee”). 


 


W I T N E S S E T H: 


WHEREAS, the District has previously issued its Improvement District No. 1 General 
Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 1992 (the “1992 Obligations”) and Improvement District No. 1 
General Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 2003 (the “2003 Obligations” and together with the 
1992 Obligations, the “Prior Obligations”) pursuant to Resolution No. 64, as amended by 
Resolution No. 79, adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on October 9, 1991 and 
March 16, 1992, respectively (collectively, the “1992 Bond Resolution”) with respect to the 
1992 Obligations and Resolution No. 03-15, adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on 
April 3, 2003 (the “2003 Bond Resolution” and together with the 1992 Bond Resolution, the 
“Prior Bond Resolutions”) with respect to the 2003 Obligations; 


WHEREAS, the District is authorized pursuant to Articles 9, 10 and 11, Chapter 3, Part 
1, Division 2, Title 5 (commencing with Section 53550) of the California Government Code, as 
amended, to issue revenue bonds to provide funds to refund its outstanding indebtedness which 
is payable from Net Revenues (as defined herein); and 


WHEREAS, in order to refund the Prior Obligations, the District has decided to issue its  
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 in an aggregate principal amount of $_________, 
secured by Net Revenues as provided herein; and 


WHEREAS, the District hereby certifies that all acts, conditions and things required by 
law to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with 
the execution and entering into of this Indenture by such party does exist, have happened and 
have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the 
parties hereto are now duly authorized to execute and enter into this Indenture; 


NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PROMISES AND OF THE 
MUTUAL AGREEMENTS AND COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN AND FOR OTHER 
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE PARTIES HERETO DO HEREBY AGREE AS 
FOLLOWS: 


1 
 







 


 
 


ARTICLE I 
 


DEFINITIONS; EQUAL SECURITY 


Section 1.01.  Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in 
this Section 1.01 shall for all purposes hereof, and of any amendment hereof or supplement 
hereto, of the Bonds and of any certificate, opinion, request or other document mentioned herein 
or therein have the meanings defined herein, the following definitions to be equally applicable to 
both the singular and plural forms of any of the terms defined herein: 


“1992 Bond Resolution” means Resolution No. 64, as amended by Resolution No. 79, 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on October 9, 1991 and March 16, 1992, 
respectively, with respect to the 1992 Obligations.  


“1992 Obligations” means the District’s outstanding Improvement District No. 1 General 
Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 1992. 


“2003 Bond Resolution” means Resolution No. 03-15, adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the District on April 3, 2003 with respect to the 2003 Obligations. 


“2003 Obligations” means the District’s outstanding Improvement District No. 1 General 
Obligation Bonds of 1990, Series 2003. 


“Authorized Officer” means, with respect to the District, its President, Vice President or 
General Manager or any other person designated as an Authorized Representative of the District 
by a Written Certificate of the District signed by its President, Vice President or General 
Manager, and filed with the Trustee. 


“Bond Year” means the period from the Closing Date through September 1, 2013, and 
thereafter the twelve-month period commencing on September 2 of each year through and 
including September 1 of the following year. 


“Bonds” means the $_________ principal amount of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2013 authorized hereby and at any time Outstanding hereunder that are issued by the 
District under and pursuant to Article II of this Indenture. 


“Bond Counsel” means  Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson or any other attorney or 
firm of attorneys appointed by and acceptable to the District, of nationally-recognized 
experience in the execution and delivery of obligations the interest in which is excludable from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code. 


“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday or a day 
on which banks are authorized to be closed for business in California or on which the Principal 
Office is authorized to be closed. 


2 
 







 


“Certificate of the District” means an instrument in writing signed by an Authorized 
Officer. 


“Citizens Certificates” mean the certificates of participation held by Citizens Business 
Bank, executed and delivered in the original principal amount of $3,000,000. 


“Closing Date” means the date on which the Bonds are delivered to the original 
purchasers thereof, which date is July __, 2013. 


“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Each reference to a 
section of the Code herein shall be deemed to include the United States Treasury Regulations, 
including temporary and proposed regulations relating to such section which are applicable to 
the Bonds or the use of the proceeds thereof. 


“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” shall mean the agreement by that name, dated as of 
July 1, 2013, between the District and the dissemination agent named therein. 


“Debt Service” means, during any period of computation, the amount obtained for such 
period by totaling the following amount-- 


 (a) The principal amount of all Outstanding serial Bonds and Parity 
Obligations coming due and payable by their terms in such period (except to the extent that such 
principal has been fully capitalized and is invested in Federal Securities which mature at times 
and in such amounts as are necessary to pay the principal to which such amounts are pledged); 


 (b) The minimum principal amount of all Outstanding term Bonds and Parity 
Obligations scheduled to be redeemed by operation of mandatory sinking fund deposits in such 
period, together with any premium thereon (except to the extent that such principal has been 
fully capitalized and is invested in Federal Securities which mature at times and in such amounts 
as are necessary to pay the principal to which such amounts are pledged); and 


 (c) The interest which would be due during such period on the aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds and Parity Obligations which would be Outstanding in such period if 
the Bonds or Parity Obligations are retired as scheduled (except to the extent that such interest 
has been fully capitalized and is invested in Federal Securities which mature at times and in such 
amounts as are necessary to pay the interest to which such amounts are pledged), but deducting 
and excluding from such aggregate amount the amount of Bonds and Parity Obligations no 
longer Outstanding; provided that, whenever interest as described herein accrues at other than a 
fixed rate, such interest shall be assumed to be a rate equal to the greater of (i) the actual rate on 
the date of calculation, or if the Parity Obligation is not yet outstanding, the initial rate (if 
established and binding), (ii) if the Parity Obligation has been outstanding for at least twelve 
months, the average rate over the twelve months immediately preceding the date of calculation, 
and (iii) (x) if interest on the Parity Obligation is excludable from gross income under the 
applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the most recently published The Bond 
Buyer Bond Revenue Index  (or comparable index if no longer published) plus fifty (50) basis 
points, or (y) if interest is not so excludable, the interest rate on direct U.S. Treasury Obligations 
with comparable maturities, plus fifty (50) basis points. 


3 
 







 


“Debt Service Account” means the account of that name established by the Trustee 
pursuant to Section 3.04 hereof. 


“Debt Service Payments” mean the payments of Debt Service on the Bonds due 
hereunder. 


“Delivery Costs” means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or 
reimbursable to the District relating to the refunding of the Prior Obligations, including but not 
limited to filing costs, settlement costs, printing costs, reproduction and binding costs, initial fees 
and charges of the Trustee and its counsel, financing discounts, legal fees and charges, financial 
and other professional consultant fees, costs of rating agencies for credit ratings, fees for 
execution, transportation and safekeeping of Bonds and charges and fees in connection with the 
foregoing. 


“Delivery Costs Fund” means the fund of that name established by Section 3.02 hereof. 


“Depository” means (a) initially, DTC, and (b) any other qualified securities depository 
acting as Depository pursuant to Section 2.11 hereof. 


“Depository System Participant” means any participant in the Depository’s book entry 
system. 


“District” means the Sweetwater Springs Water District, a water district duly organized 
and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of California, including the County 
Water District Law (California Water Code Section 30000 et seq.), and its successors and 
assigns. 


“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors 
and assigns. 


“Due Date” means the fifth (5th) Business Day of the month prior to each Interest 
Payment Date. 


“DWR Loans” means, collectively, the loans from the State Department of Water 
Resources, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $2,870,000. 


“Event of Default” means an event of default described in Section 6.01 hereof. 


“Federal Securities” mean (a) direct obligations (other than an obligation subject to 
variation in principal repayment) of the United States of America, (b) obligations fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed as to timely payment of the interest and principal by the United 
States of America, (c) obligations of any agency or instrumentality of the United States of 
America as to which the timely payment of the interest on and the principal of such obligations 
is backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, or (d) evidences of 
ownership of proportionate interests in future interest and principal payments on obligations 
described above held by a bank or trust company as custodian, under which the owner of the 
investment is the real party in interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually 


4 
 







 


against the obligor and the underlying government obligations are not available to any person 
claiming through the custodian or to whom the custodian may be obligated. 


“Fiscal Year” means the twelve calendar month period terminating on June 30 of each 
year, or any other annual accounting period hereafter selected and designated by the District as 
its Fiscal Year in accordance with applicable law. 


“Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” mean the uniform accounting and reporting 
procedures prescribed by the California State Controller or his successor for special districts in 
the State of California, or failing the prescription of such procedures means generally accepted 
accounting principles as presented and recommended by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants or its successor, or by the National Council on Governmental Accounting or 
its successor, or by any other generally accepted authority on such principles. 


“Government” means the United States of America, acting through the United States 
Department of Agriculture. 


“Governmental Loan” means a loan from the State or the United States of America, 
acting through any of its agencies, to finance improvements to the Water System, and the 
obligation of the District to make payments to the State or the United States of America under 
the loan agreement memorializing said loan on a parity basis with the payment of Debt Service 
Payments. 


“Gross Revenues” means all gross charges (including surcharges, if any) received for, 
and all other gross income and receipts derived by the District from, the ownership and operation 
of the Water System or otherwise arising from the Water System, including but not limited to (a) 
connection charges, (b) investment earnings on amounts held in the Revenue Fund or in any 
other fund established with respect to the Water System, (c) the proceeds of any ad valorem 
property taxes received by the District, other than ad valorem property taxes levied for the 
purpose of paying bonded indebtedness of the District, and (d) rental income related to the Water 
System.  Gross Revenues does not include (i) refundable deposits made to establish credit, and 
(ii) the proceeds of any special assessments or special taxes levied upon real property within any 
improvement district served by the District for the purpose of paying special assessment bonds 
or special tax obligations of the District relating to the Water System.  Gross Revenues shall also 
include interest with respect to any Parity Obligations reimbursed to or on behalf of the District 
by the United States of America.   


“Indenture” means this Indenture of Trust between the Trustee and the District, dated as 
of July 1, 2013, as originally executed and entered into and as it may from time to time be 
amended or supplemented in accordance herewith. 


“Independent Certified Public Accountant” means any certified public accountant or firm 
of certified public accountants duly licensed and entitled to practice, and practicing as such, 
under the laws of the State of California, appointed and paid by the District, and each of whom-- 


1. is in fact independent and not under the domination of the District; 


5 
 


5 







 


2. does not have a substantial financial interest, direct or indirect, in the 
operations of the District; and 


3. is not connected with the District as a board member, officer or employee 
of the District, but may be regularly retained to audit the accounting records of and make reports 
thereon to the District. 


“Information Services” means in accordance with then-current guidelines of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, one or more services selected by the District which are 
then providing information with respect to called Bonds as the District may designate in a 
certificate delivered to the Trustee. 


“Interest Payment Date” means March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing 
September 1, 2013. 


“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means the largest annual Debt Service on the Bonds 
during the period from the date of such determination through the final maturity date of the 
Bonds. 


“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., its successors and assigns. 


“Net Proceeds” means, when used with respect to any insurance or condemnation award, 
the proceeds from such insurance or condemnation award remaining after payment of all 
reasonable expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in the collection of such proceeds. 


“Net Revenues” means, for any period, an amount equal to all of the Gross Revenues 
received during such period minus the amount required to pay all Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses becoming payable during such period.  


“Nominee” means (a) initially, Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and (b) any other 
nominee of a Depository designated pursuant to Section 2.11 hereof. 


“Operation and Maintenance Expenses” means the reasonable and necessary costs and 
expenses paid by the District to maintain and operate the Water System, including but not 
limited to (a) costs of electricity and other forms of energy supplied to the Water System, (b) the 
reasonable expenses of management and repair and other costs and expenses necessary to 
maintain and preserve the Water System in good repair and working order, and (c) the 
reasonable administrative costs of the District attributable to the operation and maintenance of 
the Water System.  Operation and Maintenance Expenses do not include (i) debt service payable 
on obligations incurred by the District with respect to the Water System, including but not 
limited to the Debt Service Payments and any Parity Obligations, (ii) depreciation, replacement 
and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, and (iii) amortization of intangibles or other 
bookkeeping entries of a similar nature. 


6 
 







 


“Outstanding” when used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds, means 
(subject to the provisions of Section 8.02) all Bonds except: 


(1) Bonds canceled by the Trustee; 


(2) Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid within the meaning of Section 
9.01; and 


(3) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which replacement Bonds shall have 
been executed and delivered hereunder. 


“Owner” or “Bondowner” means the registered owner of any Outstanding Bond. 


“Parity Obligations” means the DWR Loans, the Citizens Certificates and indebtedness 
or other obligations (including leases and installment sale agreements) hereafter issued or 
incurred by the District and secured by a pledge of and lien on Net Revenues equally and ratably 
with the Debt Service Payments. 


“Payment Fund” means the fund by that name established in Section 3.03 hereof. 


“Permitted Investments” mean any of the following which at the time of investment are 
legal investments under the laws of the State of California for the moneys proposed to be 
invested therein (the Trustee is entitled to conclusively rely upon any direction of the District as 
a certification that such investment constitutes a Permitted Investment): 


1. Direct obligations of the United States of America (including obligations issued 
or held in book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury, but excluding CATS 
and TIGRS) or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed 
by the United States of America. 


2. Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed 
by any of the following federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full 
faith and credit of the United States of America (stripped securities are only permitted if they 
have been stripped by the agency itself): 


Farmers Home Administration (FmHA) 
Certificates of beneficial ownership 


Federal Housing Administration Debentures (FHA) 


General Services Administration 
Participation certificates 


Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or “Ginnie Mae”) 
GNMA – guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds 
GNMA – guaranteed pass-through obligations (participation 
certificates) 
(not acceptable for certain cash-flow sensitive issues.) 


7 
 







 


U.S. Maritime Administration 
Guaranteed Title XI financing 


U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
Project Notes 
Local District Bonds 
New Communities Debentures – U.S. Government guaranteed 
debentures 
U.S. Public Housing Notes and Bonds – U.S. Government 
guaranteed public housing notes and bonds 


3. Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed 
by any of the following non-full faith and credit U.S. government agencies (stripped securities 
are only permitted if they have been stripped by the agency itself): 


Federal Home Loan Bank System 
Senior debt obligations 


Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or “Freddie Mac”) 
Participation certificates 
Senior debt obligations 


Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or “Fannie Mae”) 
Mortgage-backed securities and senior debt obligations 


Resolution Funding Corp. (REFCORP) obligations 


Farm Credit System 
Consolidated system-wide bonds and notes 


Federal Agriculture Mortgage Association 


Tennessee Valley District 


4. Money market funds registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 
1940, whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, and having a rating 
by S&P of “AAAm-G,” “AAA-m,” or “AA-m” and if rated by Moody’s rated “Aaa,” “Aa1” or 
“Aa2,” including funds for which the Trustee, its parent holding company, if any, or any 
affiliates or subsidiaries of the Trustee provide investment advisory or other management 
services. 


5. Certificates of deposit secured at all times by collateral described in 1 and/or 2 
above.  Such certificates must be issued by commercial banks, savings and loan associations or 
mutual savings banks including the Trustee and its affiliates.  The collateral must be held by a 
third party and the Owners must have a perfected first security interest in the collateral; and 
unsecured certificates of deposit, time deposits, money market deposits, demand deposits and 
bankers’ acceptances of any bank (including those of the Trustee, its parent and its affiliates) the 


8 
 







 


short-term obligations of which are rated on the date of purchase in one of the two highest rating 
categories by S&P and by Moody’s.  


6. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or money market 
deposits which are fully insured by FDIC, including BIF and SAIF. 


7. Investment agreements, including GIC’s, forward purchase agreements and 
reserve fund put agreements. 


8. Commercial paper rated, at the time of purchase, “Prime -1” by Moody’s and “A-
1” or better by S&P. 


9. Bonds or notes issued by any state or municipality which are rated by Moody’s 
and S&P in one of the two highest rating categories assigned by such agencies. 


10. Federal funds or bankers acceptances with a maximum term of one year of any 
bank which has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation rating of “Prime -1” or 
“A2” or better by Moody’s and “A-1” or “A” or better by S&P. 


11. Repurchase agreements for 30 days or less must follow the following criteria: 


(i) Repurchase agreements that provide for the transfer of securities from a 
dealer bank or securities firm (seller/borrower) to the Trustee (buyer/lender), and the transfer of 
cash from the Trustee to the dealer bank or securities firm with an agreement that the dealer bank 
or securities firm will repay the cash plus a yield to the Trustee in exchange for the securities at a 
specified date. 


12. Asset-backed Securities:  As authorized in Government Code Section 53601(n), 
investment in any equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer receivable pass-through 
certificate or consumer receivable-backed bond with a maximum remaining final maturity of five 
years.  Purchases will be restricted to securities with an expected weighted average life not to 
exceed three years.  Securities eligible for investment under this subdivision shall be rated 
“AAA” by a nationally recognized rating service.   


13. Mortgage-backed Securities:  As authorized in Government Code Section 
53601(n), investment in any mortgage pass-through security, collateralized mortgage obligation, 
mortgage-backed or other pay-through bond, with a maximum remaining final maturity of five 
years.  Purchases will be restricted to securities with an expected weighted average life not to 
exceed three years.  Securities eligible for investment under this subdivision shall be rated 
“AAA” by a nationally recognized rating service.  Purchases of asset-backed and mortgage-
backed securities may not exceed 20% of the District’s portfolio in total. 


14. Medium-term Notes:  Corporate notes issued by corporations organized and 
operating within the United States with a rating of “A” or higher at the time of purchase by a 
nationally recognized rating service and with a maximum remaining maturity of no more than 
three (3) years after the date of purchase. 


9 
 







 


15. The Local Agency Investment Fund created pursuant to Section 16429.1 of the 
California Government Code, to the extent the Trustee is authorized to register such investment 
in its name. 


16. Shares in a California common law trust established pursuant to Title 1, Division 
7, Chapter 5 of the Government Code of the State of California which invests exclusively in 
investments permitted by Section 53601 of Title 5, Division 2, Chapter 4 of the Government 
Code of California, as it may be amended. 


17. The Sonoma County Pooled Treasury Portfolio. 


“Principal Office” means the corporate trust office of the Trustee set forth in 
Section 10.13 (except for payment, surrender and exchanges of the Bonds which shall be the 
corporate trust office of the Trustee located at 60 Livingston Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55101), or 
such other or additional offices as may be designated by the Trustee. 


“Prior Bond Resolutions” means, collectively, the 1992 Bond Resolution and the 2003 
Bond Resolution. 


“Prior Obligations” means, collectively, the District’s outstanding 1992 Obligations and 
2003 Obligations. 


“Record Date” means the fifteenth day of the calendar month prior to an Interest Payment 
Date. 


“Redemption Account” means the account of that name established by the Trustee 
pursuant to Section 3.04 hereof. 


“Reserve Requirement” means, as of any date of calculation, the lesser of (i) 10% of the 
initial principal amount of the Bonds, (ii) an amount equal to Maximum Annual Debt Service, or 
(iii) 125% of average annual Debt Service Payments payable hereunder; provided, that as of the 
Closing Date, the Reserve Requirement shall be equal to the amount set forth in Section 3.02 
hereof. 


“Reserve Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 3.11. 


“Responsible Officer” means any officer of the Trustee assigned by the Trustee to 
administer the trusts established hereunder. 


“Revenue Fund” means the fund of the District into which it deposits Gross Revenues. 


“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group, a division of McGraw Hill 
Incorporated, its successors and assigns. 


“Securities Depositories” mean The Depository Trust Company, 55 Water Street, 50th 
Floor, New York, New York 10041-0099, Attention:  Call Notification Department, Fax (212) 
855-7232; and, in accordance with then current guidelines of the Securities and Exchange 


10 
 







 


Commission, such other addresses and/or such other securities depositories as the District may 
designate in writing to the Trustee. 


“State” means the State of California. 


“Subordinate Debt” means indebtedness or other obligations (including leases and 
installment sale agreements) hereafter issued or incurred and secured by a pledge of and lien on 
Net Revenues subordinate to the Bonds. 


“Trustee” means U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association duly 
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America, or its 
successor or any other bank or trust company which may at any time be substituted in its place as 
provided in Section 7.01. 


“Water System” means the entire existing system of the District for the collection, 
transmission, distribution and sale of water within the service area of the District, including but 
not limited to all facilities, properties, lands, rights, entitlements and other property useful in 
connection therewith, together with all extensions thereof and improvements thereto at any time 
acquired, constructed or installed by the District. 


Section 1.02.  Equal Security.  In consideration of the acceptance of the Bonds by the 
Owners, this Indenture shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract by and among the 
Trustee, the District and the Owners to secure the full and final payment of the interest and 
principal and redemption premiums, if any, to be made by the District on the Bonds, subject to 
the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained herein; and all agreements, 
conditions, covenants and terms contained herein required to be observed or performed by or on 
behalf of the Trustee shall be for the equal and proportionate benefit, protection and security of 
all Owners without distinction, preference or priority as to benefit, protection or security of any 
Bonds over any other Bonds by reason of the number or date thereof or the time of execution or 
delivery thereof or otherwise for any cause whatsoever, except as expressly provided herein or 
therein. 


 
 


ARTICLE II 
 


TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF BONDS 


Section 2.01.  Authorization of Bonds.  The District hereby authorizes the issuance of the 
Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $_________.  The Bonds shall be designated 
“Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013.” 


Section 2.02.  Denominations, Medium, Method and Place of Payment and Dating of 
Bonds.  The Bonds shall be issued in the form of fully registered Bonds in denominations of five 
thousand dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple thereof.  Subject to the provisions of Section 
2.11 hereto, the interest, principal and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds shall be 
payable by check in lawful money of the United States of America.  Subject to the provisions of 
Section 2.11 hereof, interest on the Bonds shall be payable on their Interest Payment Dates by 


11 
 







 


check mailed via first class mail on the Interest Payment Date by the Trustee to the respective 
Owners thereof as of the Record Date at their addresses as they appear in the books required to 
be kept by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.07 hereof or, upon the written 
request from any Owner of Bonds aggregating at least $1,000,000 in principal amount, received 
on or prior to the fifteenth day of the month preceding an applicable Interest Payment Date, by 
wire in Federal Reserve funds to an account within the United States on the Interest Payment 
Date, with regard to which such payment is made.  The principal of the Bonds shall be payable 
on September 1 in each of the years and in the principal amounts as follows, or on redemption 
prior thereto, upon surrender thereof at the Principal Office of the Trustee. 


 
Year 


(September 1)
Principal 
 Amount 


Interest 
  Rate     


   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   


The Bonds shall be dated as of the Closing Date, and bear interest from the Interest 
Payment Date immediately preceding the date of authentication thereof by the Trustee, unless 
such date of authentication is on or after the fifteenth (15th) day of the calendar month prior to 
an Interest Payment Date, in which case they shall bear interest from such Interest Payment 
Date, or unless such date of authentication is on or before __________ 15, 2013, in which case 
they shall bear interest from the Closing Date. 


Section 2.03.  Interest on the Bonds.  Interest on the Bonds shall be paid on each Interest 
Payment Date at the rates per annum set forth in Section 2.02 hereof, calculated on the basis of a 
360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 


Section 2.04.  Form of Bonds.  The Bonds and the assignment to appear thereon shall be 
in substantially the form set forth in Appendix A hereto with appropriate or necessary insertions, 
omissions and variations as permitted or required hereby. 


Section 2.05.  Execution of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be executed by the manual or 
facsimile signature of the President or District Manager of the District, or his or her authorized 
representatives, and shall be attested to by the manual or facsimile signature of the District 
Secretary or assistant secretary.  The Bonds shall be authenticated by the manual signature of an 
authorized officer of the Trustee. 


Section 2.06.  Transfer and Exchange of Bonds.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.11 
hereof, (a) each Bond shall be transferable only upon a register of the names of each Owner (the 
“Bond Register”), which shall be kept for that purpose at the Principal Office, by the Owner 
thereof in person or by his or her attorney duly authorized in writing, upon surrender thereof 


12 
 







 


together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the 
Owner or his or her duly authorized attorney.  Upon the transfer of any such Bond, the Trustee 
shall provide in the name of the transferee, a new Bond or Bonds, of the same aggregate 
principal amount, interest rate and maturity as the surrendered Bonds (unless there has occurred 
a partial redemption of such Bond pursuant to Section 4.01 hereof, in which case the principal 
amount of the new Bond shall be equal to the unredeemed principal amount of the Bond 
submitted for transfer). 


(b) The Trustee shall deem and treat the person in whose name any Outstanding Bond 
shall be registered upon the Bond Register as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such 
Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the 
principal of and interest on such Bond and for all other purposes, and all such payments so made 
to any such Owner or upon his or her order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge 
the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the District nor 
the Trustee shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.  The District agrees to indemnify and 
save the Trustee harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense, judgment or 
liability incurred by it, acting in good faith and without negligence or willful misconduct under 
the Indenture, in so treating such Owner. 


In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or transferring Bonds is exercised, the 
Trustee shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Article.  
All Bonds surrendered in any such exchanges or transfers shall forthwith be canceled by the 
Trustee.  For every such exchange or transfer of Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, the 
District and the Trustee may make a charge sufficient to reimburse any of them for any tax, fee 
or other governmental charge, other than one imposed by the District, required to be paid with 
respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall be paid by the person requesting 
such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise of the privilege of making 
such exchange or transfer.  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the cost of preparing 
each new Bond and any other expenses of the District or the Trustee incurred in connection 
therewith (except any applicable tax, fee or other governmental charge other than one imposed 
by the District) shall be paid by the District.  The Trustee shall not be obliged to effect any 
exchange or transfer of any Bond during the period after the mailing of notice calling such Bond 
or a portion thereof for redemption, nor during the fifteen (15) days preceding the giving of such 
notice of redemption. 


Section 2.07.  Bond Registration Books.  The Trustee shall keep or cause to be kept at its 
Principal Office sufficient records for the registration and registration of transfers of the Bonds, 
which shall, during normal business hours upon reasonable prior written notice be open to 
inspection by the District; and, upon presentation for such purpose, the Trustee shall, under such 
reasonable regulations consistent herewith as it may prescribe, register or transfer or cause to be 
registered or transferred, on the Bond Register, Bonds as hereinbefore provided. 


Section 2.08.  Temporary Bonds.  Pending preparation of the definitive Bonds, any 
Bonds delivered under the Indenture may be initially delivered in temporary form exchangeable 
for definitive Bonds when ready for delivery.  The temporary Bonds may be printed, 
lithographed or typewritten, shall be of such denominations as may be determined by the 


13 
 







 


District, shall be without coupons and may contain such reference to any of the provisions hereof 
as may be appropriate.  Every temporary Bond shall be authenticated by the Trustee and be 
delivered by the Trustee upon the same conditions and in substantially the same manner as 
definitive Bonds.  If the Trustee delivers temporary Bonds, it shall authenticate and furnish 
definitive Bonds without delay and, thereupon, the temporary Bonds shall be surrendered for 
cancellation at the Principal Office of the Trustee and the Trustee shall deliver in exchange for 
such temporary Bonds an equal aggregate principal amount of definitive Bonds of authorized 
denominations of the same interest rate or rates and maturity or maturities.  Until so exchanged, 
the temporary Bonds shall be entitled to the same benefits under the Indenture as definitive 
Bonds delivered pursuant hereto. 


Section 2.09.  Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen.  If any Bond shall become 
mutilated, the Trustee, at the expense of the Owner of said Bond, shall authenticate and deliver a 
new Bond of like tenor in exchange and substitution for the Bond so mutilated, but only upon 
surrender to the Trustee of the Bond so mutilated.  Every mutilated Bond so surrendered to the 
Trustee shall be canceled by it and destroyed or redelivered to, or upon the order of, the District.  
If any Bond shall be lost, destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or theft shall be 
submitted to the Trustee, and, if such evidence is satisfactory to the Trustee and if an indemnity 
satisfactory to the Trustee shall be given, the Trustee, at the expense of the Owner, shall 
authenticate and deliver a new Bond of like tenor and numbered as the Trustee shall determine in 
lieu of and in substitution for the Bond so lost, destroyed or stolen.  The Trustee may require 
payment of a reasonable fee for each new Bond delivered under this Section and of the 
reasonable expenses which may be incurred by the Trustee in carrying out the duties under this 
Section 2.09.  Any Bond issued under the provisions of this Section in lieu of any Bond alleged 
to be lost, destroyed or stolen shall be equally and proportionately entitled to the benefits hereof 
with all other Bonds secured by the Indenture.  The Trustee shall not be required to treat both the 
original Bond and any replacement Bond as being Outstanding for the purpose of determining 
the principal amount of Bonds which may be issued under the Indenture or for the purpose of 
determining any percentage of Bonds Outstanding under the Indenture, but both the original and 
replacement Bond shall be treated as one and the same.  Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this Section 2.09, in lieu of delivering a new Bond for a Bond which has been mutilated, lost, 
destroyed or stolen and which has matured, the Trustee may make payment of such Bond upon 
receipt of indemnification satisfactory to the Trustee. 


Section 2.10.  Evidence of Signatures of Bond Owners and Ownership of Bonds.  Any 
request, direction, consent, revocation of consent, or other instrument in writing required or 
permitted by the Indenture to be signed or executed by Bond Owners may be in any number of 
concurrent instruments of similar tenor, and may be signed or executed by such Bond Owners in 
person or by their attorneys or agents appointed by an instrument in writing for that purpose.  
Proof of the execution of any such instrument, or of any instrument appointing any such attorney 
or agent, and of the holding and ownership of Bonds shall be sufficient for any purpose hereof 
(except as otherwise herein provided), if made in the Form of the Assignment attached to the 
Bond in Appendix A hereto. 


Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed as limiting the Trustee to such proof, 
it being intended that the Trustee may accept any other evidence of the matters herein stated 


14 
 







 


which to the Trustee may seem sufficient.  Any request or consent of the Owner of any Bond 
shall bind every future Owner of the same Bond in respect of anything done or suffered to be 
done by the District or the Trustee in pursuance of such request or consent. 


Section 2.11.  Book Entry System. 


(a) Original Delivery.  The Bonds shall be initially delivered in the form of a separate 
single fully registered Bond (which may be typewritten) for each maturity.  Upon initial delivery, 
the ownership of each such Bond shall be registered on the Bond Register kept by the Trustee in 
the name of the Nominee.  Except as provided in subsection (c), the ownership of all of the 
Outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the name of the Nominee. 


With respect to Bonds the ownership of which shall be registered in the name of the 
Nominee, the District and the Trustee shall have no responsibility or obligation to any 
Depository System Participant or to any person on behalf of which the District holds an interest 
in the Bonds.  Without limiting the generality of the immediately preceding sentence, the District 
and the Trustee shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the 
records of the Depository, the Nominee or any Depository System Participant with respect to any 
ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any Depository System Participant or any 
other person, other than a Bond Owner as shown in the Bond Register, or any notice with respect 
to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, (iii) the selection by the Depository of the 
beneficial interests in the Bonds to be redeemed in the event the District elects to redeem the 
Bond in part, (iv) the payment to any Depository System Participant or any other person, other 
than a Bond Owner as shown in the Bond Register, of any amount with respect to principal, 
premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, or (v) any consent given or other action taken by the 
Depository as Owner of the Bonds.  The District and the Trustee may treat and consider the 
person in whose name each Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bonds for the 
purpose of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds for the purpose 
of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bonds, for the purpose of 
registering transfers of ownership of such Bonds, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The 
Trustee shall pay the principal of and the interest and premium, if any, on the Bonds only to the 
respective Owners or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments 
shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge all obligations with respect to payment 
of principal of and interest and premium, if any, on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so 
paid.  No person other than an Owner shall receive a Bond evidencing the obligation of the 
District to make payments of principal, interest and premium, if any, pursuant to this Indenture.  
Upon delivery by the Depository to the Nominee of written notice to the effect that the 
Depository has determined to substitute a new Nominee in its place, and subject to the provisions 
herein with respect to Record Dates, such new nominee shall become the Nominee hereunder for 
all purposes; and upon receipt of such a notice of the District shall promptly, but in no event later 
than two (2) Business Days after receipt thereof, deliver a copy of the same to the Trustee. 


(b) Representation Letter.  In order to qualify the Bonds for the Depository’s book-
entry system, to the extent it has not already done so the District shall execute and deliver to 
such Depository a letter (the “Letter of Representations”) representing such matters as shall be 
necessary to so qualify the Bonds.  The execution and delivery of such letter shall not in any way 


15 
 







 


limit the provisions of subsection (a) above or in any other way impose upon the District or the 
Trustee any obligation whatsoever with respect to persons having interests in the Bonds other 
than the Bond Owners.  In addition to the execution and delivery of such letter, the District may 
take any other actions, not inconsistent with this Indenture, to qualify the Bonds for the 
Depository’s book-entry program. 


(c) Transfers Outside Book-Entry System.  In the event that either (i) the Depository 
determines not to continue to act as Depository for the Bonds, or (ii) the District determines to 
terminate the Depository as such, then the District shall thereupon discontinue the book-entry 
system with such Depository.  In such event, the Depository shall cooperate with the District and 
the Trustee in the issuance of replacement Bonds  by providing the Trustee with a list showing 
the interests of the Depository System Participants in the Bonds, and by surrendering the Bonds, 
registered in the name of the Nominee, to the Trustee on or before the date such replacement 
Bonds are to be issued.  The Depository, by accepting delivery of the Bonds, agrees in the Letter 
of Representations to be bound by the provisions of this subsection (c).  If, prior to the 
termination of the Depository acting as such, the District fails to identify another qualified 
securities depository to replace the Depository, then the Bonds shall no longer be required to be 
registered in the Bond Register in the name of the Nominee, but shall be registered in whatever 
name or names the Owners transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with 
the provisions of this Section 2.11 hereof. 


In the event the District determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners 
of the Bonds that they be able to obtain Bonds, the District may notify the Depository System 
Participants of the availability of such Bond through the Depository.  In such event, the Trustee 
will, at the expense of the District, authenticate, transfer and exchange Bonds as required by the 
Depository and others in appropriate amounts; and whenever the Depository so requests, the 
District shall cooperate with the Depository in taking appropriate action (i) to make available 
one or more separate Bonds evidencing the Bonds to any Depository System Participant having 
Bonds credited to its account with the Depository, or (ii) to arrange for another qualified 
securities depository to maintain custody of a single Bond evidencing such Bonds, all at the 
District’s expense. 


(d) Payments to the Nominee.  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture 
to the contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of the Nominee, all payments with 
respect to principal of and interest and premium, if any, on such Bonds and all notices with 
respect to such Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, as provided in the Letter of 
Representations or as otherwise instructed in writing by the Depository. 


16 
 







 


Section 2.12.  Limitations on Future Obligations Secured by Net Revenues . 


(a) No Obligations Superior to Debt Service Payments.  In order to protect further the 
availability of the Net Revenues and the security for the Debt Service Payments and any Parity 
Obligations, the District hereby agrees that the District shall not, so long as any Bonds are 
outstanding, issue or incur any obligations payable from Gross Revenues or Net Revenues 
superior to the Debt Service Payments or such Parity Obligations.  The District may issue or 
incur Subordinate Debt as provided herein. 


(b) Parity Obligations.  The District further covenants that, except for bonds issued to 
fully or partially refund the Bonds or Parity Obligations, the District shall not issue or incur any 
Parity Obligations unless: 


(i)  The District is not in default under the terms of this Indenture; and 


(ii)  Net Revenues , calculated on sound accounting principles, as shown by the 
books of the District for the latest Fiscal Year or any more recent twelve (12) month period 
selected by the District ending not more than sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the 
resolution pursuant to which instrument such Parity Obligation is issued or incurred, as shown 
by the books of the District, plus, at the option of the District, the additional allowance described 
below, shall have amounted to at least 1.25 times the sum of the Debt Service Payments coming 
due and payable in any future Fiscal Year and the annual debt service for such Fiscal Year on all 
Parity Obligations outstanding immediately subsequent to the incurring of such additional 
obligations in the Fiscal Year in which such sum is the greatest. 


Either or both of the following items may be added to such Net Revenues for the purpose 
of applying the restriction contained in this subsection (b)(ii):  


(A) an allowance for Net Revenues from any additions to or improvements or 
extensions of the Water System to be constructed or acquired with the proceeds of such 
additional obligations, and also for Net Revenues from any such additions, improvements or 
extensions which have been constructed or acquired from moneys from any source but which, 
during all or any part of such Fiscal Year or 12-month period, were not in service, all in an 
amount equal to the estimated additional annual Net Revenues to be derived from such additions, 
improvements and extensions during the first full Fiscal Year following the completion thereof, 
all as shown by a certificate of the District, may be added to such Net Revenues for the purpose 
of applying the restriction contained in this subsection (b)(ii);  


(B) an allowance for earnings arising from any increase in the charges made 
for service from the Water System which has become effective prior to the incurring of such 
additional obligations but which, during all or any part of such Fiscal Year or 12-month period, 
was not in effect, in an amount equal to 100% of the amount by which the Net Revenues would 
have been increased if such increase in charges had been in effect during the whole of such 
Fiscal Year or 12-month period, as shown by a certificate of the District. 


The provisions of subsection (b)(ii) of this Section shall not apply to any Parity 
Obligations if all of the proceeds of which (other than proceeds applied to pay costs of issuing 


17 
 


 







 


such Parity Obligations and to make the reserve fund deposit required pursuant to subsection 
(b)(iii) of this Section) shall be deposited in an irrevocable escrow held in cash or invested in 
Federal Securities for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest and premium (if any) on 
any Outstanding Bonds or on any outstanding Parity Obligations, if (i) at the time of the 
incurring of such Parity Obligations, the District certifies in writing that maximum annual debt 
service on such Parity Obligations will not exceed Maximum Annual Debt Service on the 
Outstanding Bonds or Parity Obligations to be refunded, and (ii) the final maturity of such Parity 
Obligations is not later than the final maturity of the refunded Bonds or Parity Obligations. 


In order to maintain the parity relationship of the Debt Service Payments to all Parity 
Obligations permitted hereunder, the District covenants that all payments in the nature of 
principal and interest or reserve account replenishment with respect to any Parity Obligations, 
except with respect to Governmental Loans, will be structured to occur semi-annually on the 
Due Dates and in each year as such payments are due with respect to the Debt Service Payments, 
and reserve account replenishment with respect to any Parity Obligations, except with respect to 
Governmental Loans, will be structured to occur monthly, and to otherwise structure the terms of 
such Parity Obligations to ensure that they are in all respects payable on a parity with the Debt 
Service Payments and not prior thereto; provided that the District shall not make a payment on 
such Governmental Loan to the extent it would have the effect of causing the District to fail to 
pay Debt Service Payments on a timely basis.  In such event, the District shall make Debt 
Service Payments and payments on such Governmental Loan on a pro rata basis. 


(c) Treatment or Reimbursements. If interest on any Parity Obligation is reasonably 
anticipated to be reimbursed to or on behalf of the District by the United States of America, then 
interest payments with respect to such Parity Obligations shall be excluded by the amount of 
such interest reasonably anticipated to be paid or reimbursed by the United States of America, 
and such reimbursements will not be included as Gross Revenues for purposes of the coverage 
calculations required in subsection (b)(ii) above. 


(d) Subordinate Obligations. The District may issue bonds or other obligations 
secured by a lien on Gross Revenues or Net Revenues which is subordinate to the lien 
established under this Indenture, upon such terms and in such principal amounts as the District 
may determine.  


ARTICLE III 
 


PROCEEDS OF BONDS; PLEDGE OF NET REVENUES 


Section 3.01.  Delivery of Bonds; Payment of Debt Service; Pledge of Net Revenues.  
The Trustee is hereby authorized to authenticate the Bonds and upon receipt of the proceeds of 
sale thereof deliver the Bonds to the initial purchaser thereof upon receipt of a Certificate of the 
District. 


All of the Net Revenues are pledged hereunder for the payment of Parity Obligations, 
including the Bonds, and all moneys on deposit in the Payment Fund established under the 
Indenture are hereby irrevocably pledged, charged and assigned to the punctual payment of the 
Bonds, and except as otherwise provided herein, the Net Revenues and such other funds shall not 


18 
 







 


be used for any other purpose so long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding.  Such pledge, 
charge and assignment shall constitute a first lien on the Net Revenues and such other moneys 
for the payment of the Debt Service Payments, the Bonds and any Parity Obligations in 
accordance with the terms hereof. 


The District’s obligation to pay the Debt Service Payments and any other amounts 
coming due and payable hereunder shall be a special obligation of the District limited solely to 
the Net Revenues.  Under no circumstances shall the District be required to advance moneys 
derived from any source of income other than the Net Revenues and other sources specifically 
identified herein for the payment of the Debt Service Payments and the Bonds, nor shall any 
other funds or property of the District be liable for the payment of the Debt Service Payments, 
the Bonds or any other amounts coming due and payable hereunder. 


The obligations of the District to make the Debt Service Payments from the Net 
Revenues and to perform and observe the other agreements contained herein shall be absolute 
and unconditional and shall not be subject to any defense or any right of setoff, counterclaim or 
recoupment arising out of any breach of the District or the Trustee of any obligation to the 
District or otherwise with respect to the Water System, whether hereunder or otherwise, or out of 
indebtedness or liability at any time owing to the District by the Trustee.  The District hereby 
acknowledges that its obligation to make Debt Service Payments hereunder is absolute and 
unconditional, free of deductions and without abatement, offset, recoupment, diminution or set-
off whatsoever.  Until such time as all of the Debt Service Payments and all other amounts 
coming due and payable hereunder shall have been fully paid or prepaid, the District (a) will not 
suspend or discontinue payment of any Debt Service Payments or such other amounts with 
respect to the Bonds, (b) will perform and observe all other agreements contained in this 
Indenture, and (c) will not terminate this Indenture for any cause, including, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the occurrence of any acts or circumstances that may constitute 
failure of consideration, eviction or constructive eviction, destruction of or damage to the Water 
System, sale of the Water System, the taking by eminent domain of title to or temporary use of 
any component of the Water System, commercial frustration of purpose, any change in the tax or 
other laws of the United States of America or the State or any political subdivision of either 
thereof or any failure of the Trustee to perform and observe any agreement, whether express or 
implied, or any duty, liability or obligation arising out of or connected with the Indenture. 


Nothing contained in this Section shall be construed to release the Trustee from the 
performance of any of the agreements on its part contained herein, and in the event the Trustee 
shall fail to perform any such agreements, the District may institute such action against the 
Trustee as the District may deem necessary to compel performance so long as such action does 
not abrogate the obligations of the District contained in the preceding paragraph.  The District 
may, however, at the District’s own cost and expense and in the District’s own name prosecute 
or defend any action or proceeding or take any other action involving third persons which the 
District deems reasonably necessary in order to secure or protect the District’s rights hereunder. 


Section 3.02.  Depositing of Proceeds of Bonds and Other Amounts.  On the Closing 
Date the Trustee shall receive $_________ (principal amount of the Bonds of $_________), less 
an underwriter’s discount of $________, [less net original issue discount] [plus net original issue 


19 
 







 


premium] of $__________) and less the amount wired directly to the bond insurer as provided 
herein as the purchase price of the Bonds.  A portion of the purchase price of the Bonds in the 
amount of $___________ shall be wired directly to the bond insurer for the payment of the 
premiums for a bond insurance policy for the Bonds and surety bond to satisfy the Reserve 
Requirement.   The Trustee shall deposit $__________ of the Bond proceeds to the Reserve 
Fund and $________ of the Bond proceeds to the Delivery Costs Fund, which funds are hereby 
established and shall be held hereunder, and shall transfer $___________ of the Bond proceeds 
to the Government (which is the holder of the Prior Obligations) to refund the outstanding Prior 
Obligations in full.  The Trustee may establish a temporary fund or account in its records to 
facilitate such deposits or transfers.   


Section 3.03.  Deposit of Debt Service Payments.  All Debt Service Payments with 
respect to the Bonds shall be paid directly by the District to the Trustee on the applicable Due 
Date.  Such payments received by the Trustee shall be held in trust by the Trustee under the 
terms hereof and shall be deposited by it as and when received in the Debt Service Account of 
the Payment Fund, which fund the Trustee hereby agrees to establish and maintain as provided in 
Section 3.04 so long as any Bonds are Outstanding.   


The Net Revenues of the Water System shall be received and deposited by the District in 
the Debt Service Fund held by the District.  On or before each Due Date, the District shall 
withdraw from the Debt Service Fund an amount, together with the balance then on deposit in 
the Payment Fund, if any (other than amounts held for the defeasance of Bonds pursuant to 
Article IX and any amounts required for payment of principal of or interest on any Bonds which 
have matured or been called for redemption but which have not yet been presented for payment), 
equal to the aggregate amount of the Debt Service Payments coming due on the next succeeding 
Interest Payment Date, and transfer the same to the Trustee for deposit into the Payment Fund on 
the following dates and in the following amounts: 


(1) Interest Component.  On or before each Due Date, an amount which is 
equal to the amount to become due on such Bonds on the next succeeding 
Interest Payment Date; provided, however, that the District may be 
entitled to certain credits on such payments as set forth above. 


(2) Principal Component.  On or before each Due Date, an amount which, 
together with any moneys already on deposit with the Trustee and 
available to make such payment, is not less than the entire amount of the 
next succeeding maturing principal or mandatory sinking account payment 
coming due on the Bonds after such date; provided, however, that the 
District may be entitled to certain credits on such payments as set forth 
above.   


Section 3.04.  Payment Fund.  Within the Payment Fund the Trustee shall establish a 
Debt Service Account and a Redemption Account.  Debt Service Payments made by the District 
shall be deposited by the Trustee in the Debt Service Account.  Such payments shall be net of 
amounts already on deposit therein that are in excess of the amount required to accumulate 
therein pursuant to Section 3.01.  The Trustee shall transfer the money contained in the Debt 
Service Account and the Redemption Account at the following respective times in the following 


20 
 







 


respective accounts in the following order of priority in the manner hereinafter provided, each of 
which accounts the Trustee hereby agrees to establish and maintain so long as any Bonds are 
Outstanding, and the money in each of such accounts shall be disbursed only for the purposes 
and uses hereinafter authorized: 


(a) Debt Service Account.  All moneys in the Debt Service Account shall be 
used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of paying principal of and interest on 
the Bonds on each Interest Payment Date or mandatory redemption dates, as applicable. 


(b) Redemption Account.  The Trustee, on the optional redemption date 
specified in the Certificate of the District filed with the Trustee at the time that any moneys to 
accomplish any such optional redemption are paid to the Trustee, shall deposit in the 
Redemption Account the amount of such payment.  All money in the Redemption Account shall 
be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest and principal 
on the Bonds to be optionally redeemed on their respective redemption dates. 


Section 3.05.  Use of Money in the Delivery Costs Fund. 


(a) The Trustee shall disburse funds from the Delivery Costs Fund to pay Delivery 
Costs only upon receipt of a signed certificate (stating the amount to be disbursed and the party 
or parties being paid) approved by the Authorized Officer of the District and accompanied by an 
invoice or statement for each such amount. 


(b) Upon payment of all Delivery Costs, which shall be determined by a certificate to 
that effect by an Authorized Officer of the District delivered to the Trustee, or upon the date 
occurring four (4) months after the Closing Date, whichever occurs first, the Trustee shall 
transfer all funds remaining in the Delivery Costs Fund to the Debt Service Account, and the 
Delivery Costs Fund shall thereupon be closed. 


Section 3.06.  Receipt and Deposit of Gross Revenues; Revenue Fund. 


The District covenants and agrees that all Gross Revenues, when and as received, will be 
received and held by the District in trust for the benefit of Bond owners and payments with 
respect to Parity Obligations, and will be deposited by the District in the Revenue Fund (which 
the District hereby covenants and agrees to maintain so long as any Bonds remain Outstanding) 
and will be accounted for and held in trust for the benefit of Bond owners and for payments with 
respect to Parity Obligations in the Revenue Fund.  All Gross Revenues shall be disbursed, 
allocated and applied solely to the uses and purposes set forth in this Article III. 


All Gross Revenues in the Revenue Fund shall be set aside by the District or deposited by 
the District with the Trustee, or the trustee or fiscal agent with respect to Parity Obligations, as 
the case may be, as follows and in the following order of priority: 


(1) Operation and Maintenance Expenses.  In order to carry out and effectuate 
the pledge and lien contained herein, the District agrees and covenants to pay all 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses (including amounts reasonably required to be set 
aside in contingency reserves for Operation and Maintenance Expenses, the payment of 


21 
 







 


which is not then immediately required) from the Revenue Fund as they become due and 
payable.   


(2) Debt Service Funds.  Debt Service Payments payable pursuant to 
Section 3.01 hereof and all other payments relating to principal and interest on or with 
respect to Parity Obligations, shall be paid in accordance with the terms hereof and of 
such Parity Obligations, without preference or priority, and in the event of any 
insufficiency of such moneys, ratably without any discrimination or preference. 


(3) Reserve Funds.  Payments required pursuant to Section 3.11 hereof, or 
with respect to Parity Obligations, to replenish debt service reserve funds established for 
Parity Obligations shall be made in accordance with the terms hereof and such Parity 
Obligations, without preference or priority, and in the event of any insufficiency of such 
moneys, ratably without any discrimination or preference. 


(4) General Expenditures.  All Gross Revenues not required to be withdrawn 
pursuant to the provisions of (1) through (3) above shall be used for expenditure for any 
lawful purpose of the District, including payment of Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses or payment of any rebate requirement or of any obligation subordinate to the 
payment of all amounts due hereunder or under Parity Obligations.  


The parties hereto acknowledge that although all Parity Obligations are secured equally 
and ratably by applicable Net Revenues, moneys with respect to obligations other than the Bonds 
may be held by the Trustee or by trustees other than the Trustee under documents and 
agreements other than the Indenture, and the Indenture imposes no obligations upon the Trustee 
with respect to such other obligations.  The District shall make such transfers from the Revenue 
Fund necessary to effectuate such obligations’ parity claim on such Net Revenues contemplated 
hereby. 


Section 3.07.  Held in Trust.  The moneys and investments held by the Trustee under 
Sections 3.03, 3.04 and 3.05 are irrevocably held in trust for the benefit of the Owners, and for 
the purposes herein specified, and such moneys, and any income or interest earned thereon, shall 
be expended only as provided in this Indenture, and shall not be subject to levy or attachment or 
lien by or for the benefit of any creditor of the Trustee or the District. 


Section 3.08.  Commingling of Moneys in Funds.  The Trustee is directed by the District 
to commingle any of the funds held by it pursuant to this Indenture into a separate fund or funds 
for investment purposes only; provided, however, that all funds or accounts held by the Trustee 
hereunder shall be accounted for separately notwithstanding such commingling by the Trustee. 


Section 3.09.  Liability of District Limited.  Notwithstanding anything contained herein, 
the District shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source of income 
other than Net Revenues legally available therefor in the Revenue Fund and the other funds 
provided herein for the payment of the Debt Service Payments or for the performance of any 
agreements or covenants contained herein required to be performed by it.  The District may, 
however, but shall not be required to, advance moneys for any such purpose so long as such 


22 
 







 


moneys are derived from a source legally available for such purpose and may be legally used by 
the District for such purpose. 


The obligation of the District to make the Debt Service Payments and the other amounts 
due hereunder is a special obligation of the District payable solely from the moneys legally 
available therefor hereunder, and does not constitute a debt of the District or of the State of 
California or of any political subdivision thereof within the meaning of any constitutional or 
statutory debt limitation or restriction. 


Section 3.10.  Arbitrage Covenant.  The District hereby covenants with the Owners of the 
Bonds that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture, it will make no use of the 
proceeds of the Bonds which would cause the Bonds or the Prior Obligations to be “arbitrage 
bonds” subject to federal income taxation by reason of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended.  The Trustee hereby covenants with the Owners of the Bonds that it will 
comply with the express provisions of this Indenture and will follow the written directions of the 
District and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, so long as the Trustee 
shall have complied with the written instructions of the District, if any, with respect to making 
any rebate to the United States of America, the Trustee shall conclusively be deemed to have 
complied with its obligations hereunder and shall not be liable if the Bonds become arbitrage 
bonds. 


Section 3.11.  The Reserve Fund; Replenishment.  The Trustee hereby agrees to establish 
and maintain so long as any Bonds are Outstanding the Reserve Fund.  The Reserve Fund shall 
initially be funded, and shall continuously be funded, in an amount equal to the Reserve 
Requirement.  The Trustee shall hold the Reserve Fund in trust and shall apply moneys in the 
Reserve Fund in accordance with the following provisions. 


If, two (2) Business Days prior to any Interest Payment Date, the money in the Payment 
Fund does not equal the amount required to be paid to the Bond Owners on such date, the 
Trustee shall transfer from the Reserve Fund to the Payment Fund the amount of such 
insufficiency. 


If, following valuation or calculation thereof, the amount available and contained in the 
Reserve Fund (valued as provided in Section 10.09 hereof) exceeds the Reserve Requirement 
and if the Trustee does not have actual knowledge of an Event of Default hereunder, the Trustee 
shall withdraw the amount of such excess from the Reserve Fund.  The Trustee shall deposit 
such amount in the Debt Service Account.  For purposes of determining the amount on deposit in 
the Reserve Fund, the Trustee shall make a valuation of the Reserve Fund as of September 1 of 
each year.  Except for such withdrawals, all money in the Reserve Fund shall be used and 
withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of making the payments of principal and interest 
on the Bonds in the event that amounts on deposit in the Payment Fund are insufficient for such 
purposes. 


If amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund shall, at any time, be less than the applicable 
Reserve Requirement, such deficiency shall be made up by the District from the first available 
Net Revenues after required payment of Debt Service Payments over a twelve (12) month 


23 
 







 


period, in twelve (12) substantially equal payments, and the Reserve Fund shall be valued 
monthly until amounts on deposit therein equal the Reserve Requirement. 


In lieu of depositing and maintaining moneys in the Reserve Fund, the District may 
deliver to the Trustee for deposit in the Reserve Fund an irrevocable surety bond issued by a 
bond insurance company with a credit rating or claims-paying ability at the time of such delivery 
in one of the two highest rating categories of S&P or Moody’s.  Any such surety bond shall (i) 
permit the Trustee to obtain amounts thereunder which, together with any amounts on deposit in 
the Reserve Fund, are not less than the Reserve Requirement and (ii) shall contain no restrictions 
on the ability of the Trustee to receive payment thereunder other than a certification by the 
Trustee that the funds drawn thereunder are to be used to pay Debt Service on the Bonds.  Such 
surety bond shall provide that the Trustee shall receive payment thereunder prior to any 
expiration or termination thereof and whenever moneys are required for the purposes for which 
the Reserve Fund moneys may be applied.  The Trustee shall make a drawing under such surety 
bond (a) whenever moneys are required for the purposes for which Reserve Fund moneys may 
be applied and (b) 30 days prior to any expiration or termination thereof; provided, however, that 
no such drawing need be made if other moneys are available in the Reserve Fund in the amount 
of the Reserve Requirement. 


ARTICLE IV 
 


REDEMPTION OF BONDS 


Section 4.01.  Terms of Redemption. 


(a) Extraordinary Casualty Redemption.  The Bonds shall be subject to redemption, 
in whole or in part on any date, from the Net Proceeds of insurance or condemnation with 
respect to the Water System, which Net Proceeds are deposited in the Payment Fund and 
credited towards the prepayment of the Debt Service Payments, at a redemption price equal to 
the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the date 
fixed for redemption, without premium. 


(b) Optional Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on September 1, 20__, shall be 
subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, at the option of the District, in whole, or in 
part by lot (in such amounts and of such maturities as may be specified by the District, or if the 
District fails to designate such maturities, in inverse order of maturity, and by lot within a 
maturity) on any date on or after September 1, 20__, from any source of available moneys, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus interest accrued 
thereon to the date fixed for redemption. 


(c) Sinking Fund Redemption of Bonds.  The Bonds maturing September 1, 20___ 
shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part, by lot, commencing on September 
1, 20__, from mandatory sinking fund payments set aside in the Debt Service Account, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium, in the aggregate respective principal 
amounts and on the dates set forth below: 


24 
 







 


 
20__ Term Bonds 


 
Sinking Fund 


Redemption Date 
(September 1)


 
Principal Amount 
To Be Redeemed  


  
  
  
  
  
  


The Bonds maturing September 1, 20___ shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund 
redemption in part, by lot, commencing on September 1, 20__, from mandatory sinking fund 
payments set aside in the Debt Service Account, at a redemption price equal to the principal 
amount thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, 
without premium, in the aggregate respective principal amounts and on the dates set forth below: 
 


20__ Term Bonds 
 


Sinking Fund 
Redemption Date 


(September 1)


 
Principal Amount 
To Be Redeemed  


  


  


  


  


  


If some but not all of such Bonds have been redeemed pursuant to subsection (b) above 
the total amount of all future sinking fund payments shall be reduced by the aggregate principal 
amount of such Bonds so redeemed, to be allocated among such sinking fund payments on a pro 
rata basis as determined by the District (notice of which determination shall be given by the 
District to the Trustee). 


(d) Purchase in Lieu of Redemption.  In lieu, or partially in lieu, of such call and 
redemption, moneys of the District may be used to purchase Outstanding Bonds in the manner 
hereinafter provided.  Purchases of Outstanding Bonds may be made by the District prior to the 
selection of Bonds for redemption by the Trustee, at public or private sale as and when and at 
such prices as the District may in its discretion determine but only at prices (including brokerage 
or other expenses) of not more than par plus applicable accrued interest and redemption 
premiums, and any accrued interest payable upon the purchase of Bonds may be paid from the 
amount in the Payment Fund for payment of interest on the following Interest Payment Date. 


25 
 







 


Section 4.02.  Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  In the event that part, but not all, of 
the Bonds are to be redeemed (other than pursuant to sinking fund redemption), the Bonds to be 
redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee among maturities as designated in writing by the 
District and by lot within a maturity; provided, however, that, as shall be set forth in a Certificate 
of the District, the Bonds may be redeemed by any maturity or maturities selected by the 
District, and by lot within a maturity.  Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, in any such partial 
redemption the Trustee shall call the Bonds in integral multiples of $5,000. 


In the event of a redemption for which the Trustee does not have monies available to 
redeem the entire amount scheduled for redemption, the Trustee shall redeem Bonds of the 
applicable maturity or maturities by lot up to a principal amount equal to the available monies. 


Section 4.03.  Notice of Redemption.  When redemption is authorized or required 
pursuant to this Article, the Trustee shall give notice (the “Redemption Notice”), at the expense 
of the District, of the redemption of the Bonds.  Such Redemption Notice shall specify:  (a) the 
Bonds or designated portions thereof (in the case of redemption of the Bonds in part but not in 
whole) which are to be redeemed, (b) the date of redemption, (c) the place or places where the 
redemption will be made, including the name and address of any paying agent, (d) the 
redemption price, (e) the CUSIP numbers (if any) assigned to the Bonds to be redeemed, (f) if 
less than all the Bonds of a maturity are to be redeemed, the certificate numbers of the Bonds to 
be redeemed and, in the case of any Bond to be redeemed in part only, the amount of such Bond 
to be redeemed, and (g) the original issue date, interest rate and stated maturity date of each 
Bond to be redeemed in whole or in part.  Such Redemption Notice shall further state that on the 
specified date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond or portion thereof being 
redeemed the redemption price, together with interest accrued to the redemption date, and that 
from and after such date interest with respect thereto shall cease to accrue and be payable.  Such 
notice in respect of optional or extraordinary casualty redemption shall not be provided unless 
there has been deposited with the Trustee funds sufficient to pay such redemption price (except 
in the case of redemption resulting from the issuance of refunding obligations).   


Subject to the provisions stated above, the Trustee shall take the following actions with 
respect to such Redemption Notice: 


 (a) (i) At least twenty (20) but not more than sixty (60) days prior to the 
redemption date or (ii) immediately upon receipt of Net Proceeds from insurance or 
condemnation awards which are to be used to redeem Bonds, the Trustee shall cause Redemption 
Notices to be given to the respective Owners of Bonds designated for redemption by first class 
mail, postage prepaid, at their addresses appearing on the Bond Register maintained by the 
Trustee. 


 (b) At least twenty (20) days prior to the redemption date, such Redemption 
Notice shall be given to each of the Securities Depositories. 


 (c) At least twenty (20) days prior to the redemption date, such Redemption 
Notice shall be given to one of the Information Services selected by the District. 


26 
 







 


Neither failure to receive any Redemption Notice nor any defect in such Redemption 
Notice so given shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bonds.  
Each check or other payment method used by the Trustee for the purpose of redeeming Bonds 
shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the Bonds being redeemed with 
the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 


 Prior to the date that the redemption notice for optional redemption under Section 
4.01(b) hereof is first mailed as aforesaid, (a) funds shall be placed with the Trustee to pay the 
principal of such Bonds, the accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the redemption date and the 
premium, if any, thereon, or (b) such notice of redemption shall state that any redemption is 
conditional on such funds being deposited with the Trustee on the redemption date and that 
failure to make such a deposit shall not constitute an event of default under the Indenture.  If 
such conditions are not satisfied or such funds are not so deposited by such date, such Bonds 
shall not be subject to redemption and the holders thereof shall have the same rights as if no such 
notice had been given.  In such event, the Bond Trustee shall promptly give notice thereof to the 
owners of such Bonds by first class mail, postage prepaid.   


Section 4.04.  Partial Redemption of Bonds.  Upon surrender of any Bond redeemed in 
part only, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the Owner thereof a new Bond or Bonds 
equal to the unredeemed principal amount of the Bond surrendered. 


Section 4.05.  Effect of Redemption.  Notice having been given as aforesaid, and the 
moneys for the redemption, including interest to the applicable redemption date of the Bonds to 
be redeemed, having been set aside in the Redemption Account or Debt Service Account, the 
portion of Bonds to be redeemed shall become due and payable on said redemption date, and, 
upon presentation and surrender thereof at the office or offices specified in said notice, said 
Bonds shall be paid at the unpaid principal amount and premium, if any, with respect thereto, 
plus any unpaid and accrued interest to said redemption date. 


If, on said redemption date, moneys sufficient for the redemption of all the Bonds to be 
redeemed, together with interest to said redemption date shall be held by the Trustee so as to be 
available therefor on such redemption date, and, if notice of redemption thereof shall have been 
given as aforesaid, then, from and after said redemption date, interest with respect to the portion 
of Bonds to be redeemed shall cease to accrue and become payable.  If said moneys shall not be 
so available on said redemption date, interest with respect to such portion of Bonds shall 
continue to be payable until paid at the same rates as they would have been payable had they not 
been called for redemption.  All moneys held by or on behalf of the Trustee for the redemption 
or payment of particular Bonds shall be held in trust for the account of the Owners of the Bonds 
so to be redeemed or paid for the lesser of two (2) years or the period ending one day prior to the 
date such moneys would escheat to the State.  Subject to any applicable escheat laws, after the 
earlier of two (2) years or the period ending one day prior to the date such moneys would escheat 
to the State, the Trustee will pay over to the District the unclaimed money for the years to which 
such money applies, if any, and thereafter the Owners of such Bonds shall be entitled to payment 
on their Bonds only from the District and only from the amounts so paid to the District.  The 
Trustee shall have no obligation to determine what applicable escheat law applies, but shall only 
be required to follow the District’s written instructions to comply with this Section. 


27 
 







 


ARTICLE V 
 


COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT AND THE TRUSTEE 


Section 5.01.  Compliance with Indenture.  The District will not suffer or permit any 
material default by it to occur hereunder, but will faithfully comply with, keep, observe and 
perform all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms hereof required to be complied with, 
kept, observed and performed by it. 


Section 5.02.  Observance of Laws and Regulations.  The District will truly keep, observe 
and perform all valid and lawful obligations or regulations now or hereafter imposed on it with 
respect to the Water System by contract, or prescribed by any law of the United States, or of the 
State, or by any officer, board or commission having jurisdiction or control, as a condition of the 
continued enjoyment of any and every right, privilege or franchise now owned or hereafter 
acquired by the District with respect to the Water System to the end that such rights, privileges 
and franchises shall be maintained and preserved, and shall not become abandoned, forfeited or 
in any manner impaired. 


Section 5.03.  Prosecution and Defense of Suits.  The District shall promptly, upon 
request of the Trustee or any Owner holding at least 25% in principal amount of the Bonds 
from time to time, take such action as may be necessary or proper to remedy or cure any 
defect in or cloud upon the title to the Water System, whether now existing or hereafter 
developing and shall, to the extent permitted by law, prosecute all such suits, actions and 
other proceedings as may be appropriate for such purpose and shall indemnify and save the 
Trustee and every Owner harmless from all loss, cost, damage and expense, including 
attorneys' fees, which they or any of them may incur by reason of any such defect, cloud, 
suit, action or proceeding. 


Section 5.04.  Accounting Records and Statements.  The Trustee will keep proper 
accounting records in which accurate entries shall be made of all transactions made by the 
Trustee relating to the receipt, deposit and disbursement of the Debt Service Payments, and such 
accounting records shall be available for inspection by the District or any Owner or his or her 
agent duly authorized in writing on any Business Day upon reasonable notice at reasonable hours 
and under reasonable conditions prescribed by the Trustee.  So long as any Bonds are 
Outstanding, the Trustee will furnish each month to the District and any Owner who may so 
request in writing (at the expense of such Owner) a statement covering the receipts, deposits and 
disbursements of the Debt Service Payments for the preceding monthly period; provided, that the 
Trustee shall not be obligated to deliver a statement for any fund or account that (i) has a balance 
of zero, or (ii) has not had any activity since the last reporting date. 


Section 5.05.  Further Assurances.  Whenever and so often as requested to do so by the 
Trustee or any Owner, the District will promptly execute and deliver or cause to be executed and 
delivered all such other and further assurances, documents or instruments and promptly do or 
cause to be done all such other and further things as may be necessary or reasonably required in 
order to further and more fully vest in the Trustee and the Owners all advantages, benefits, 
interests, powers, privileges and rights conferred or intended to be conferred upon them by this 
Indenture. 


28 
 







 


Section 5.06.  Against Encumbrances.  The District hereby covenants that there is no 
pledge of or lien on Net Revenues senior to the pledge and lien securing the Bonds.  The District 
will not make any pledge of or place any lien on the Net Revenues, provided that the District 
may at any time, or from time to time, pledge or encumber the Net Revenues in connection with 
the issuance or execution of Parity Obligations, or subordinate to the pledge of Net Revenues 
herein. 


Section 5.07.  Against Sale or Other Disposition of Property.  Except in the ordinary 
course of business, the District will not sell, lease, encumber or otherwise dispose of the Water 
System or any part thereof; provided however, any real or personal property which has become 
nonoperative or which is not needed for the efficient and proper operation of the Water System, 
or any material or equipment which has become worn out, may be sold or exchanged at not less 
than the fair market value thereof.  The proceeds (if any) of such sale or exchange, if less than 
$25,000 in a Fiscal Year, shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund.  The proceeds (if any) of such 
sale or exchange, if greater than $25,000 in a Fiscal Year, shall either (a) be used for the 
acquisition or construction of improvements, extensions or replacements of facilities constituting 
part of the Water System, or (b) to the extent not so used, be paid to the Trustee to be applied to 
pay or redeem the Bonds or any Parity Obligations, in accordance with written instructions of the 
District filed with the Trustee. 


The District will not enter into any agreement or lease which would materially impair the 
rights of the Owners or the operation of the Water System.   


Section 5.08.  Against Competitive Facilities.  Except for any utility system existing as of 
the date hereof, the District will not, to the extent permitted by law, acquire, maintain or operate 
and will not, to the extent permitted by law and within the scope of its powers, permit any other 
public or private agency, authority, District or political subdivision or any person whomsoever to 
acquire, maintain or operate within the District any utility system competitive with the Water 
System; provided, however, that the District may assign all or a portion of the Water System to 
another entity upon delivery to the Trustee of an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel 
that such assignment will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, and provided 
such entity assumes the obligations of the District hereunder. 


Section 5.09.  Tax Covenants.  The District shall not take any action or permit to be taken 
any action within its control which would cause or which, with the passage of time if not cured 
would cause, the interest on the Bonds to become includable in gross income for federal income 
tax purposes.  To that end, the District hereby makes the following specific covenants: 


 (a) The District hereby covenants that it shall not make or permit any use of 
the proceeds of the Bonds that may cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning 
of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 


 (b) The District covenants that the proceeds of the Bonds will not be used as 
to cause the proceeds on the Bonds to satisfy the private business tests of Section 141(b) of the 
Code or the private loan financing test of Section 141(c) of the Code. 


29 
 







 


 (c) The District covenants not to take any action or permit or suffer any action 
to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause the Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” 
within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code. 


Section 5.10.  Operation of the Water System.  The District covenants and agrees to 
operate, or cause to be operated, the Water System in accordance with customary standards and 
practices applicable to similar facilities.   


Section 5.11.  Payment of Claims.  The District will pay and discharge any and all lawful 
claims for labor, materials or supplies which, if unpaid, might become a lien on the Net 
Revenues or any part thereof or on any funds in the control of the District or the Trustee prior or 
superior to the lien of the Bonds or which might impair the security of the Bonds; provided the 
District shall not be obligated to make such payment so long as the District contracts such 
payment in good faith. 


Section 5.12.  Compliance with Contracts.  The District will comply with, keep, observe 
and perform all agreements, conditions, covenants and terms, expressed or implied, required to 
be performed by it contained in all contracts for the use of the Water System and all other 
contracts affecting or involving the Water System to the extent that the District is a party thereto. 


Section 5.13.  Insurance.  So long as the Bonds are Outstanding, the District shall at all 
times maintain insurance on the Water System as is customarily maintained with respect to 
works and properties of like character against accident to, loss of or damage to the Water 
System, either in the form of self-insurance or with responsible insurers.  The District shall also 
maintain worker's compensation insurance and insurance against public liability and property 
damage to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the District, the Trustee and the Owners, 
either in the form of self-insurance or with responsible insurers. The Trustee is not responsible 
for the adequacy of such insurance. 


All amounts collected from insurance against accident to or destruction of any portion of 
the Water System shall be used to repair, rebuild or replace such damaged or destroyed portion 
of the Water System, and to the extent not so applied, shall be paid to the Trustee to be applied to 
redeem the Bonds under Section 4.01(a) hereof or any Parity Obligations, in accordance with 
written instructions of the District filed with the Trustee.  The District covenants that it will 
commence such replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement or indicate that 
such replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement is not economically feasible 
within 180 days of receipt of such Net Proceeds. 


Section 5.14.  Books and Accounts; Financial Statements .  The District shall keep proper 
books of record and accounts of the Water System, separate from all other records and accounts, 
in which complete and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the Water 
System.  Said books shall, upon prior request, be subject to the reasonable inspection by the 
Owners of not less than ten percent (10%) in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding 
Bonds, or their representatives authorized in writing.  The District shall cause the books and 
accounts of the Water System to be audited annually by an Independent Accountant, not more 
than two hundred ten (210) days after the close of each Fiscal Year, and shall make a copy of 
such report available for inspection by the Owners at the office of the District. 


30 
 







 


The Trustee shall not be required to review, and shall not be deemed to have notice of, 
the contents of the books and records of the District, any financial statement or statement of 
insurance coverage delivered to the Trustee hereunder, it being expressly understood that the 
Trustee shall only receive and hold such documents as repository for examination and copying 
by any Owner at such Owner’s expense during business hours on Business Days. 


Section 5.15.  Payment of Taxes and Compliance with Governmental Regulations.  The 
District will pay and discharge all taxes, assessments and other governmental charges, if any, 
which may hereafter be lawfully imposed upon the Water System or any part thereof or upon the 
Net Revenues when the same shall become due.  The District will duly observe and conform 
with all valid regulations and requirements of any governmental authority relative to the 
operation of the Water System or any part thereof, but the District shall not be required to make 
such payments, or to comply with any regulations or requirements, so long as the payment or 
validity or application thereof shall be contested in good faith. 


Section 5.16.  Collection of Rates and Charges.  (a) The District hereby covenants that it 
shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and charges for the services and facilities 
furnished by the Water System during each Fiscal Year, which are at least sufficient, after 
making allowances for contingencies and error in the estimates, to yield Gross Revenues 
sufficient to pay the following amounts in the following order of priority: 


 (i) All Operation and Maintenance Expenses estimated by the District to 
become due and payable in such Fiscal Year; 


 (ii) All Debt Service Payments and all payments of principal of and interest 
on any Parity Obligations as they become due and payable during such Fiscal Year, without 
preference or priority;  


 (iii) Amounts necessary to bring the amount of funds in the Reserve Fund up 
to the Reserve Requirement within one year of a draw thereon; and 


 (iv) All payments required to meet any other obligations of the District which 
are charges, liens, encumbrances upon, or which are otherwise payable from, the Gross 
Revenues or the Net Revenues during such Fiscal Year. 


In addition, the District shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and charges for 
the services and facilities furnished by the Water System during each Fiscal Year which are 
sufficient to yield Net Revenues which are at least equal to 125% of the amount described in the 
preceding clause (ii) for such Fiscal Year. 


(b) For purposes of calculating the interest on any Outstanding Parity Obligations, if 
interest on any Parity Obligations is reasonably anticipated to be reimbursed to or on behalf of 
the District by the United States of America, then interest on such Parity Obligations shall be 
excluded to the extent such interest is reasonably anticipated to be paid or reimbursed by the 
United States of America, and such reimbursements will not be included as Gross Revenues for 
purposes of the coverage calculations set forth in (a) above. 


31 
 







 


(c) If, in any Fiscal Year, charges for the services and facilities of the Water System 
which, after allowances for contingencies and error in the estimates, shall produce Gross 
Revenues insufficient to meet the covenant set forth in paragraph (a), the District covenants and 
agrees to employ an independent consultant to make recommendations as to a revision of the 
rates, fees and charges of the Water System or the methods of operation of the Water System that 
will result in producing Net Revenues in the amount specified in paragraph (a) of this Section 
5.16.  Copies of the recommendations of such consultant shall be filed with the Trustee. 


The District covenants and agrees that it shall, promptly upon its receipt of such 
recommendations from such consultant, subject to applicable requirements or restrictions 
imposed by law, and subject to a good faith determination of the District Board of Directors that 
such recommendations, in whole or in part, are in the best interests of the District, revise its 
rates, fees and charges or its methods of operation or collections and shall take such other action 
as shall be in conformity with such recommendations. In the event that the District fails to 
comply with such recommendations, subject to the applicable requirements or restrictions 
imposed by law and to the determination of the District Board of Directors of the District that 
such recommendations are in the best interests of the District, or its assignee, may, in addition to 
the rights and remedies elsewhere set forth herein, and shall, upon the written request of the 
Owners of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, and being indemnified 
to its satisfaction therefor, institute and prosecute an action or proceeding in a court of competent 
jurisdiction to compel the District to comply with the recommendations and requirements of this 
paragraph (c).  If the District complies in all material respects with the reasonable 
recommendations of the consultant in respect to said rates, fees, charges and methods of 
operation or collection, the District will be deemed to have complied with the covenants 
contained in this Section 5.16 notwithstanding that Net Revenues shall be less than the amount 
required under this Section 5.16 for such Fiscal Year; provided, however, that such rates, fees, 
charges and methods of operation or collection shall produce Net Revenues equal to at least 
100% of (i) the Debt Service Payments coming due and payable during such Fiscal Year, and (ii) 
all payments required with respect to Parity Obligations; provided further, that this sentence 
shall not be construed as in any way excusing the District from taking any action or performing 
any duty required under this Indenture or be construed as constituting a waiver of any other 
Event of Default. 


Section 5.17.  Eminent Domain Proceeds.  Any amounts received as awards as a result of 
the taking of all or any part of the Water System by the lawful exercise of eminent domain, at the 
election of the District (evidenced by a Written Certificate of the District filed with the Trustee) 
shall either (a) be used for the acquisition or construction of improvements and extension of the 
Water System, or (b) be paid to the Trustee to be applied to redeem the Bonds under Section 
4.01(a) hereof or any Parity Obligations, in accordance with written instructions of the District 
filed with the Trustee. 


Section 5.18  Continuing Disclosure to Owners  The District and the Trustee shall 
comply with and carry out all of their respective duties under the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Indenture, failure of the District or the 
Trustee to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be considered an Event 
of Default; provided, however, that the Trustee shall, at the written direction of any Participating 


32 
 







 


Underwriter (as defined in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement) or the holders of at least 25% 
aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds, but only to the extent indemnified for its fees 
and expenses, including those of its attorneys, or any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds 
may, take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate to compel performance, including 
seeking mandate or specific performance by court order. 


Section 5.19.  Rebate of Excess Investment Earnings to United States.  


(a) Obligation to Calculate Excess Investment Earnings.  The District shall 
calculate or cause to be calculated, and shall provide or cause to be provided written notice to the 
Trustee of, the excess investment earnings (as defined in the Code, “Excess Investment 
Earnings”) at such times and in such manner as may be required pursuant to the Code.  The 
District shall inform the Trustee how frequently calculations are to be made, and shall ensure 
that a copy of all such calculations is given promptly to the Trustee. 


(b) Rebate to United States.  The District agrees to deposit with the Trustee, 
promptly upon the receipt of any calculations made pursuant to the preceding subsection (a), the 
amount of Excess Investment Earnings so calculated.  The Trustee shall deposit all amounts paid 
to it for such purpose by the District in the Rebate Fund, which fund the Trustee hereby agrees to 
establish when required to deposit any funds therein and maintain so long as any Bonds are 
Outstanding.  The Trustee shall pay to the United States of America from the amounts on deposit 
in the Rebate Fund such amounts as shall be identified pursuant to written notice filed with the 
Trustee by the District for such purpose from time to time.  Payments to the United States of 
America shall be made to the address prescribed by the Code as the same may be from time to 
time in effect with such reports and statements as may be prescribed by the Code.  Following 
payment in full to the United States of America of all amounts due and owing under this 
subsection (b) and under the Code, the Trustee shall withdraw from the Rebate Fund and transfer 
to the District all amounts remaining on deposit in the Rebate Fund. 


(c) Investment Transactions.  The District shall assure that Excess Investment 
Earnings are not paid or disbursed except as required in this Section 5.19.  To that end the 
District shall assure that investment transactions are on an arm’s-length basis.  In the event that 
Permitted Investments consist of certificates of deposit or investment contracts, investment in 
such Permitted Investments shall be made in accordance with the procedures described in the 
Code. 


(d) Maintenance of Records.  The District shall keep, and retain for a period 
of six (6) years following the retirement of the Bonds, records of the determinations made 
pursuant to this Section 5.19. 


(e) Engagement of Professional Services.  In order to provide for the 
administration of this Section 5.19, the District may provide for the employment of independent 
attorneys, accountants and consultants compensated on such reasonable basis as the District may 
deem appropriate. 


(f) Modification of this Section.  Any of the provisions of this Section 5.19 
may be amended, modified or deleted in any manner whatsoever in the event that the District 


33 
 







 


shall cause to be filed with the Trustee written directions making such amendment, modification 
or deletion, which written directions are accompanied by an opinion of Bond Counsel stating 
that such amendment, modification or deletion will not cause interest on the Bonds to be 
includable in gross income of the Bondowners for federal income tax purposes. 


 
ARTICLE VI 


 
DEFAULT AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 


Section 6.01.  Events of Default and Events of Mandatory Acceleration; Acceleration of 
Maturities.  If one or more of the following Events of Default shall happen: 


(a) default shall be made in the due and punctual payment by the District of any Debt 
Service Payment when and as the same shall become due and payable; 


(b) default shall be made by the District in the performance of any of the agreements 
or covenants contained herein required to be performed by it, and such default shall have 
continued for a period of sixty (60) days after the District shall have been given notice in writing 
of such default by the Trustee; except that, if such failure may be remedied but not within such 
60-day period and if the District has taken all action reasonably possible to remedy such default 
within such 60-day period, such default shall not become an Event of Default for so long as the 
District shall diligently proceed to remedy the default. 


(c) the District shall file a petition seeking arrangement or reorganization under 
federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state 
therein, or if a court of competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition filed with the consent of 
the District seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any 
other applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or if under the 
provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors any court of competent jurisdiction 
shall assume custody or control of the District or of the whole or any substantial part of its 
property; or 


(d) an event of default shall have occurred with respect to any Parity Obligations; 


If an Event of Default shall occur, then, and in each and every such case during the continuance 
of such Event of Default, the Trustee may, subject to the provisions of Section 6.02, exercise any 
remedies available to the Trustee and the Bondowners in law or at equity.  


The Trustee shall notify the District promptly of any default under Section 6.01(a) 
hereof. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder, the Trustee may declare the 
principal and interest with respect to all such Bonds immediately due and payable and such 
principal and interest shall thereupon be due and payable immediately.  The Trustee shall apply 
amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts in accordance with Section 6.07 hereof. 


This provision, however, is subject to the condition that, except with respect to an Event 
of Default under subsection (c) above, if at any time after such Outstanding principal amount of 
the Bonds and the accrued interest thereon shall have been so declared due and payable and 


34 
 







 


before the acceleration date or the date of any judgment or decree for the payment of the money 
due shall have been obtained or entered, the District shall deposit with the Trustee a sum 
sufficient to pay such amount due prior to such date and the accrued interest thereon, with 
interest on such overdue payments at the rate on such Bonds, and the reasonable fees and 
expenses of the Trustee, including those of its attorneys, and any and all other defaults known to 
the District (other than in the payment of such principal amount of the Bonds and the accrued 
interest thereon due and payable solely by reason of such declaration) shall have been made 
good or cured to the satisfaction of the Trustee or provision deemed by the Trustee to be 
adequate shall have been made therefor, then and in every such case the Trustee, by written 
notice to the District, may rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences; but no such 
rescission and annulment shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or shall impair or 
exhaust any right or power consequent thereon. 


Section 6.02.  Other Remedies of the Trustee.  The Trustee may (subject to the receipt of 
indemnity as provided herein): 


(a) by mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity enforce its 
rights against the District, or any board member, officer or employee thereof, and compel the 
District or any such board member, officer or employee to perform and carry out its or his or her 
duties under applicable law and the agreements and covenants contained herein required to be 
performed by it or him; 


(b) by suit in equity enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate the rights 
of the Trustee or the Bondowners hereunder;  


(c) intervene in judicial proceedings that affect the Bonds or the security therefor or 
hereunder; or 


(d) by suit in equity upon the happening of an Event of Default require the District 
and its officers and employees to account as the trustee of an express trust. 


Section 6.03.  Non-Waiver.  A waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the 
Trustee or the Owners shall not affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or 
impair any rights or remedies on any such subsequent default or breach of duty or contract.  No 
delay or omission by the Trustee or the Owners to exercise any right or remedy accruing upon 
any default or breach of duty or contract shall impair any such right or shall be construed to be a 
waiver of any such default or breach of duty or contract or an acquiescence therein, and every 
right or remedy conferred upon the Trustee or the Owners by law or by this Article may be 
enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the 
Trustee. 


If any action, proceeding or suit to enforce any right or to exercise any remedy is 
abandoned or determined adversely to the Trustee or the Owners, the Trustee, the Owners and 
the District shall be restored to their former positions, rights and remedies as if such action, 
proceeding or suit had not been brought or taken. 


35 
 







 


Section 6.04.  Remedies Not Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
the Trustee is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each such remedy shall be 
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter 
existing in law or in equity or by statute or otherwise and may be exercised without exhausting 
and without regard to any other remedy conferred by any other law. 


Section 6.05.  No Liability by the Trustee to the Owners.  Except for the duty of the 
Trustee to make payments of principal, redemption premiums and interest with respect to the 
Bonds from moneys received from the District, the Trustee will not have any obligation or 
liability to the Owners with respect to the payment when due of the Debt Service Payments by 
the District, or with respect to the performance by the District of the other agreements and 
covenants required to be performed by it contained herein. 


Section 6.06.  Limitation on Owners’ Right to Bring Suit.  No Owner of any Bond shall 
have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, under or with respect to this 
Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee or for any other remedy hereunder, at 
law or in equity, unless: 


(1) such Owner has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a 
continuing Event of Default; 


(2) the owners of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds 
Outstanding shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in 
respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Trustee hereunder; 


(3) such Owner or Owners have offered to the Trustee reasonable indemnity, 
satisfactory to the Trustee, against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in 
compliance with such request; and 


(4) the Trustee for sixty (60) days after its receipt of such notice, request and 
offer of indemnity has failed to institute any such proceeding. 


It being understood and intended that no one or more Owners shall have any right in any 
manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision of this Indenture to affect, disturb 
or prejudice the lien of this Indenture or the rights of any other Owners or to obtain or to seek to 
obtain priority or preference over any other Owners or to enforce any right under this Indenture, 
except in the manner herein provided and for the equal and ratable benefit of all Bonds and 
Parity Obligations.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Owner of any Bond shall have the right 
which is absolute and unconditional to receive payment of interest on such Bond when due in 
accordance with the terms thereof and hereof and the principal of such Bond at the stated 
maturity thereof and to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment in accordance with 
the provisions of this Indenture and such rights shall not be impaired without the consent of such 
Owner. 


Section 6.07.  Application of Funds Upon Default.  All monies received by the Trustee or 
by any receiver pursuant to any right given or action taken under the provisions of this Article 
VI, and any other funds then held by the Trustee, shall, after payment of the reasonable costs and 


36 
 







 


fees of, and the reasonable fees, expenses, liabilities and advances incurred or made by the 
Trustee (including fees and expenses of its attorneys and advisors), be deposited in the Debt 
Service Account and all moneys so deposited during the continuance of an Event of Default 
(other than moneys for the payment of Bonds which have previously matured or otherwise 
become payable prior to such Event of Default or for the payment of interest due prior to such 
Event of Default), together with all moneys in the funds and accounts maintained by the Trustee 
under Article III hereof, shall be applied as follows: 


(a) Unless the principal of all Bonds shall have become or shall have been declared 
due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied: 


First:  To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest 
then due on the Bonds and any Parity Obligations, with interest on overdue installments, 
if lawful, at the rate per annum borne by the Bonds, in the order of the maturity of the 
installments of such interest, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in 
full any particular installment of interest, then to the payment ratably according to the 
amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto without any 
discrimination or privilege; and  


Second:  To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal of 
any of the Bonds and any Parity Obligations which shall have become due (other than 
Bonds called for redemption for the payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the 
provisions of this Indenture), with interest on such Bonds at their rate from the respective 
dates upon which they became due, in the order of their due dates, and, if the amount 
available shall not be sufficient to pay in full Bonds and any Parity Obligations due on 
any particular date, together with such interest, then to the payment ratably, according to 
the amount of principal and interest due on such date, to the persons entitled thereto 
without any discrimination or privilege. 


(b) If the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due or shall have been 
declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied to the payment of the 
principal and interest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds and any Parity Obligations, 
with interest on overdue interest and principal, as aforesaid, without preference or 
priority over interest or of interest over principal or of any installment of interest over 
any other installment of interest, or of any Bonds over any other Bonds or any Parity 
Obligations, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, 
to the persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 


Whenever the Trustee shall apply such moneys (which shall not include the application 
of moneys upon the occurrence of any acceleration pursuant to the provisions hereof), it shall fix 
the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date unless it shall deem another date more 
suitable) upon which date such application is to commence and upon such date interest on the 
amounts of principal and interest to be paid on such date shall cease to accrue.  The Trustee shall 
give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the deposit with it of any such moneys and of the 
fixing of any such date and of the special record date in accordance with Article II hereof.  The 
Trustee shall not be required to make payment to the Owner of any unpaid Bond until such Bond 
shall be presented to the Trustee for appropriate endorsement or for cancellation if fully paid.  


37 
 







 


Section 6.08.  Rights of the Owners of Parity Obligations.  Notwithstanding anything in 
this Article VI to the contrary, it is hereby acknowledged and agreed that the rights of the 
Trustee and the Owners hereunder in and to the Net Revenues and the Water System shall be 
exercised on a parity and proportionate basis with the rights of the owners of any Parity 
Obligations and any fiduciary acting for the benefit of such owners.  The provisions of this 
Article VI, and the provisions of any instruments authorizing the issuance of any Parity 
Obligations, shall be construed in accordance with the foregoing sentence. 


 
ARTICLE VII 


 
THE TRUSTEE 


Section 7.01.  Trustee; Duties, Removal and Resignation.  By executing and delivering 
the Indenture, the Trustee accepts the duties and obligations of the Trustee provided in the 
Indenture, but only upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture. 


The District, in its sole discretion, or the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal 
amount of all Bonds Outstanding may, by thirty (30) days prior written request, remove the 
Trustee initially a party hereto, and any successor thereto, and in such event, or in the event the 
Trustee resigns, the District shall appoint a successor Trustee, but any such successor shall be a 
bank, national banking association or trust company in good standing doing business and having 
an office in Los Angeles or San Francisco, California, having (or if such bank, national banking 
association or trust company is a member of a bank holding company system, its bank holding 
company shall have) a combined capital (exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least 
Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000) and subject to supervision or examination by federal or state 
authority.  If such bank, national banking association or trust company publishes a report of 
condition at least annually, pursuant to law or to the requirements of any supervising or 
examining authority above referred to, then for the purposes of this Section the combined capital 
and surplus of such bank, national banking association or trust company shall be deemed to be 
its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of conditions so published. 


The Trustee may at any time resign by giving written notice to the District and by giving 
to the Bond Owners notice by mailing a notice of such resignation to their addresses appearing in 
the Bond Register.  Upon receiving any such notice of resignation, the District shall promptly 
appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument in writing; provided, however, that in the event that 
the District does not appoint a successor Trustee within thirty (30) days following receipt of such 
notice of resignation, the resigning Trustee may petition at the expense of the District an 
appropriate court having jurisdiction to appoint a successor Trustee or to resign.  Subject to the 
prior sentence, any resignation or removal of the Trustee shall not become effective until written 
acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee under the Indenture. 


Any Trustee which shall resign or be removed pursuant to this Section shall be entitled to 
compensation in accordance with Section 7.02 and to reimbursement for all reasonable and 
proper expenses and advances incurred and not previously reimbursed for its activities in 
connection with the Indenture and for any indemnification due pursuant to the Indenture and not 
previously paid.  Any Trustee which resigns or is removed, upon payment of its unpaid 


38 
 







 


compensation and expenses hereunder, shall fully discharge all the right, title and interest of the 
retiring Trustee and amounts on deposit hereunder shall vest in said successor Trustee, and such 
retiring Trustee shall promptly pay over, assign and deliver to the successor Trustee any money 
or other property on deposit pursuant hereto then held by such Trustee, and deliver any and all 
records, or copies thereof, in respect of the Trustee which it may have. 


Section 7.02.  Compensation of the Trustee.  The District shall pay from time to time, 
upon receipt of a statement, to the Trustee reasonable compensation for the Trustee’s services 
and shall reimburse the Trustee for all its reasonable advances and expenditures incurred by it in 
the exercise and performance of its powers and duties under the Indenture.  The lien of the 
Trustee on amounts held by it under the Indenture for its services rendered under the Indenture 
shall be superior to the rights of the Bond Owners to receive scheduled payments of principal 
and interest with respect to their Bonds; provided that the Trustee shall have no lien on moneys 
in the Redemption Account. 


The District shall hold harmless and indemnify the Trustee from and against all costs, 
claims, expenses and liabilities incurred by or asserted against the Trustee in the performance of 
its duties under this Indenture or any related document, including any such reasonable costs, 
claims, expenses (including legal fees and expenses) and liabilities incurred in the course of 
defending itself against any claims or actions or enforcing any remedies under this Indenture or 
any related document.  Any such indemnity shall not extend to any costs, claims, expenses or 
liabilities adjudicated to have been caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
Trustee.  The indemnification of the Trustee under this Indenture shall extend to its directors, 
officers, employees and agents.  The obligations of the District under this Section shall survive 
the payment of the Bonds and the discharge of this Indenture, and the resignation or removal of 
the Trustee. 


Section 7.03.  Protection to Trustee.  The District shall indemnify, protect and hold the 
Trustee harmless and the Trustee shall incur no liability for acting upon any notice, resolution, 
consent, order, certificate, report, certificate or other paper or document reasonably believed by 
it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties.  The Trustee, 
in its discretion, may consult with counsel, who may be counsel to the District, with regard to 
legal questions, and the advice or opinion of such counsel, in the absence of negligence or willful 
misconduct on the part of the Trustee, shall be full and complete authorization and protection in 
respect of any action taken or suffered by it under the Indenture in good faith in accordance 
therewith. 


Whenever in the administration of its duties under the Indenture, the Trustee shall deem 
it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or suffering any 
action under the Indenture, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be specifically 
prescribed in the Indenture) may, in the absence of negligence or willful misconduct on the part 
of the Trustee, be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by the certificate of an 
Authorized Officer of the District and such certificate shall be full warranty to the Trustee for 
any action taken or suffered under the provisions of the Indenture upon the faith thereof, but in 
its discretion the Trustee may, in lieu thereof (but shall not be obligated to), accept other 
evidence of such matter. 


39 
 







 


The Trustee may in good faith buy, sell, own, hold and deal in any of the Bonds issued 
pursuant to the Indenture, and may join in any action which any Owner may be entitled to take 
with like effect as if the Trustee were not a party to the Indenture.  The Trustee and its affiliates, 
either as sponsor, advisor, principal or agent, may also engage in or be interested in any financial 
or other transaction with the District, and may act as depository, trustee, or agent for any 
committee or body of Owners of Bonds or other obligations of the District as freely as if it were 
not Trustee under the Indenture. 


The recitals, statements and representations contained in this Indenture or in the Bonds, 
save only the Trustee’s authentication of the Bonds, shall be taken and construed as made by and 
on the part of the District, and not by the Trustee, and the Trustee does not assume, and shall not 
have, any responsibility or obligation for the correctness of any thereof.  The Trustee shall not be 
deemed to make any representations with respect to the security afforded by this Indenture. 


The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereof and perform the duties 
required of it under the Indenture by or through attorneys, agents, or receivers, and shall be 
entitled to advice of counsel concerning all matters of trust and its duty under the Indenture.  The 
Trustee shall be fully reimbursed by the District for reasonable expenses incurred in connection 
with the performance of its obligations under the Indenture.  Upon any default by, or misconduct 
of, any agent, attorney or receiver appointed by the Trustee, the Trustee shall fully pursue all 
remedies available to it against such attorney, agent or receiver, and the proceeds of the exercise 
of such remedies shall be used to reimburse the District for any loss it may have suffered as a 
result of the default or misconduct of such agent, attorney or receiver. 


Before taking any remedial action hereunder the Trustee may require that a satisfactory 
indemnity bond or other indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee be furnished for the reimbursement 
of all reasonable expenses to which it may be put and to protect it against all liability which may 
be incurred in connection with the taking of such action, except liability which is adjudicated to 
have resulted from its negligence or willful misconduct; provided, however, the Trustee shall not 
seek such indemnity prior to making payments on the Bonds. 


The Trustee, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default, and after the curing or 
waiving of all Events of Default which may have occurred, undertakes to perform only such 
duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture.  The Trustee shall, during the existence of 
any Event of Default (which has not been cured or waived), exercise such of the rights and 
powers vested in it by this Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, 
as a reasonable person would exercise or use in the conduct of such person’s own affairs. 


The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of an Event of Default (except in 
connection with a failure of the District to make Debt Service Payments when due) until a 
Responsible Officer has actual knowledge thereof, or until notified in writing of such Event of 
Default. 


The Trustee shall have no responsibility with respect to any information, statement, or 
recital in any official statement, offering memorandum or any other disclosure material prepared 
or distributed with respect to the Bonds. 


40 
 







 


No provision of this Indenture or any other document related hereto shall require the 
Trustee to risk or advance its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the 
performance of its duties or the exercise of its rights hereunder. 


The immunities extended to the Trustee also extend to its directors, officers, employees 
and agents. 


The Trustee shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken by it in accordance with 
the direction of a majority (or other percentage provided for herein) in aggregate principal 
amount of Bonds outstanding relating to the exercise of any right, power or remedy available to 
the Trustee. 


The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in this Indenture shall not be 
construed as a duty. 


The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon instructions or directions pursuant to this 
Indenture sent by unsecured e-mail, facsimile transmission or other similar unsecured electronic 
methods, provided, however, that, the Trustee shall have received an incumbency certificate 
listing persons designated to give such instructions or directions and containing specimen 
signatures of such designated persons, which such incumbency certificate shall be amended and 
replaced whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing.  If the District elects to 
give the Trustee e-mail or facsimile instructions (or instructions by a similar electronic method) 
and the Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon such instructions, the Trustee’s understanding 
of such instructions shall be deemed controlling.  The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, 
costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee’s reliance upon and compliance 
with such instructions notwithstanding such instructions conflict or are inconsistent with a 
subsequent written instruction.  The District agrees to assume all risks arising out of the use of 
such electronic methods to submit instructions and directions to the Trustee, including without 
limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized instructions, and the risk of interception 
and misuse by third parties. 


The Trustee shall not be liable to the parties hereto or deemed in breach or default 
hereunder if and to the extent its performance hereunder is prevented by reason of force majeure.  
The term “force majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the Trustee and 
could not have been avoided by exercising due care.  Force majeure shall include but not be 
limited to acts of God, terrorism, war, riots, strikes, fire, floods, earthquakes, epidemics or other 
similar occurrences.   


The Trustee shall not be concerned with or accountable to anyone for the subsequent use 
or application of any moneys which shall be released or withdrawn in accordance with the 
provisions hereof. 


The Trustee shall not be liable in connection with the performance of its duties 
hereunder, except for its own negligence or willful misconduct. 


The Trustee’s rights to immunities and protection from liability hereunder and its rights 
to payment of its fees and expenses shall survive its resignation or removal and final payment or 


41 
 







 


defeasance of the Bonds.  All indemnifications and releases from liability granted herein to the 
Trustee shall extend to the directors, officers and employees of the Trustee. 


Section 7.04.  Payment Limited.  All payments to be made by the Trustee under and 
pursuant to this Indenture shall be made only from the corpus, income and proceeds of the 
amounts on deposit pursuant hereto and only to the extent that the Trustee shall have received 
sufficient contribution, income and proceeds in accordance with the terms of this Indenture. 


Section 7.05.  Merger or Consolidation.  Any company into which the Trustee may be 
merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any 
merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which the 
Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business, provided that 
such company shall be eligible under Section 7.01 hereof, shall be the successor to the Trustee 
without the execution or filing of any paper or further act, anything herein to the contrary 
notwithstanding. 


Section 7.06.  Funds and Accounts.  The Trustee may establish such funds and accounts 
as it reasonably deems necessary or appropriate to perform its obligations hereunder. 


 
ARTICLE VIII 


 
AMENDMENT OF OR SUPPLEMENT TO INDENTURE 


Section 8.01.  Amendment or Supplement by Consent of Owners.  The Indenture may be 
amended in writing by agreement between the District and the Trustee, but no such amendment 
or supplement shall (i) reduce the rate of interest evidenced by the Bonds or extend the time of 
payment of such interest or reduce the amount of principal thereof or extend the Maturity Date 
thereof without the prior written consent of the Owner thereof, or (ii) reduce the percentage of 
Owners of Bonds whose consent is required for the execution of any amendment of or 
supplement to the Indenture, or (iii) modify any rights or obligations of the Trustee without its 
prior written consent thereto.   


This Indenture and the rights and obligations of the District, of the Trustee and the 
Owners of the Bonds may also be modified or amended from time to time and at any time by a 
Supplemental Indenture which the District and the Trustee may enter into, but without the 
consent of any Bond Owners, if the provisions of such Supplemental Indenture shall not 
materially adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds, including, without 
limitation, for any one or more of the following purposes: 


 (a) to add to the covenants and agreements of the District other covenants and 
agreements thereafter to be observed, to pledge or assign additional security for the Bonds (or 
any portion thereof), or to surrender any right or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the 
District; 


 (b) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, 
inconsistency or omission, or of curing or correcting any defective provision, contained in this 


42 
 







 


Indenture, or in regard to matters or questions arising under this Indenture, as the District may 
deem necessary or desirable; 


 (c) to modify, amend or supplement this Indenture in such manner as to 
permit the qualification hereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any similar 
federal statute hereafter in effect, and to add such other terms, conditions and provisions as may 
be permitted by said act or similar federal statute; 


 (d) to make such additions, as may be necessary or desirable to assure 
exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Bonds; or 


 (e) to authorize the issuance of Parity Obligations. 


In the event of any such amendment or supplement, copies of such amendment or 
supplement and any other documents relating thereto shall be provided by the District to 
Moody’s and S&P (provided such rating agencies are currently rating the Bonds, or any Parity 
Obligations) at least fifteen (15) days prior to the effective date thereof. 


Section 8.02.  Disqualified Bonds.  Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the 
District shall not be deemed Outstanding for the purpose of any consent or other action or any 
calculation of Outstanding Bonds provided in this Article VIII, and shall not be entitled to 
consent to or take any other action provided in this Article VIII, and the Trustee may adopt 
appropriate regulations to require each Owner, before his or her consent provided for herein shall 
be deemed effective, to reveal if the Bonds as to which such consent is given are disqualified as 
provided in this Section 8.02.  Upon request of the Trustee, the District shall specify in a 
certificate to the Trustee those Bonds disqualified pursuant to this Section and the Trustee may 
conclusively rely on such certificate. 


 
ARTICLE IX 


 
DEFEASANCE 


Section 9.01.  Defeasance.  Any Outstanding Bonds shall be paid and discharged in any 
one or more of the following ways: 


(a) by paying or causing to be paid the principal of and interest on such Bonds 
Outstanding, as and when the same become due and payable; 


(b) by depositing with the Trustee, in trust, before maturity, money which, together 
with the amounts which are then on deposit in the Payment Fund and available therefor, is fully 
sufficient to pay such Bonds, including all principal and interest; or 


(c) by depositing with the Trustee, under an escrow deposit and trust agreement, 
cash, non-callable Federal Securities or pre-refunded non-callable municipal obligations rated 
“AAA” and “Aaa” by S&P and Moody’s, respectively (or any combination thereof) (the 
“Defeasance Obligations”) in such amount as an Independent Certified Public Accountant  shall 
determine will, together with the interest to accrue thereon and moneys then on deposit (or a pro 


43 
 







 


rata share thereof) in the Payment Fund available therefor, together with the interest to accrue 
thereon, be fully sufficient to pay and discharge such Bonds (including all principal and interest) 
at or before their respective maturity dates. 


In the event of a refunding as described in paragraph (c) above (i) the District shall cause 
to be delivered, on the deposit date and upon any reinvestment of the defeasance amount, a 
report of an Independent Certified Public Accountant verifying the sufficiency of the escrow 
established to pay such Bonds in full on the maturity or redemption date (the “Verification”), 
(ii) the escrow instructions shall provide that (A) substitution of a Defeasance Obligation shall 
not be permitted except with another Defeasance Obligation and upon delivery of a new 
Verification and (B) reinvestment of a Defeasance Obligation shall not be permitted except as 
contemplated by the original Verification or upon delivery of a new Verification, and (iii) there 
shall be delivered an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such Bonds 
are no longer “Outstanding” under the Indenture.  Each Verification and defeasance opinion 
shall be addressed to the District, the Trustee, the escrow agent, if any, and any other parties as 
are deemed appropriate by the District at the time of such refunding.  In the event a forward 
purchase agreement will be employed in the refunding, such agreement shall be accompanied by 
such opinions of counsel. 


Notwithstanding that some Bonds may not have been surrendered for payment, all 
obligations of the District and the Trustee under the Indenture with respect to such defeased 
Bonds shall cease and terminate, except only the obligation of the Trustee to pay or cause to be 
paid to the Owners of such Bonds all sums due thereon and the obligation of the District to 
indemnify and pay the Trustee in accordance with Sections 7.02 and 7.03 hereof. 


Any funds held by the Trustee, at the time of one of the events described above in 
subsections (a), (b) or (c), which are not required for the payment to be made to Owners, or for 
payments to be made to the Trustee by the District, shall be paid over to the District pursuant to 
written instruction from an Authorized Officer of the District and delivery of a certificate of a 
certified public accountant that such funds are not required to be paid to the Owners. 


Section 9.02.  Unclaimed Moneys.  Anything contained herein to the contrary 
notwithstanding, any money held by the Trustee in trust for the payment and discharge of the 
interest or principal of the Bonds which remains unclaimed for the lesser of the period ending 
one day prior to the date such money would escheat to the State or two (2) years after the date 
when the payments evidenced and represented by such Bonds have become payable, if such 
money was held by the Trustee at such date, or for the lesser of the period ending one day prior 
to the date such money would escheat to the State or two (2) years after the date of deposit of 
such money if deposited with the Trustee after the date when the interest and principal evidenced 
and represented by such Bonds have become payable, the Trustee shall pay such amounts to the 
District as its absolute property free from trust, and the Trustee shall thereupon be released and 
discharged with respect thereto and the Owners shall look only to the District for interest and 
principal represented by such Bonds; provided, however, that before being required to make any 
such payment to the District, the Trustee may, at the expense of the District, cause to be 
published once a week for two (2) successive weeks in a financial newspaper a notice that such 
money remains unclaimed and that after a date named in such notice, which date shall not be less 


44 
 







 


than thirty (30) days after the date of the first publication of such notice, the balance of such 
money then unclaimed will be returned to the District. 
 


 
ARTICLE X 


 
MISCELLANEOUS 


Section 10.01.  Benefits of Indenture Limited to Parties.  Nothing contained herein, 
expressed or implied, is intended to give to any person other than the District, the Trustee and 
the Owners any claim, remedy or right under or pursuant hereto, and any agreement, condition, 
covenant or term contained herein required to be observed or performed by or on behalf of the 
District shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Trustee and the Owners. 


Section 10.02.  Successor Deemed Included in all References to Predecessor.  Whenever 
either the District, the Trustee or any officer thereof is named or referred to herein, such 
reference shall be deemed to include the successor to the powers, duties and functions that are 
presently vested in the District, the Trustee or such officer, and all agreements, conditions, 
covenants and terms required hereby to be observed or performed by or on behalf of the District, 
the Trustee or any officer thereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors 
thereof whether so expressed or not. 


Section 10.03.  Execution of Documents by Owners.  Any declaration, request or other 
instrument which is permitted or required herein to be executed by Owners may be in one or 
more instruments of similar tenor and may be executed by Owners in person or by their attorneys 
appointed in writing.  The fact and date of the execution by any Owner or his or her attorney of 
any declaration, request or other instrument or of any writing appointing such attorney may be 
proved by the certificate of any notary public or other officer authorized to take 
acknowledgments of deeds to be recorded in the state or territory in which she purports to act, 
that the person signing such declaration, request or other instrument or writing acknowledged to 
him the execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness of such execution duly sworn to before 
such notary public or other officer, or by such other proof as the Trustee or the paying agent, as 
the case may be, may accept which it may deem sufficient. 


Any declaration, request or other instrument in writing of the Owner of any Bond shall 
bind all future owners of such Bond with respect to anything done or suffered to be done by the 
District or the Trustee in good faith and in accordance therewith. 


Section 10.04.  Waiver of Personal Liability.  No board member, officer or employee of 
the District shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the interest or principal 
the Bonds, but nothing contained herein shall relieve any board member, officer or employee of 
the District from the performance of any official duty provided by any applicable provisions of 
law or hereby. 


Section 10.05.  Acquisition of Bonds by the District.  All Bonds acquired by the District, 
whether by purchase or gift or otherwise, shall be surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation. 


45 
 







 


Section 10.06.  Content of Certificates.  Every Certificate of the District with respect to 
compliance with any agreement, condition, covenant or term contained herein shall include (a) a 
statement that the person or persons making or giving such certificate have read such agreement, 
condition, covenant or term and the definitions herein relating thereto; (b) a statement that, in the 
opinion of the signers they have made or caused to be made such examination or investigation as 
is necessary to enable them to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such agreement, 
condition, covenant or term has been complied with; and (c) a statement as to whether, in the 
opinion of the signers, such agreement, condition, covenant or term has been complied with. 


Any Certificate of the District may be based, insofar as it relates to legal matters, upon an 
opinion of counsel unless the person making or giving such certificate knows that the opinion of 
counsel with respect to the matters upon which such certificate may be based, as aforesaid, is 
erroneous, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have known that the same was erroneous.  
Any opinion of counsel may be based, insofar as it relates to factual matters or information with 
respect to which is in the possession of the District, upon a representation by an officer or 
officers of the District unless the counsel executing such opinion of counsel knows that the 
representation with respect to the matters or upon which his or her opinion may be based, as 
aforesaid, is erroneous, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have known that the same 
was erroneous. 


Section 10.07.  Notice by Mail.  Any notice required to be given hereunder by mail to 
any Owners of Bonds shall be given by mailing a copy of such notice, first class postage prepaid, 
to the Owners of such Bonds at their addresses appearing in the books required to be kept by the 
Trustee pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.07 not less than thirty (30) days nor more than 
sixty (60) days following the action or prior to the event concerning which notice thereof is 
required to be given unless this Indenture expressly provides a different provision; provided, that 
receipt of any such notice shall not be a condition precedent to the effect of such notice and 
failure to receive any such notice shall not affect the validity of the proceedings taken in 
connection with the action or the event concerning which such notice was given. 


Section 10.08.  Funds.  Any fund or account required to be established and maintained 
herein by the Trustee may be established and maintained in the accounting records of the Trustee 
either as an account or a fund, and may, for the purposes of such accounting records, any audits 
thereof and any reports or statements with respect thereto, be treated either as an account or a 
fund; but all such records with respect to all such funds shall at all times be maintained in 
accordance with industry practice and with due regard for the protection of the security of the 
Bonds and the rights of the owners. 


Section 10.09.  Investments. 


(a) Amounts on deposit in any fund or account created pursuant to this Indenture 
shall be invested in Permitted Investments which will, as nearly as practicable, mature on or 
before the dates when such money is anticipated to be needed for disbursement hereunder, in 
accordance with such written directions as the District may from time to time provide to the 
Trustee.  Investment directions shall be received at least two (2) Business Days prior to the date 
of making the investment.  If no such direction has been received by the Trustee in sufficient 
time, in the judgment of the Trustee to comply with such instructions the Trustee may invest 


46 
 







 


such amounts in Permitted Investments of the type described in paragraph (4) of the definition 
thereof; provided, however, that any such investment shall be made by the Trustee only if, prior 
to the date on which such investment is to be made, the Trustee shall have received investment 
directions from the District specifying a specific money market fund and, if no such written 
investment directions is so received, the Trustee shall hold such moneys uninvested.  The 
Trustee and any affiliates may act as sponsor, advisor, principal or agent in the acquisition or 
disposition of any such investment.  The Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any loss 
suffered in connection with any such investment made by it under the terms of and in accordance 
with this Section 10.09.  The Trustee may sell or present for redemption any obligations so 
purchased whenever it shall be necessary in order to provide moneys to meet any payment of the 
funds so invested, and the Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any losses resulting from 
any such investment sold or presented for redemption.  To the extent possible, the Trustee shall 
provide notice to the District prior to any such sale.  Interest or profit received on such 
investments shall be deposited to the Payment Fund. 


The District acknowledges that to the extent regulations of the Comptroller of the 
Currency or other applicable regulatory entity grant the District the right to receive brokerage 
confirmations of security transactions as they occur, the District will not receive confirmations to 
the extent permitted by law.  The Trustee will furnish the District periodic cash transaction 
statements which shall include detail for all investment transactions made by the Trustee 
hereunder. 


The Trustee may make any investments hereunder through its own bond or investment 
department or trust investment department, or those of its parent or any affiliate. 


(b) In computing the amount in any fund or account, Permitted Investments shall be 
valued at market value, exclusive of accrued interest.  Valuation shall occur as determined by the 
District, but not less often than annually. 


(c) Except for investment agreements and repurchase agreements, if at any time after 
investment therein a Permitted Investment ceases to meet the criteria set forth in the definition of 
Permitted Investments and such obligation, aggregated with other non-conforming investments, 
exceeds ten percent (10%) of invested funds, such Permitted Investment shall be sold or 
liquidated upon the written direction of the District. 


Section 10.10.  Article and Section Headings, Gender and References.  The headings or 
titles of the several articles and sections hereof and the table of contents appended hereto shall be 
solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect 
hereof, and words of any gender shall be deemed and construed to include all genders.  All 
references herein to “Articles,” “Sections” and other subdivisions or clauses are to the 
corresponding articles, sections, subdivisions or clauses hereof; and the words “hereby,” 
“herein,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “herewith,” “hereunder” and other words of similar import refer to 
this Indenture as a whole and not to any particular article, section, subdivision or clause hereof. 


Section 10.11.  Partial Invalidity.  If any one or more of the agreements, conditions, 
covenants or terms contained herein required to be observed or performed by or on the part of 
the District or the Trustee shall be contrary to law, then such agreement or agreements, such 


47 
 







 


condition or conditions, such covenant or covenants or such term or terms shall be null and void 
and shall be deemed separable from the remaining agreements, conditions, covenants and terms 
hereof and shall in no way affect the validity hereof or of the Bonds, and the Owners shall retain 
all the benefit, protection and security afforded to them under any applicable provisions of law. 


Section 10.12.  California Law.  This Indenture shall be construed and governed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 


Section 10.13.  Notices.  All written notices to be given hereunder shall be given by 
certified mail to the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other address 
as such party may provide to the other parties in writing from time to time.   
 
If to the District: Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 P.O. Box 48 
 Guerneville, CA 95446 
 Attention:  General Manager 
 
If to the Trustee: U.S. Bank National Association 
 One California Street, 10th Floor 
 San Francisco, California 94111 
 Attention:  Global Corporate Trust Services 


Section 10.14.  Effective Date.  This Indenture shall become effective upon its execution 
and delivery. 


Section 10.15.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Indenture may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 


Section 10.16.  Payments Due on Days that are not Business Days.  In any case where the 
date fixed for payment of principal or interest on the Bonds or the date fixed for redemption of 
Bonds shall not be a Business Day, then payment of such principal or interest or redemption 
price shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day, with the same force and effect as if 
made on such non-Business Day and no interest shall accrue on such amounts from and after 
such non-Business Day. 


48 
 







 


49 
 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Indenture by their 
officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year first written above. 


 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Trustee 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 


Authorized Officer 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 


General Manager 
 







 


APPENDIX A 
FORM OF BOND 


 
NO.        $                 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
WATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 


SERIES 2013 
 
 


Rate of Interest Maturity Date Dated Date CUSIP    


 September 1, 20__ July __, 2013  


REGISTERED OWNER:  CEDE & CO. 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS 


The SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, a county water district and public 
entity duly created and lawfully existing under the laws of the State of California (the “District”), 
for value received, hereby promises to pay (but only out of the Net Revenues hereinafter referred 
to) to the registered owner specified above or registered assigns on the maturity date specified 
above (subject to any right of prior redemption provided for) the principal sum specified above, 
together with interest thereon from the Interest Payment Date (defined below) next preceding the 
date of authentication hereof (unless such date of authentication is during the period 
commencing after the fifteenth day of the month preceding an Interest Payment Date (the 
“Record Date”) through and including the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in which 
event this Bond shall bear interest from such Interest Payment Date, or unless such date of 
authentication is on or prior to the first Record Date, in which event it shall bear interest from the 
Dated Date until the principal hereof shall have been paid at the interest rate per annum specified 
above, payable on September 1, 2013, and semiannually thereafter on March 1 and September 1 
in each year (each, an “Interest Payment Date”); provided, however, that if on the date of 
authentication of this Bond, interest is then in default on this Bond, such Bond shall bear interest 
from the Interest Payment Date to which interest has previously been paid or made available for 
payment. 


The principal of this Bond shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America at the Principal Office (as provided in the Indenture, defined below) of U.S. Bank 
National Association (the “Trustee”), upon presentation and surrender of this Bond. 


Payment of interest on this Bond due on or before the maturity or prior redemption 
thereof shall be made to the person in whose name such Bond is registered, as of the Record 
Date preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date, on the registration books kept by the 
Trustee at its Principal Office, such interest to be paid by check mailed by first class mail on 
such interest payment date to the registered owner at his or her address as it appears on such 
books, or, upon the written request from any Owner of Bonds aggregating, at least $1,000,000, 
received on or prior to the applicable Record Date, by wire transfer to an account within the 


A-1 


 







 


United States.  Interest on this Bond shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America and shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day 
months. 


This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the District designed as its 
“Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013” (the 
“Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of _________________ Dollars ($_________), all 
of like tenor and date (except for such variations, if any, as may be required to designate varying 
numbers, maturities and interest rates), and is issued under and pursuant to the provisions of an 
indenture of trust, dated as of July 1, 2013 (the “Indenture”), between the District and the 
Trustee. 


The Bonds are issued to provide funds to refinance certain outstanding obligations of the 
District.  The Bonds are limited obligations of the District and are payable, as to interest thereon 
and principal solely from Net Revenues (as defined in the Indenture).  All the Bonds are equally 
and ratably secured in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Indenture by a pledge of 
the Net Revenues, which Net Revenues shall be held in trust for the security and payment of the 
interest on, principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds as provided in the 
Indenture.  Neither the faith and credit of the District, the State of California, nor any of its 
political subdivisions are pledged to the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds. 


Copies of the Indenture are on file at the Principal Office of the Trustee.  Reference is 
hereby made to the Indenture and to any and all amendments thereof and supplements thereto for 
a description of the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms securing the Bonds, for the 
nature, extent and manner of enforcement of such agreements, conditions, covenants and terms, 
for the rights and remedies of the Owners of the Bonds with respect thereto and for the other 
agreements, conditions, covenants and terms upon which the Bonds are executed and delivered 
thereunder. 


To the extent and in the manner permitted by the terms of the Indenture, the provisions of 
the Indenture may be amended or supplemented in writing by the parties thereto (in certain 
instances without the consent of the Owners of Bonds), but no such amendment or supplement 
shall (i) reduce the rate of interest evidenced hereby or extend the time of payment of such 
interest or reduce the amount of principal hereof or extend the Maturity Date hereof without the 
prior written consent of the Owner hereof, or (ii) reduce the percentage of Owners of Bonds 
whose consent is required for the execution of any amendment of or supplement to the Indenture, 
or (iii) modify any rights or obligations of the Trustee without its prior written consent thereto. 


The Bonds are authorized to be executed and delivered in the form of fully registered 
Bonds in denominations of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple thereof. 


A-2 


This Bond is transferable or exchangeable by the Owner hereof in person or by the 
Owner’s attorney duly authorized in writing, at the Principal Office of the Trustee, but only in 
the manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of the charges provided in the 
Indenture, and upon surrender of this Bond for cancellation accompanied by delivery of a duly 
executed written instrument of transfer or exchange in a form approved by the Trustee.  Upon 
such transfer or exchange, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denominations of the same 


 







 


Maturity Date and interest rate and in the same aggregate principal amount hereof will be 
executed and delivered by the District and authenticated by the Trustee to the Owner thereof in 
exchange therefor.  The Trustee shall require the payment by the Owner requesting such transfer 
or exchange of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 
transfer or exchange. The Trustee may treat the Owner hereof as the absolute owner hereof for 
all purposes, whether or not this Bond shall be overdue, and the Trustee shall not be affected by 
any knowledge or notice to the contrary; and payment of the interest and principal and 
redemption premium, if any, evidenced by this Bond shall be made only to such Owner, which 
payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge liability evidenced by this Bond to 
the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 


The Trustee shall not be obligated to make any such registration of transfer or exchange 
of Bonds during the fifteen (15) day period prior to the date on which notice of redemption must 
be mailed pursuant to the Indenture, or with respect to any Bond which has been selected for 
redemption pursuant to the Indenture (except any unredeemed portion thereof). 


[REDEMPTION PROVISIONS TO COME] 


As provided in the Indenture, notice of redemption hereof shall be mailed, first class 
postage prepaid, not less than twenty (20) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption 
date, to the Owner of this Bond at such Owner’s address as it appears in the registration books 
maintained by the Trustee, but failure to give any such notice or any defect therein shall not 
affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of this Bond. If this Bond is called for 
redemption and payment is duly provided therefor as specified in the Indenture, the interest 
evidenced hereby shall cease to accrue from and after the date fixed for redemption. 


The Trustee has no obligation or liability to the Owners of the Bonds for the payment of 
the interest or principal or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds; but rather the Trustee’s 
sole obligations are to administer, for the benefit of the District and the Owners of the Bonds, the 
various funds established under the Indenture. 


This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit, protection or security under the Indenture 
or become valid or obligatory for any purpose until certificate of authentication and registration 
hereon endorsed shall have been manually executed and dated by the Trustee. 


Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 
Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the District or its agent for registration of 
transfer, exchange, or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & 
Co.  or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any 
payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR 
VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the 
registered owner hereof Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 


It is hereby certified that all acts and proceedings required by law necessary to make this 
Bond, when executed by the District, authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and duly issued, 


A-3 


 







 


the valid, binding and legal limited obligation of the District have been done and taken, and have 
been in all respects duly authorized. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT has 
caused this Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile 
signature of its President and attested to by the manual or facsimile signature of its District 
Secretary, and has caused this Bond to be dated as of the dated date set forth above. 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 


By: ____________________________ 
General Manager 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By: _________________________ 


District Secretary 
 


A-4 


 







 


CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION 
 


 This is one of the Bonds described in the within mentioned Indenture which has been 
authenticated and registered on the date set forth below. 
 
Date: July __, 2013. 


U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Trustee 


 
 
By: _____________________________________ 


Authorized Signatory 
 


A-5 


 







 


A-6 


 


ASSIGNMENT 
 


For value received, the undersigned does hereby sell, assign and transfer unto 
_____________________________ the within Bonds and does) hereby irrevocably constitute 
and appoint ________________________ attorney to transfer such Bond on the register of the 
Trustee, with full power of substitution in the premises. 
 
 
Dated:  __________________________________ 
 
Signature:  ________________________________ 


Note:  The signature(s) to this Assignment must correspond with the name(s) as written 
on the face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatsoever. 
 
Signature Guaranteed by:  _________________________ 
 
Signature guarantee shall be made by a guarantor institution participating in the Securities 
Transfer Agents Medallion Program or in such other guarantee program acceptable to the 
Trustee. 
 


2071457.3  





		Item V-B - Resolution 13-14 - Refinancing of District Bonds

		MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013 



		Item V-B.1 - Resolution 13-14 - Refinancing of District Bonds

		Item V-B.2 - POS - Refinancing of District Bonds

		INTRODUCTION

		General

		The District 

		Purpose

		Security for the Bonds

		Risk Factors

		Limited Obligations

		Forward-Looking Statements

		Summaries Not Definitive



		THE REFUNDING PLAN

		CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

		THE BONDS

		Description of the Bonds

		Redemption of the Bonds 

		Issuance of Parity Obligations

		Book-Entry Only System



		ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

		DEBT SERVICE

		SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

		General

		Pledge of Net Revenues

		Debt Service Payments



		The Indenture requires the District to pay all Debt Service Payments directly to the Trustee on the applicable Due Date.  The District is required to pay Debt Service Payments without offset or deduction of any kind.  “Due Date” means the fifth (5th) business day of the month prior to each Interest Payment Date.  See APPENDIX A hereto.  See also “Pledge of Net Revenues” above.

		The District’s obligation to make Debt Service Payments is a special obligation of the District payable solely from the Net Revenues and other funds provided for in the Indenture.  Neither the Bonds nor the obligation of the District to make Debt Service Payments constitutes a debt of the District or of the State of California or of any political subdivision thereof within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limit or restriction or an obligation for which the District or the State of California is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which the District or the State of California has levied or pledged any form of taxation.

		Rate Covenant

		Reserve Fund

		Bond Insurance

		Application of Gross Revenues



		MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE

		Insurance Policy

		Insurer



		THE DISTRICT AND THE WATER SYSTEM

		General Information

		Water Storage and Distribution System

		Sources of Water Supply

		Historical Water Deliveries

		Water Demand and Demand Management

		District Reserve Policy

		Environmental and Regulatory Issues Relating to the Water System

		Projected Maintenance and Capital Improvements

		Customer Base

		Water Rates and Charges

		Billing, Collection and Delinquencies 



		WATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

		Financial Statements

		Historical Revenues and Expenses

		Historical Revenues, Expenses and Debt Service Coverage

		Projected Revenues, Expenses and Debt Service Coverage



		RISK FACTORS

		General

		Limited Obligations

		Water System Demand and Growth

		Water System Expenses

		Environmental Laws and Regulations

		Parity Obligations

		Geologic, Topographic and Climatic Considerations

		Proposition 218

		Constitutional Limit on Appropriations, Fees and Charges

		Limited Recourse on Default

		Limitations on Remedies Available; Bankruptcy

		No Obligation to Tax

		Change in Law

		Impact of State Budget

		Secondary Market for Bonds

		Loss of Tax Exemption

		IRS Audit of Tax-Exempt Issues

		Insurer Default



		TAX MATTERS

		BANK QUALIFIED

		NO LITIGATION

		RATINGS

		PROFESSIONAL FEES

		CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

		UNDERWRITING

		ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

		APPENDIX F

		BOOK ENTRY PROVISIONS



		Item V-B.3 - Purchase Contract - Refinancing of District Bonds

		Item V-B.4 -Indenture - Refinancing of District Bonds

		ARTICLE IDEFINITIONS; EQUAL SECURITY

		ARTICLE IITERMS AND CONDITIONS OF BONDS

		ARTICLE IIIPROCEEDS OF BONDS; PLEDGE OF NET REVENUES

		ARTICLE IVREDEMPTION OF BONDS

		ARTICLE VCOVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT AND THE TRUSTEE

		ARTICLE VIDEFAULT AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

		ARTICLE VIITHE TRUSTEE

		ARTICLE VIIIAMENDMENT OF OR SUPPLEMENT TO INDENTURE

		ARTICLE IXDEFEASANCE

		ARTICLE XMISCELLANEOUS








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 13-15, AWARDING A 
CONTRACT TO GROUNDWATER PUMP, INC. FOR PURCHASE OF PUMPING 
EQUIPMENT FOR THE 2014 CIP AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 13-15 which authorizes a sole 
source contract to Groundwater Pump, Inc., for three pumps for the Hidden 
Valley Road element of the 2014 CIP.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The cost of this contract is approximately $50,000.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Hidden Valley Road element of the 2014 CIP includes removal of the 15,000 
gallon tank at the end of East Hidden Valley Road and relocation and 
replacement of the pumps for the upper west part of the distribution system.  
Staff believe it is important to have specific pumps for this important part of the 
project.  Relying on the contractor selected through the normal bidding process 
would allow substitution of the desired pumps with alternatives that may not 
work out as well and installation by personnel not trained in this type of 
equipment.  The District has encountered problems of this nature before with 
the chlorine generation system for both the Guerneville and Monte Rio 
Treatment facilities and we wish to avoid the problem with this project.   
 
Having a reliable distribution system to the higher elevation customers on 
Hidden Valley Road is an important aspect of this project.  District staff conferred 
with the design engineer, John Wanger to determine the best approach.  They 
then approached Groundwater Pump and Well, Inc, for a proposal for the desired 
equipment (described in Exhibit A).  Groundwater Pump and Well gave the 
quote presented in Exhibit A after discussions with the engineer and staff.  The 
key element of this proposal are the three Goulds pumps with variable speed 
drives.  These are well respected pumps; Groundwater Pump and Well has much 
experience with this equipment and with the District’s well and distribution 
system – they are the company we use for specialized service in this field.       
 







Resolution 13-15, Groundwater Pump Contract 2  
June 6, 2013 
 


 


The cost impact of awarding this contract outside of the general construction 
contract should be minimal, if not a savings.  There will be confidence that the 
booster pumping system for upper Hidden Valley Road will be done as specified.   
 
Staff recommend approval of Resolution 13-15.   







Resolution No. 13-15 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AWARDING A SOLE SOURCE  CONTRACT FOR 


BOOSTER PUMP SYSTEM FABRICATION AND INSTALLATION AT HIDDEN 
VALLEY ROAD FOR A ESTIMATED COST OF $49,213 AND CHANGE ORDER 


APPROVAL UP TO $2,500 
 


 WHEREAS, the 2014 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) includes a 
replacement of the booster pump on Hidden Valley Road; and 
 


WHEREAS, fabrication and installation of the booster pump station includes very 
specialized equipment and assembling, including 3 high quality pumps with variable 
speed drives manufactured by Gould Pumps; and 


 
WHEREAS, including this element of the Hidden Valley Road project in the 


overall 2014 CIP bid specifications may result in equipment and installation that is not up 
to District expectations, and 


 
WHEREAS, Groundwater Pump and Well has experience with this equipment 


and with the District’s overall water supply system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District staff working with the design engineer for the 2014 CIP 


solicited a proposal for the fabrication and installation of the booster pump system for 
the Hidden Valley Road project; and 


 
WHEREAS, after discussions with Groundwater Pump and Well.  Groundwater 


Pump and Well submitted a proposal with a not to exceed price of $49,213; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has determined that the proposal by Groundwater Pump and 


Well meets the desired specifications of the Hidden Valley Road Booster Pump system; 
and 


 
WHEREAS, there may be some unforeseen aspects of the installation that may 


require extra services not to exceed $2,500, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby: 
 


1. Finds that it is in the District’s interest to award a sole source contract to 
Groundwater Pump and Well for the Hidden Valley Road Booster Pump System; and 


 
2. Approves a contract price of $49,219; and 
 
3. Authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders on the 


contract without Board approval up to $2,500; and 
 
4. Authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute the contract on 


behalf of the District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 







Resolution 13-15. Award of Contract for Hidden Valley Road Booster Pump 
System to Groundwater Pump and Well  2 
June 6, 2013 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on June 6, 2013, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer  


President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Groundwater Pump & Well Inc.                                                 Phone:888-282-PUMP(7867)       Fax:707-433-9421WaterBoy


Prefabricated Pump Stations :                                                    Simplex  Booster Station Proposal


Customer: Sweet Water Springs Project: Tri-plex Booster Pump Station


Location: Guerneville CA Date: 5/31/2013


Shipment: Estimated 4 to 6 weeks after receipt of signed contract


Submittals: AS REQUESTED


Scope of Equipment
1 ea WaterBoy In-line booster series model # 300WB43-3-12 Prefabricated Package Pump with a rating of 300 GPM with
a discharge of 43 PSI. Note: Pump design is 100 GPM @ 43 PSI Based on capacities requested per Kevin Gillman.
Incoming PSI is 45PSI, package will increase pressure by 43PSI.
Package will ship as a complete unit.
Standard construction consists of:


* 3 each Gould's model # 22SV2FB30 2 stage vertical multi stage 5 HP booster pumps. 230 volt SINGLE phase.
* 4" Stainless Steel, Discharge & Suction Headers.
* Individual 2" pump suction & discharge isolation valves.
* Individual 4" system suction & discharge isolation valves.
* 2" check valves for each pump.


Special cunstruction consists of:
* 40 Gallon Pressure Tank
* 2 each 6" x 4" Flanged Reducer
* 2 each 6" Rubber Flex Coupling
* 10 foot power cable for connecting to a generator or PG&E.
* 4" McCrometer flowmeter - 


Controls Include:
* Aquavar CPC Variable Speed Controllers (1 per pump)


With auto lead / lag alternation and synchronous communication between each pump.
The AQUAVAR VFD will be pre programmed for system design point PSI and will compensate for system 
friction losses.


* Custom panel includes, NEMA 3R enclosure, fusible disconnect for pump.
* Stainless Steel PSI Transducer


Filter to include:
* None


Safeties Include:
* High PSI shut off switch
* Lack of Water shut down.
* Leak Detection shut down.
* Over Voltage.
* Under Voltage.
* Over Temp Motor.
* Over Temp Inverter.
* Overload.
* Earth Fault.
* Pressure Sensor Error.


Start Up:
* One day on-site start-up supervision & operator training.


Note: This package system is designed according to the engineers specs.
includes tax.


PACKAGE PRICE: 48,663.00$  
Shipping 550.00$       


49,213.00$  





		Item V-C - Resolution 13-15 - Awarding Contract to GW Pump

		MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013 



		Item V-C.1  Resolution 13-15 Award of Pump Contract

		Item V-C.2 GW Pump and Well Proposal






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 13-16, AWARDING 
THE CONTRACT FOR THE 2014 CIP 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 13-16 which conditionally awards 
the 2014 CIP construction contract to XXXXXX for a not to exceed amount of $000,000, 
waives any and all non-conformance in the bid of XXXXXX, and authorizes the General 
Manager to approve change orders for a total amount not to exceed $00,000 with no 
single change order exceeding $25,000.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The Engineer’s Estimate for the 2014 CIP is approximately 
$973,000.         
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The 2014 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) includes replacement of 3,900 
lineal feet (lf) of existing main and appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd, with 
67 services, 2 fire hydrants; and 1,800 lf of existing main and appurtenances 
on Guernewood Lane with 20 services, 2 fire hydrants, and abandonment of 
200 lf of unnecessary 4–inch main along Hwy 116.  This project was 
advertised on May 9 and May 16, 2013 and the bids will be opened at 2 pm 
on June 4.  At that time we will inform the Board of the bid results and have 
the appropriate information for a full discussion and a resolution for possible 
award of contract at the June 6 meeting.   
. 
 





		MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION RE TOUR OF DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss results of tour of Monte Rio System 
Facilities done on June 4, 2013.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.         
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On June 4, 2013, the District is having a special meeting to tour Monte Rio 
System Facilities.  This agenda item is an opportunity to discuss the tour.   
. 
 





		MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROPOSED AT&T CELL TOWER AT 
HIGHLAND TREATMENT FACILITY 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the progress with arriving at 
acceptable lease agreement for leasing a portion of the Highland Treatment 
Facility parcel for use as a cell tower and provide direction to staff.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District staff are in discussions with AT&T regarding a cell-tower lease at a portion of the 
parcel that contains Highland Treatment Facility on Sunset Avenue in Guerneville.    
Since the last meeting we have traded draft lease documents.  Issues include: 
 


• A disagreement on the extent of the lessee’s (AT&T) authority over the 
entire parcel.  In AT&T versions of the lease the term “property” which 
applies to the entire parcel, is used instead of  “premises” which applies 
to the portion being rented by AT&T.   AT&T is renting a portion of the 
District’s parcel that contains our water treatment facility which AT&T 
people need to stay away from.  We are not giving AT&T any access to 
the part of the parcel that is not being rented to AT&T (the “property”). 
 AT&T has only access to the “premises”.  In our view AT&T will not 
have any guaranteed right to go onto the property that they are not 
renting to do anything and that should not be needed for the cell tower 
to work properly.  AT&T apparently sees this differently.   


• AT&T wants a clause that requires the District to pay AT&T taxes if the 
District does not forward tax notices within 30 days.  I see AT&T’s 
concern but we will not be responsible for paying AT&T’s taxes 
whatever they may be on this parcel.  We could consider paying 
penalties on taxes that may occur if we don’t get tax bills to AT&T in a 
timely way (but not 30 days).   


• 8.  Indemnification looks problematical to me, but that’s for District 
legal counsel attorney to decide.  


• Termination is an issue – each draft we get it seems AT&T inserts 
language that broadens their ability to leave without paying us 
anything.   







AT&T Cell Tower Lease 2  
June 6, 2013 
 


 


• Casualty looks to be a problem to me.  AT&T is renting a vacant part of 
the parcel.  There is nothing to rebuild other than possibly a fence.  
AT&T is insistent on sentences requiring the District to rebuild in the 
event of a catastrophic event or AT&T can terminate the lease.  This 
seems to put an unneeded obligation on the District.   


 
This has been a frustrating negotiation for me because we go to a certain 
point with a contact located in Sacramento and then the lease agreement 
went off somewhere and the communication has stopped – no back and 
forth, just trading of redlined documents without explanations.  AT&T has 
tried to continue their studies of the site but I have refused entry permission 
in the past month – these are studies that should take place after an 
agreement has been reached and an option payment has been received.   
 
I am in communication with the AT&T representative and will keep the Board 
apprised of new developments as they happen.   
 





		MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROPOSED CHANGES TO 
PURCHASING AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICIES 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on proposed changes to 
Policy Number 3700 Bidding and Purchasing and Policy Number 1020 Conflict of 
Interest.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none expected.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The annual audits of the past few years have pointed out that the District does 
not follow its purchasing policy as stated in Policy Number 3700.  Review of the 
policy has shown that it has inconsistent direction as well as practices that are 
no longer followed.  In the process of trying to fix the existing policy, District 
Legal Counsel, David Warner, suggested modeling a revised purchasing policy 
on that of the City of Healdsburg and that is what we have done.  The existing 
policy and the proposed revised policy is shown as Attachment A and A.1.  We 
believe this revised policy incorporates the important elements of the existing 
policy – it changes no purchasing limits – and is much more straightforward and 
easy to follow.   
 
The changes to Policy Number 1020, Conflict of Interest are necessary because 
the County of Sonoma has changed its procedures which allows it to delegate 
some responsibility for filing statements of economic interests to municipalities 
and special districts.  These changes are small and should have little impact on 
District operations.   The existing policy and the proposed policy are shown as 
Attachment B and B.1.   
 
Please review these proposed changes.  If acceptable to the Board we plan to 
introduce the ordinance changing the policies at the July 11 meeting and adopt 
the ordinance at the August meeting.   







Attachment A.  Existing  Purchasing Policy 


3700  Bidding and Purchasing 
Date Approved: February 9, 1993____ 
Date Revised: September 5, 2002 
 
 
 3700.10 This policy is intended both to state mandatory requirements and 
to eliminate and avoid all procedures and practices not herein made  mandatory, even 
though the District may from time to time and for its own purposes give additional notices 
or time for submission of proposals, or may add other non mandatory procedures.  
Failure to follow any procedure proposed or directed by resolution or motion or by the 
order of the district management will not invalidate or affect any purchase, sale, lease or 
contract unless expressly required by state law. 
 
 3700.20 Competitive Bids on Construction:  Except as hereinafter 
otherwise provided, all works shall be constructed and all contracts for the construction 
of work shall be let pursuant to competitive bids and the work shall be performed by the 
contractor who shall be found and determined by the Board of Directors of the district to 
have presented the lowest responsible bid in each instance.  This section does not apply 
to purchase of materials, supplies, equipment or land. 
 
 3700.30 Competitive Bids Not Required:  Work and improvements 
(including new construction, repair, maintenance and replacement) shall not require 
competitive bids in the following cases: 
 
  3700.31 Work and improvements done by the district itself by force 
account.  This will include both work and improvements initially so undertaken and that 
upon which bids may have been received and rejected. 
 
  3700.32 Work and improvements to be done by contract upon 
which the estimated cost including labor and materials is less than twenty-five thousand 
dollars ($25,000.00). 
 
 3700.40 Force Account:  The expression “force account”, as used in this 
policy, is intended to and shall refer to and include all work in which the district 
determines or directs the method and the timing of performance, as distinguished from 
specifying and requiring results with inspection.  This will ordinarily encompass work 
done by the regular employees of the district, but it will also include work done by 
contractors and other new employees who may be employed for specific jobs, if and so 
long as their performance is under the full control of the district and if the district 
reserves the right to stop the work or to increase or decrease it without the consent of 
such contractor or other employee. 
 
  
 3700.50 Notice of Call for Bids:  When competitive bids for construction are 
to be received, plans and specifications shall be filed and notice of call for bids shall be 
given as follows: 
 







  3700.51 Plans and specifications for such proposed works or 
structures shall first be prepared and filed with and approved by the Board of Directors. 
 
  3700.52 If and when such plans and specifications have been 
approved by the Board, it shall direct the notices inviting bids therefore which shall be 
given in the manner herein provided, and it shall at such time fix the time and place for 
receiving and opening such bids. 
 
  3700.53 Unless the Board shall specifically direct otherwise, each 
such notice inviting bids shall be signed by the secretary of the district and shall be 
published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed, published and circulated in 
the District or in Sonoma County, at least ten (10) days prior to the date fixed for 
receiving and opening bids.  Such notice may also be published in one or more trade 
journals published and circulated in the San Francisco Bay Area, but such publication is 
not required. 
 
  3700.54 At the time and place fixed for the opening of such bids, 
they shall be publicly opened and declared by the district engineers and the contract 
therefore shall thereafter be awarded by the Board of Directors to the lowest responsible 
bidder; provided, however, that the finding and determination of the Board of Directors 
as to which bid is the lowest responsible bid shall be final and may be based in part or 
wholly upon the experience, personnel, qualifications, equipment, facilities and the 
readiness of the contractor to perform the work; and provided further that the matter of 
opening and declaring such bids or the matter of awarding such contract may be 
postponed by the Board (or if there be no quorum, then by the clerk of the board or 
secretary) from time to time for a period not exceeding sixty days; and provided further 
that the bids may be rejected in their entirety, with our without cause; and that if the 
board does so reject all bids, it may call for new bids. 
 
  3700.55 In the event the Board shall so determine, it may reject all 
bids and either abandon the work or call for new bids, or it may reject all bids and 
determine that the work shall be done by “force account”. 
 
  3700.56 Whenever any project shall involve the expenditure of 
bond or special assessment funds, or any funds derived from state or federal sources, 
the provisions of law or contract applicable thereto shall be complied with. 
 
  3700.57 Except as provided in subsection 3800.53 hereof, the 
Board of Directors may in any case determine that the welfare of the district requires that 
time be shortened and in such case may direct that notice be published not less than 
five days prior to the date fixed for receiving and opening bids. 
 
 3700.60 Board Approval of Plans and Specifications Prior to Notice of Call 
for Bids not Required:  The General Manager need not obtain the Board of Directors’ 
approval to advertise plans and specifications for construction when the project has 
previously been approved and budgeted by the board or when there is an emergency.  
In case of emergency, and subject to ratification by the Board of Directors prior to the bid 
award, the General Manager may approve the plans and specifications, order them filed 
and, if time is available, direct publication of the notice inviting bids once in a newspaper 
of general circulation printed, published and circulated in the District or Sonoma County 
at least five days prior to the date fixed for receiving and opening bids. 







 
 3700.70 Informal Quotations:  Whenever a contract is not required by this 
policy to be let upon competitive bid, the Board of Directors or General Manager may 
elect to call for informal quotations before letting a contract thereon.  No call or 
advertisement for such quotations shall be deemed to bring the project under standard 
competitive bidding rules nor shall the district be required, or in such case, to award to 
the lowest responsible bidder or at all. 
 
 3700.80 Movable or Personal Property:  No project involving the 
construction, improvement, repair or alteration of movable or other personal property 
shall require competitive bids.  The Board may, if it so determines in any instance, direct 
the filing of plans and specifications for any such construction, repair or alteration and, in 
such event, the procedures set forth in Section 3800.40 and 3800.50 of this policy may 
be followed.  Unless the board shall specifically so direct, however, this class of work 
shall be performed by the forces of the district, or may be performed by any contractor, 
upon a contract or under purchase order without calling for or receiving any competitive 
bids thereon. 
 
 3700.90 Real Property Belonging to District:  Real property belonging to 
the district shall be disposed of, sold or transferred only as the Board of Directors may 
prescribe, but unless otherwise prescribed in any case, the following procedures therefor 
shall be followed: 
 
  3700.91 A notice shall be given by the Clerk of the Board 
(Secretary) stating that the district proposes to sell certain described property and stating 
the time and place when sealed bids will be received thereon. 
 
  3700.92 The Board of Directors shall fix the time and place for the 
receipt of such bids and shall instruct the Clerk of the Board (Secretary) with respect 
thereto. 
 
  3700.93 Such notice calling for sealed bids shall be published at 
least once in a newspaper of general circulation printed, published and circulate within 
the District or County of Sonoma, State of California, at least ten days prior to the date 
fixed for the receipt and opening of such bids. 
 
  3700.94 Upon the receipt of such bids and at the time and place 
fixed therefor, the same shall be publicly opened and declared by the Board of Directors 
and the property sold to the highest bidder therefor, provided, however, that the Board 
may reject all bids and retain the property or determine that bids shall again be called 
for. 
 
  3700.95 Nothing herein set forth shall apply to any easement, 
license or lease of land for a term of fifty years of less; provided that such easement, 
license or lease and all use thereunder shall be subordinate to use of such land by the 
District for the major purposes of the district. 
 
 3710.00 Movable or Personal Property Belonging to the District:  Movable 
or personal property belonging to the district shall be disposed of, sold or transferred as 
follows unless otherwise prescribed by the board of directors. 
 







  3710.10 Items with an estimated salvage value of less than ten 
thousand dollars may be sold at public auction conducted by the District or its authorized 
agent. 
 
  3710.11 Items not considered suitable for auction can be used as a 
trade-in or disposed of in any manner approved by the General Manager. 
 
  3710.12 Items not disposed of under subsections 390.91 and 
3900.92 above, shall be disposed of, sold or transferred pursuant to the same 
procedures applicable to real property set forth in 3900.80 above. 
 
 3720.00 Purchase of Real Property - Eminent Domain:  If and whenever 
the Board of Directors shall determine that the District requires and should purchase real 
property, or any interest therein, it shall do so without any call for bids and in such 
manner as may be specified in each instance.  In the event the board shall so determine, 
it may in any instance proceed with eminent domain proceedings. 
 
 3730.00 Purchase of Supplies, Consultant, Service Contracts and 
Equipment:  Materials, supplies, equipment and other personal property, generally shall 
be approved by the Board of Directors or be within specified budget limits for the 
expenditure.  All purchase orders over $10,000.00 shall be reported to the Board of 
Directors not later than the second regular meeting after authorization.  The following 
purchases may be made by the designated authority provided sufficient funds remain in 
the budget category.  All other purchases shall be authorized by the Board of Directors 
unless otherwise directed by the provisions of this policy as outlined below: 
 
Type     Authority Required Dollar Limit 
 
Purchase Order for  General Manager or    
materials, supplies  Field Supervisor    
services & equip.       $5,000.00 
 
Purchase Order for 
materials, supplies, 
services & equip.   General Manager  $15,000.00 
 
Purchase Order for 
specifically  budgeted 
items.    General Manager  $30,000.00 
 
Amendments/extensions 
of existing contracts, or 
emergency situations pro- 
vided sufficient funds remain 
in the budget category  General Manager  $ 5,000.00 
 
  3730.20 In case of an emergency requiring immediate procurement 
of pipe, fittings, materials, equipment, supplies or other personal property or contracted 
services, the General Manager or designated employee may proceed to acquire such as 
is reasonably required.  All such emergency purchases shall be reported to the Board of 
directors (not later than the second regular meeting following the date of such approval). 







 
  3730.30 No competitive bid shall be required for any of the 
purchases to be made under subsection 3830.20 above, or for any consultant or 
services contract.  Purchase Orders shall not be split to avoid dollar limitations.  
Cumulative issuance of purchase orders that exceed authorized limits shall not be made 
without Board approval. 
 
  3730.40 Whenever practical and equal competitive products are 
available, informal quotations thereon shall be taken from at least three competitive 
manufacturers or dealers before any purchase is made in excess of five hundred dollars 
unless exception has been approved by the General Manager.  These competitive 
quotations shall be reported to the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors may then 
make such purchases based on these informal quotations, or any other quotations, as 
the Board may think best or it may direct the procurement of additional informal 
quotations.  All specific notices calling for bids are hereby dispensed with and declared 
to be unnecessary and inadvisable for the purchase of personality, except as informally 
procured by mailed or telephoned notice.  No informal or other quotations in advance of 
purchase shall be required unless expressly called for by action of the Board of 
Directors. 
 
 3740.00 Requisitions, Payment Requests and Demands:  Use of Purchase 
Orders.  Purchase orders shall only be required for equipment, tools, furniture and 
vehicles that individually have an original total cost of more than $300.00.  All purchase 
orders shall be approved by the General Manager. 
 







Attachment A.1.  Proposed Purchasing Policy 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Bidding and Purchasing 
Policy Number: 3700 
Date Approved: February 9, 1993____ 
Date Revised: September 5, 2002 
Date Revised: July 11, 2013 


Sections: 


3700.10    Purpose of purchasing policies and procedures. 


3700.20    Definitions. 


3700.30    Purchasing officer designated and duties established. 


3700.40    Procedures for purchases of less than $25,000. 


3700.50    Procedures for purchases of more than $25,000 – Formal sealed bids. 


3700.60    Purchasing award. 


3700.70    Purchasing award – Factors to be considered. 


3700.80    Exceptions to this section. 


3700.90    Splitting orders prohibited. 


3700.100    Prevailing wages. 


3700.110    Inspection and testing of purchases. 


3700.120    Surplus supplies and equipment. 


3700.130    Surplus real property. 


3700.140    Purchase of Real Property - Eminent Domain. 


3700. 10  Purpose of purchasing policies and procedures. 


The purpose of this section is to (A) establish efficient and effective processes for the 
purchase or lease of services, supplies, materials and equipment at the lowest feasible 
cost commensurate with the level of quality required; (B) exercise financial control and 
accountability over purchases; and (C) clearly define authority for the purchasing 
function. In adopting the ordinance codified in this section, it is the intent of the District to 
responsibly manage public funds and provide responsibility for, and consistency in, 
implementing purchasing policies and procedures.  



http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.010

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.020

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.030

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.040

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.050

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.060

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.070

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.080

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.100

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.110

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.140

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.130

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.140





3700.20  Definitions. 


As used in this section, the following terms shall have the meanings described below: 


A.    “District” means the Sweetwater Springs Water District, including the political entity 
and its geographical boundaries. 


B.    “Excluded goods or services” means goods or services (as described below) in 
which any District official or District employee has a financial interest. 


C.    “Goods or services” means services, supplies, materials and equipment that are the 
subject of this section. 


D.    “Purchasing officer” means the District General Manager or designee of the District 
General Manager. 


E.    “This section” means Section 3700  


3700.30 Purchasing officer designated and duties established. 


A.    The District General Manager is designated as purchasing officer for the District.  


B.    The District General Manager may delegate all or a portion of the duties of 
purchasing officer to any District staff member. The purchasing officer shall have the 
authority to: 


3700.31.    Purchase, or contract for the sale or lease of, goods or services required by 
the District in accordance with purchasing procedures established in this section and 
other applicable law; 


3700.32.    Negotiate and recommend execution of contracts for purchase or lease of 
goods or services in accordance with purchasing procedures established in this section 
and other applicable law; 


3700.33.    Act to procure for the District the necessary quality in goods or services in 
accordance with the provisions of this section and other applicable law; 


3700.34.    Prepare and recommend to the District Board amendments to the purchasing 
rules; 


3700.35.    Establish and maintain such forms as reasonably necessary to the 
purchasing function and maintain other records necessary for the efficient acquisition of 
goods or services; 


3700.36.    Supervise the inspection of all goods or services purchased or leased by the 
District to ensure conformance with specifications; 


3700.37.    Recommend and oversee the sale or disposal of all goods or services which 
cannot be used by the District, or which have become unsuitable for District use; 



http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24





C.    Purchase agreements up to an amount of $25,000 may be authorized and executed 
by the purchasing officer. Purchase agreements of $25,000 or more shall be authorized 
by the District Board.  


3700.40 Procedures for purchases of less than $25,000. 


A.    For purchases of goods or services of less than $25,000, or that are not subject to 
other laws and/or procedures, the purchasing officer shall use the following procedures: 


3700.41.    For purchases of goods or services having an estimated value of $1,000 or 
less, informal quotes may be obtained from vendors but are not required.  


3700.42.    For purchases of goods or services having an estimated value of more than 
$1,000, but less than $25,000, firm quotes either received in writing or taken verbally but 
confirmed in writing shall be obtained. At the discretion of the purchasing officer, the 
competitive bid process described in 3700.50 may be used for the acquisition of goods 
or services having an estimated value of more than $1,000, but less than $25,000. 


3700.50 Procedures for purchases of more than $25,000 – Formal sealed bids. 


When the estimated amount of value involved in a purchase transaction exceeds 
$25,000, the authorization to award a purchase contract shall be made by District Board 
resolution following a sealed competitive bid process as outlined below: 


3700.51.    A notice inviting bids shall be prepared and shall include a general 
description of the goods or services to be purchased or sold, where bid instructions and 
specifications may be obtained, the time and place for bid openings, and whether a bid 
deposit or bond, or other security, such as performance, payment or maintenance 
bonds, will be required.  


3700.52.    A notice inviting bids shall be advertised at least twice in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the District with the first publication being at least 10 days prior to 
the opening of bids. 


3700.53.    When required by law or deemed appropriate by the purchasing officer, and if 
included in bid instructions, bidders may be required to submit a bid deposit or bond in 
an amount determined by the purchasing officer. Bidders shall be entitled to return of bid 
security, except that a successful bidder (and a successful bidder’s surety, if a bid bond 
is required) shall be liable for any damages suffered or incurred by the District upon 
refusal or failure to execute a contract within 10 days after the notice of award of 
contract has been mailed, unless the District is responsible for the delay.  


3700.55.    The District Board may, on refusal or failure of the successful bidder to 
execute the contract, award it to the next lowest responsible bidder. If the District Board 
awards the contract to the next lowest bidder following a forfeit of the bid security by the 
lowest bidder, the amount of the lowest bidder’s bid security shall be applied by the 
District to the difference between the low bid and the second lowest bid; the surplus, if 
any, shall then be returned to the lowest bidder. 







3700.56.    When deemed appropriate by the purchasing officer, and if included in bid 
instructions, any person or entity entering into a contract with the District may be 
required to furnish a faithful performance deposit or bond in an amount determined by 
the purchasing officer.  


3700.57.    Sealed bids shall be submitted to the purchasing officer and shall be 
identified as bids on the envelope. Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place 
stated in the public notices. A tabulation of all bids received shall be open for public 
inspection during regular business hours for a period of not less than 30 calendar days 
after the bid opening. 


3700.58.    In its sole discretion, the District Board may reject all bids presented and 
readvertise for bids. 


3700.60 Purchasing award. 


In awarding a contract for goods or services that is subject to this section, the following 
procedures and policies shall be applied:  


A.     Except as may otherwise be provided in this section, contracts that are subject to 
this section shall be awarded to a responsible bidder who submits the lowest responsive 
bid. 


B.    If two or more bids received from responsible bidders are for the same total amount 
or unit price, quality and service being equal the purchasing officer or District Board 
(depending on who will make the award) may accept the lowest bid made by negotiation 
with the tie bidders. 


3700.70 Purchasing award – Factors to be considered. 


A.    In determining bid responsiveness, the purchasing officer or District Board 
(depending on who will make the award) shall consider whether the bid documents are 
completed as required and the bid generally conforms to the bidding requirements. The 
purchasing officer or District Board may waive any bid nonconformities in accordance 
with applicable law. Any conditions or qualifications included by a bidder in a bid will be 
considered when determining whether a bid is responsive. 


B.    In its discretion, the purchasing officer or District Board (depending on who will 
make the award) may use any of the following criteria in evaluating the responsibility of 
bidders: 


3700.71.    The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to perform the contract or provide 
the service required. 


3700.72.    The ability of the bidder to perform the contract or provide the service 
promptly, or within the time specified, without delay or interference. 


3700.73.    The reputation and experience of the bidder, including the District’s previous 
experience with the bidder. 







3700.74.    Prior and current compliance by the bidder with applicable law, including, 
without limitation, compliance with any applicable licensing requirements. 


3700.75.    The sufficiency of the bidder’s financial and staffing resources for performing 
the contract or providing the goods or services. 


3700.76.    The quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or contractual 
services to the particular use required. 


3700.77.    The ability and availability of the bidder to provide future 
maintenance/service. 


3700.78.    Any conditions or exceptions attached to the bid by the bidder.  


3700.080 Exceptions to this section. 


A.    The following conditions constitute sufficient cause to dispense with the bidding 
requirements of this section and such requirements shall not apply to: 


3700.81.    Contracts for professional or expert services, such as, but not limited to, 
services rendered by architects, attorneys, engineers, and other specialized consultants. 


3700.82.    Goods or services which can be provided by only one supplier or only from 
one source due to a patent or copyright. 


3700.83.    Contracts for advertising, ordinary travel expense items, and subscriptions to 
trade publications or other publications used by the District for a public purpose. 


3700.84.    Situations where no bids have been received following bid announcements or 
all bids received exceed budget appropriations or costs estimates. 


3700.85.    Emergency conditions which involve a sudden, unexpected occurrence or 
discovery of a condition or circumstance that poses a clear and imminent danger 
requiring immediate action and that compels placing an order with the most expedient 
source of supply. 


3700.86.    Contracts for janitorial services for District buildings and facilities. 


3700.87.    Products or services for which other public agencies have gone through a 
competitive bidding process and are able to have the bid prices they received extended 
to the District. These “cooperative purchasing” or “piggyback purchasing” agreements 
(including, but not limited to, CCOP State Department of General Services, U.S. General 
Services Administration, any county, and state cooperative purchasing pools) in which 
the District is eligible to participate may be used in lieu of any bidding requirements 
under this section. 


3700.88.    When the estimated value of the goods or services is less than $1,000. 







3700.89.    When the District Board specifically waives the competitive bid process and 
authorizes staff to negotiate the purchase.  


B.    This section is expressly made inapplicable to bids for public projects as defined by 
the state of California in the Public Contracts Code, Section 20160, et seq. 


3700.90 Splitting orders prohibited. 


It is unlawful to split or separate into smaller orders the purchase of goods or services for 
the purpose of evading the competitive bidding provisions of this section. For goods or 
services which are purchased repeatedly throughout a year, the bidding procedures 
used shall be consistent with the estimated cumulative expenditures during a 12-month 
period.  


3700.100 Prevailing wages. 


Potential bidders for goods and services that are subject to the requirements of the 
California Prevailing Wage Law (California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq.) shall be 
notified of the applicability of prevailing wage requirements in the bid documents and 
shall comply therewith.  


3700.110 Inspection and testing of purchases. 


The purchasing officer is authorized to order the inspection of supplies and equipment 
delivered and services performed to determine their conformance with the specifications 
set forth in the order or contract. The purchasing officer shall have authority to require 
chemical and physical tests of samples submitted with bids and samples of deliveries 
which are necessary to determine their quality and conformance with specifications. 


3700.120 Surplus supplies and equipment. 


At such times as determined by the purchasing officer, reports shall be prepared 
showing all supplies and equipment which are no longer used or which have become 
obsolete or worn out. The purchasing officer shall have the authority to sell, trade or 
exchange all supplies and equipment. All surplus property valued at more than 
$10,000.00 requires a District Board resolution declaring it surplus. Upon declaration of 
an asset as surplus, the District General Manager shall have the authority to dispose of 
supplies and equipment in whatever manner shall best serve the interests of the District.  


 


3700.130  Surplus Real Property Belonging to District.   
 
Surplus real property belonging to the District shall be disposed of, sold or transferred 
only as the Board of Directors may prescribe, but unless otherwise prescribed in any 
case, the following procedures therefore shall be followed: 
 
3700.131. A notice shall be given by the Clerk of the Board stating that the District 
proposes to sell certain described property and stating the time and place when sealed 
bids will be received thereon. 







 
3700.1342. The Board of Directors shall fix the time and place for the receipt of such 
bids and shall instruct the Clerk of the Board  with respect thereto. 
 
3700.133. Such notice calling for sealed bids shall be published at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation printed, published and circulate within the District or 
County of Sonoma, State of California, at least ten days prior to the date fixed for the 
receipt and opening of such bids. 
 
3700.134. Upon the receipt of such bids and at the time and place fixed therefore, 
the same shall be publicly opened and declared by the Board of Directors and the 
property sold to the highest bidder therefore, provided, however, that the Board may 
reject all bids and retain the property or determine that bids shall again be called for. 
 
3700.135. Nothing herein set forth shall apply to any easement, license or lease of 
land for a term of fifty (50) years of less; provided that such easement, license or lease 
and all use thereunder shall be subordinate to use of such land by the District for the 
major purposes of the District. 


3700.140  Purchase of Real Property - Eminent Domain.   


If and whenever the Board of Directors shall determine that the District requires and 
should purchase real property, or any interest therein, it shall do so without any call for 
bids and in such manner as may be specified in each instance.  In the event the Board 
shall so determine, it may in any instance proceed with eminent domain proceedings. 


  


 
 







Attachment B.  Existing Conflict of Interest Policy 


1020  Conflict of Interest 
Date Approved:    _______________ 
Date Revised:      October 7, 2004 
 
 1020.10 The Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq., requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of 
interest codes.  The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, 2 Cal. 
Code of Regs. Section 18730, which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest 
code.  It can be incorporated by reference and may be amended by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission after public notice and hearings to conform to amendments in the 
Political Reform Act.  Therefore, the terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section 18730 and 
any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices commission are 
hereby incorporated by reference and, along with the attached Appendix "A" in which 
members of the Board of Directors and employees are designated, and in which 
disclosure categories are set forth, constitute the conflict of interest code of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT. 
 
 1020.20 Designated employees shall file statements of economic interests 
with the clerk of the County of Sonoma. 
 
 
Attachment B.1.  Proposed Conflict of Interest Policy 
 


1020  Conflict of Interest 
Date Approved:    _______________ 
Date Revised:      October 7, 2004 
 
 1020.10 The Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq., requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of 
interest codes.  The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, 2 Cal. 
Code of Regs. Section 18730, which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest 
code.  It can be incorporated by reference and may be amended by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission after public notice and hearings to conform to amendments in the 
Political Reform Act.  Therefore, the terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section 18730 and 
any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices commission are 
hereby incorporated by reference and, along with the attached Appendix "A" in which 
members of the Board of Directors and employees are designated, and in which 
disclosure categories are set forth, constitute the conflict of interest code of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT. 
 
 1020.20 Designated employeesBoard Members and the General Manager 
shall file statements of economic interests with the clerk of the County of Sonoma.  All 
other designated employees shall file statements with the Clerk of the Board for the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.   





		Item V-G - Proposed Purchasing and Conflict of Interest Policy Changes

		MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2013 



		Item V-G.1 - Attachment A - Proposed Purchasing Policy Changes

		Attachment A.  Existing  Purchasing Policy

		3700  Bidding and Purchasing



		Item V-G.2 - Attachment B - Proposed Conflict of Interest Policy Changes

		Attachment B.  Existing Conflict of Interest Policy

		1020  Conflict of Interest

		1020  Conflict of Interest








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 6, 2013  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in April was 15,225 units (35.0 AF, Monte Rio 


cycle) and production was 62.7 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales was similar – 
slightly higher - and production this April was higher (34.2 AF and 57.0 AF, respectively).  
The annual average difference between sales and production increased compared to the 
prior month, to 26.8%.  Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving averages since September 
2006, data are available back to May 2001.       


 
3. Leaks:  In April we had 8 total leaks and spent 57 man-hours on them.   Those are more 


leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and fewer leaks but more hours than 
April one year ago (11 leaks, 50.5 man-hours).  Figure 2 is continued showing service and 
main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.            


 
4. Flow at Hacienda Bridge: May has continued the dry 2013 – approximately 7 inches of 


rain in Guerneville since January 1 compared to a long-term average of approximately 30 
inches for the same period.  And we can’t expect much more rain this year until the rainy 
season returns in the fall.  Figure 3 now switches to flow at Hacienda Bridge.   Flow is well 
below the long-term average and the flow at the same time in the 2009 drought year.  This 
will be discussed in detail in Agenda Item V-A.   


 
5. 2014 CIP:   Opening of bids is expected for June 4.  This item will be discussed thoroughly 


in Agenda Item V-D.            
 


6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates were approved in May.  The 
Direct Install Program numbers are the same as last month: the most current accounting is 
17 customers have had 27 direct install toilet installations completed, 13 customers with 17 
toilets have been approved for installation and 21 customers with 37 toilets are on a wait 
list.                     







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
June 6, 2013 
 


7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were three in-house projects reported for May.  
Staff replaced 130 feet of 1.5 inch water line with 1 inch service line and 2 inch poly on 
Starrett Hill Drive in Monte Rio (79.5 hours), replaced a ¾ inch service and corp stop on 
Paradise Lane in Rio Nido (16.5 hours) and replaced a ¾ inch service with a new meter 
stop on Wright Lane (24 hours).     


 
8. Gantt Chart:   June in the Gantt Chart shows construction on the 2014 CIP and Board 


Goals and Objectives.  Award of Contract for the 2014 CIP is on the agenda; the Goals and 
Objectives Committee is working on a new format for that item; we expect to have 
something for the July meeting.   


 


.          


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
June 6, 2013 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Jan-
07


May-
07


Sep-
07


Jan-
08


May-
08


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2013 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated May 29, 2013


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-A
pr


8-A
pr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-M
ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay
3-J


un


10
-Ju


n


17
-Ju


n


24
-Ju


n
1-J


ul
8-J


ul


15
-Ju


l


22
-Ju


l


29
-Ju


l


5-A
ug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug
2-S


ep
9-S


ep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2012


2013


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 







 
Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 FY 14+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2013-14 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


•        2013 CIP Award of Contract


•        2013 CIP Construction Starts


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


2010 Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-16


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and 
Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: June 6, 2013 



